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whoRu
Shareholder

ANIZNSSUNISUSEN
Board of Director

AMIZOUNSSUNISIANIS
Management Sub-Committee

AMU=OUNSSUNISWAISUIRIBINSWE AU
Credit Sub-Committee

AfUZOUNSSUNISUSKISNSWEEU NSSUNISLIANIS
Asset Management Sub-Committee President

NSSUN1SIAIINLIONSWEFU
Distribution Sub-Committee

ntu:aqnssumsnauqugnnﬁ"ﬁ'\\lﬁ'\s:
Debt Control Sub-Committee

18991UsSNIgNADIANS @190USSNAUANNTUTIWIAY d1991UUSHISSIAIIazAUNU
Corporate Business Group Special Asset Business Group Price and Cost Management Group
WE0uNSSUNISEIANISEUSHASAEIIU WE08NSSUNISYINNISLUSHISENEIU SOINSSUNISYINNISLUSHISANEIU
First Senior Vice President First Senior Vice President Executive Vice President
Head of Corporate Business Group Head of Special Asset Business Group Head of Price and Cost Management Group
« theviggnAedrns « UhevieanduanRAIATIAY - theusmssiana:Aunu

Corporate Business Department Pricing and Cost Management Department

Special Asset Business Department

« theviganAkudsus NS laz:anAgus:neuns « thewostuinsAnla:nsovdeuls:I0ULa
Government and SME Business Department Credit Underwriting and Monitoring Department

« HUoBIUVIESNIENS:B:aU « thednde 1a:9ngruingnsweau Auto
Short term Unit Auto Purchasing and Distribution Department

« WheanAduwusiia:aduauuuvig « thednto 1a:3n3runansweiau Non-Auto
Customer Relations and Non-Auto Purchasing and Distribution Department

Marketing Support Department
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ANZNSSUNISWAISTUIAIMBUIINUIAZESSH
Remuneration & Selection Committee

ANIZNSSUNISUSHISADIUIAESY

Risk Management Committee

ANENSSUNISASIdOU
Audit Committee

dainnsovaouniglu
Internal Audit Office

1897UUSMS lla:USKASNSWEFU
Service and Asset Management Group

WE08NSSUNISWINNISLUSHISANEIU
First Senior Vice President
Head of Service and
Asset Management Group

» thyusmsanAgauusi lla:Us:nune

Maintenance & Insurance Service Department

« theupuANISNSWEEU lazAouAURAIaNSWEEU

Asset Management and Quality
Control Department

- uhossivanAunna
Retail Business Department

1997UNISU la=AdUAY
Finance and Control Group

WEosNSSUNISWINNISLUSKHISENEIU
First Senior Vice President
Head of Finance and Control Group

« WensUnyd
Accounting Department
wonuounsthensunys
Vice President Head of
Accounting Department

whenisiu
Finance Department

whgusHIsHu
Treasury Department

a189udaluauuavAns
Corporate Supporting Group

SOINSSUNISEINNISEUSHISA8IIU
Executive Vice President
Head of Corporate Supporting Group

« thendwennsupna
Human Resource Department

« thedoansourins

Corporate Communication Department

« theusmisvunay
General Administration Department

« thawmuis:uu
System Development Department

« uhgusmisioya
Data Management Department

dalinngruie

Legal Office

dnUngnsAndansourns
Corporate Strategic Office

d1UnUsSHIsAIILIFSY

| Risk Management Office
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=» Board of Director / AfU=NSSUNISUSUN

1. unelwSwayd a1 | Mr. Photipong Lamsam 3. Ungans: 161 | Mr. Sara Lamsam
Us:s7unssuns | Chairman nssUNISIia:Us:s1UANINUIUNISUSHIS

2 UENTEIE 8161 | Mr. Poomchai Lamsam | Director and Chairman of Executive Committee

so9Us:=81uNSSUNTS | Vice Chairman 4. Unuoawsstu a1é | Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam
NSsSUN1S | Director

5. UgWNW nuIAa | Mr. Pipop Kunasol 7. uN9UN$T ystunny | Mrs. Chantra Purnariksha
NSSUNISIIAzNSSUNISWIANAS | Director and President NSSUN1sdas: | Independent Director

6. ns.g8 lunv:10d | Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa 8. UN8dIBY AURADNUY | Mr. Vichate Tantiwanich
NSSUNAS | Director NSSUN1Saas: | Independent Director

9. urgeuwa avawnnulwena | Mr. Anupon Likitpurkpaisan 11.ung9Mdas yuurn | Mr. Arpatsorn Bunnag
NSSUN1sdas: | Independent Director NSSUN1Sd&s: | Independent Director

10.ungdums:Na qunssssu | Mr. Suebtrakul Soonthornthum 12. ungwawweu dugsna | Mr. Poonpipat Aungurigul
NSSUNSd4ds: | Independent Director NSsSUN1sdas: | Independent Director
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1. UWWNW nu1Fa | Mr. Pipop Kunasol
NSSUNSWIANAS | President

2. UNNWIEA1 AUAY | Mrs. Thipsuda Kuenkong
SOUNSSUNISWINNTS ri'mG’lr‘itgu§msa'w\nuaﬁuaqua\1ﬁns | Executive Vice President Head of Support Group
3. ugvasIns slass | Mr. Kachornjak Chalothorn
SOUNSSUMSEINMS MKLMAGIUSHSANEdIUUSHNSS AN lassiunu | Executive Vice President Head of Price & Cost Management Group

4. ungslus FUAS | Mr. Thanan Suebsiri
[EounssUNISIRNNS MAtINAGUSHSANNUSSAWARANIAWIFY
| First Senior Vice President Head of Special Asset Business Group
5. UwgnsSsy auunAS | Mr. Soottichai Sombatsiri
LgounsSUMSEIANTS MKUhAGUSMSsanenussivandaurns
| First Senior Vice President Head of Corporate Business Group
6. UwAU gvdaud | Mr. Danu Sukhavat
Lf50uNSSUNSEIANTS MKUMALUSMSANBNUNISAU lla=AIUAL
| First Senior Vice President Head of Finance and Control Group
7. ugunwa druArd | Mr. Naruepol Watanakun
{5ouNSSUNTSEIANTS MKMAUSHNSENBIUUSS lla:uSmsnSweau
| First Senior Vice President Head of Service and Asset Management Group
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1.1 Adediad Inguszasd Wvune vsenagnslunisantiuauvasuien

3
Adevidy (Vision)

JuesAnstuiuazdsdu Jumfouseuinnssuiinevaussmniiivesgna

Wusha (Mission)

1. HuguingsR Leasing wiausis 1u3nng Leasing fivuasiofunindauiivannvans venegsiagginnm oghifunauay
fadu shensBaiulugnsssunar fuiinveudedsnlnefignddugudnans

2. asadlagninieuinseenalionn@n eleduaiannudisaliiugnanluynda

3. quantinnuuazdin a9 Auluaseunia wazaiansuLuTRsegieulunseuiy

Core Values (AflguasAns)

i =Innovation AnsEu vhaslwl og1ain57

C = Customer Focus  Bngnédueudnans nevausmnia

O = Openness Delants Suils wanuduniadien

R =Result Oriented  Wanuddyfuithmneiidmndundnuasasinaould
E =Excellence sulusuRaveuseau imnogsliaian

1.2 nsasunlasuasiannisiidfny

U3 Amsaads e Genww) Tdaansilounesaduusemsitalul 2530 Tneil suimsnansing S1im @vnew),
U3en Wedlneuseiudin 9110, usEm Avsuseiude 9100 @mww), USEnluyunanning svssuia 91in @) uae
U3 auliadn S Wuunuhlunisdng Tneffinguszasdiileuszneussianmssiiunmsdamindaulisuuuiat
Tnewfunsliisnduiuny (Operating Lease) wazitiungugniniiduiifiyanaitundn

Tugusniiunsligningdulszianeuninuy w%auﬁgﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ’mmmﬂﬁu'%m'ﬂuﬁwm6]LﬁaL*f]umia%’mﬂaﬁh
Wsilunisuinsliiugndneessioiiles enfiu U3nsdesumauazingednusasusd

1wl 2539 U'%ﬁmiﬁLﬁunumszﬁauLﬂu 300,000,000 U wazihusemdnduusdnaanzidoulunaiananning
wisUszmalveiilesessumsveeiesgsanaziiieiindnenmlunisueduliiuuien walul 2548 uTlduAsuLUas
warvuinglivesuisn anyaduiutuay 10 vin iuyaiuay 1 vm wSemadumuaangdouain 300,000,000 Vv
\Ju 450,000,000 UM wazlaBandissAiu %&Lﬂuwaiﬁu'%@’wﬁvguﬁaﬂ‘ﬁwssLLﬁaLﬁuﬁmu 447,369,569 U ARUIIUIU
suttdu 447,369,569 7u Samaiuyulundiandunidunsuiviasaiaiun uandududdydmivsesiumaaiy
dulavesuitilueunnn waglud 2548 V3T vidasmie saim (TRIS) Sldusuiiususuinsanesding (Company Rating)
YU wazifudlifuseiu (ssue Rating) Wuszdu A - 91017 BBB +

vennileantuudy Tull 2508 fawans Forbes fmpanstuthmsgsin Wdmdenuidmiiduuidnumey uazan
neideulupaiandnnindvesniininieds-wudiin N 15 Useina 25864 U3 laglddmdonianzustnaun
nane Adpenseglalaiiiu 1,000 5wuLw%amaw%§LLasiﬁﬁWﬂdw 5 duwiseyansy 911U 11,845 UTE Waiiusm Amsaata
$1im Gnw) Iesudmdentidunidu 11 vTsmanUsamalne uasduuiemaadaden AldFusata Asia’s Best Under
a Billion Me¥atilduandidudamssniiunusie aaenIuNsifuguaiansivesuTInauduiisensulusefuana

10l 2550 U3 IFnswasuwUadlassasragieriuluel Ingludruvessunmsnansingliiausefuiifesgeenliiu
Ut Wedlveusyiu@in $1in dadudfiovuvdnsefuvesism Fudesmnulsnisvemssnasnansinefiazuivan
ﬂ’liamuluﬁﬁwﬁlﬁmmmmuqumwﬁLﬁumublé’ﬂgwm Fsnsdsuuvadlassaiefoviudanan lifinanszvusionns
AduuvsIUTENLAe1dle winduinaflunisasuaieiusiinsdniunisdesennnegsnatuouiag
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1wl 2551 v3EmlsiBuvenemsliusnsly 2 wanfasilvel fio PHATRA AIRCRAFT LEASING Saiduguuuunisliuins
wnpsesdulagansuwiadn 4-12 i Useian Business Jet, Turbo Prop wax Piston uag PHATRA YACHT LEASING
TnenfunnsliuiniagiBeuuu Motor Yacht Tnevis 2 ndnfusisjatiudfionouausamaiunaiiogsia wasnmugdaudh
Feumlsiinengaislunsiaunuinsliiusoanunisaluasamnusioanisvesgnin

sdlsiauazUsuuamsliusnslurdniag PHATRA AUTO LEASING Tsifinislsusmsetansuasas el
ausaneUauBIATIiaINTTsnAldINNBedy Tdhandunmsveneinterisquivinsmusnnsgunaninesuinig
anéThUsemA 1nnndn 800 uva Fsgnénanansathsad Weszesma viedeniissenidu Taedulalidn eelvanldsu
fufunnsgufniuinaaiiiiedunsaimugulaligndmesuidningldsunsquaiuegsfinaennaniioun
Tnsdnviudandi 0-2290-7575 wde 0-2693-2288 wonfuil 1wl 2554 USEMElATU 1SO 9001 : 2008 FusesAIFIY
A13U3N15 (Call Center and Customer Complaint Management) 310 SGS Wienssuses FEUUAMAIN ISO 9001:2008
Taan1tunissusessisanseoiandng UKAS anuduatiiinannisieudanfuresiineuuinisiiietesedis
fuszansnmlunsianuazinnlisszuugunm fuazdilefsmnudesnisvosgndn leusslovigeandonunele
yosgnAn Tudshyjssiuiaunayenn

Tud 2558 U%ﬁwlﬁﬁumuwmﬁsmﬂu 646,200,489 UM 1NNUIANLLTBULANTIUIY 447,369,569 UM
Tnemsliavsiugfiouiuvesuidnmudndiunisionu Rights Offering) Tasmaifiumulunifiilesesiunisvened
yosgsRauaziflofiudnenwlunsudsdulsifuuion W%’au%y’ﬂé’%’maﬁ'ﬂfué’wﬁ’zyuamﬁm%ﬁ%%aﬁumﬂzy%w%ﬁm adait 1
(PL-W1) Tudhuau 49,707,319mube Wudffevuiumesuidvivestoruadtfumumudndunsfevuuasivestoiu
ans Tnglalfinyac

Tl 2560 uvstnlatinsnszanemsifinnluddunsndussiamduqunniu  iedunsnouaussionudesnsves
pnanaldogunseungy  wazangmsimungsialiglfegnaliuszdvBam  suudsnmsuiuiiitensvauswsionisuveduly
pansosuATiinsasuuamasana  ilvuiimdsadudiinlugsiadadessnvliiduuusndiduemlulssmealne
agraLles Tull 2560 UMSlésy 1S09001:2015 3uspemsgIunsu3nIg (Call Center and Customer Complaint
Management) 91n SGS 1A8an1UUN1T5UTOILINANTIDI1NT UKAS

il viEniuumneiiarliussloninnauningitegliifnUsslovigegalaeldinenduninginunadnyauduay
Hultanmieonyiimisliigissesdusoludnussina 12 U flerelmfnseldgean uenand vimildifudesmenis
Smheaunindimedaauinudislonlaenss Tnedaduissusioaeduuy “auigans” Fuitisnaauumeaauniven
eflasunameusuded esnsosudihitoonsmihedanminagldfumsthssinwedadeiiios wdeuduild davh
website Tudo www.sa-buycar.com titeUszndiudlvynnaneuenlsmuissausiioaosimasmildminese

1.3 lpssadnamsteiuvesnguuien
Usenlifivsengesuarusengiy

m USEN iNsaasy 9110/ (UKBU) |



I ) éﬂUﬂJ:ﬂ']SUS:ﬂOUQSﬁQ

2. anwazn15UsENaUSINa

fmsdada UszneuAamsdammindauliiuusznounsiidudayaeaiduvdn lugduuunistd “01” (Leasing)
Tnetunslrusmsludneasdyaainaniusu (Operating Lease) Aunswdauussinnetunvusidundn a1y sasud
dFuuims snsuidunansUseidniney sosusuinislidntng uarsosudifiomandediug sutuatesdu uazde
wonandl el mindau dsuan widesdns roufinmes wazgunsalinly Tasogdyananilvgogszning 3-5 ¥

fnsdade  Biusmsmeymannsiiunnuszaunisainieuazliduinvuas Sausunsidonummug vz audmsu
nnesAng Sniadinsneukulfulswesiaungsiveedeiiies ieldunsaianassnill Iiurgsiadadslulsumalne

Taseas99eld
seldnanvesusgnuanAinsuandygiianiuiu Tudnvazuinsuuy PFL (Phatra Fleet Leasing) @ausnain
Ansundy s dunued vsendidinglaanndygiwinistu wasseldannmsuedunindliinudyg i

LA 17
vy
v o o (%

nudfindn Mildwsunamand vidnasiinsnszaglumugeamnssulseianengg eailunmsnszaneanudesfionnasiia
Jule

selivaIusen uwunmudyyiseldvasuien aaudl 2558-2560

41.A.58-5.A.58 4.A.59-5.A.59 4.A.60-5.A.60
A1uum % A1uUum % Auum %
AN FUIINA YA LU 2,894.27 | 7813 | 2,868.19 | 68.71 | 2,661.53 | 69.00
seldanndaanginisity 10842 | 293 | 107.85 | 258 | 14200 | 3.8
Telannmsveduninglagiaudeygynaiduiu 656.40 17.72 | 1,150.30 | 27.56 | 1,005.78 | 26.08
s1ldPu 4551 1.22 48.09 1.15 47.74 1.24
9589 3,704.60 100.00 | 4,174.43 100.00 | 3,857.05 100.00

2.1 ANWUSNANNMINUITBUINNS

AnwuzNanAuLazn1sIRUSATHAN
1. PHATRA FLEET LEASING

Wnmsliigrenuwmue Ussumsasudilt wdesdy wiugmai warsasudiiienismdvduismdenlve
gl wagmULIMEUIMSineg inssanudosnsiivesdidunniign ufesfusumvugiiios wilmievanssos
TnglmdnusmsdaniserunmuzsauindisliAnnisussndanesun (Economy of Scale) vlwinusslew
ANEARDBIANT ﬁgﬂugﬂmv Operating Lease Wag Finance Lease

= PHATRA AUTO LEASING
VSNSRI MU USTLNSa s ﬂzﬁiﬂﬂuﬁﬁﬂé’U%Wﬁ soldowlussdns  veeusdnszissaous
dlenmsmdiudangg yngu nndvie
= PHATRA AIRCRAFT LEASING
vinstigneiesdulneansuuindn 4-12 fits Usswn Business Jet, Turbo Prop wag Piston
ﬁgﬂugmwu Finance Lease wag Operating Lease ﬂiamqumﬂfﬁmuﬁy’aL‘ﬁamiviaﬂl,ﬁm 3719 LA MLz
= PHATRA WATERCRAFT LEASING
UsnslfeinGe Yacht dmsuanumdamaudiui susadeiienismdudideanisldnumaisd

a

FofvdslagansdmTugsiavioniied uasenunmuemadeinge weldlunisaniugsia
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2.2

2. PHATRA COMMERCIAL LEASING
Uin1sinsnddunnuszuan el 1n3esdns gunsaln1sudn in3esdnsaiuniudun famugaasdnduse
g3 Tuguuuudyaimanisidu (Finance Lease) 3slianuazainiunisasmu Inedyawueginseud@inisings

ﬂfnwmnwmwaagﬂwa%mssum Fleet Management
ANUMANNYANEYBIFULUTUINNTURS Fleet Management flaztaelinisuimsdnnissooudladdionin
Fhenmstamesnsuineniiguasnuidentn. telignéildoumvmresnaiuszavsamm wasannseailidned liddu
nadenldsasus - uiEmidmiidBeamngludwd eoslisuinwilunndenldsasudliivune
TUingUssasnuaIuiazeInng
nsdndesnnud - UstEnisdamsaisind lunngu vnd deduyulunisanedsaummanna
mMsdndssaoud - Visminddrmnaniuilaglisiindiuoudu
msaamezidousn - Uiinsenzidoulaydndsdanvndy
Msdamseiuse - viEniifnnuessguadavUseiusa ielimineinsynnavesuIEnERUfTRMNd
véniiflogeteduan
nsgeaings - UtMguansdenthysdsausuimanasgunnduaniniy iieanuasniugaan
MsdnnsnsuinauIY - UTEnasanaunuiunmsnsaifisavesidlaaansalile
PL Service Center guguinisnasa 24 $alus - v3n1sasrsanugule ndeudromdenniymszning
WWiuns Wauimsyniunaen 24§l ns. 0-2290-7575
ipSoveguiuINMITIUsHIA - Melederioguiuinsinnnii 650 wishuszina asadeseutigsliesng

fula nieneylvalunnasgudnan

Uselevivasdypdnaniuau

. amnsadavnenumvugnnuie nnuszvldiuamudesns nieueuuinsiidenndestunusioinis
VYDILAALDIANTLADEG

. dwanduyulumsdiiiugsie smensBenduainedudidasisedion

. Snswenidend hemuaumeseliiulumuumuiingy

. HwanAli1elunsuims Fleet wazanAlineluFosnsvenusuthgesnwm

. wdumszanudswine lunslisowaraneuliuiueulumsnenindauildamuly

. dnvnzvesdynin slinindaulivnngluuna uazlivnngnisemsinuniau

- nsawutesdulsglevisenisuimsnsziatiuan (Cash Flow)

NISAAINASNITHYITU

nagnsn1udedu

U3 Ifsounnundendmiumaussdilunndu fannsaspumamalulad suuuumsliuing msuens
ot udinsiinousuiivUssdvinmlumehaureminnu negatdunslivinsiinsises dudnaden
Tsneudlimneduanudeansvegnd lWautaeavBenUinges wu m3sansdeu n1suseiudy naenauns
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Wiovhnsde ane Tou uay i‘uiawaﬂmwEmaaﬂiﬂauswmu‘uamamﬂmwvLUmLmamammimw Vil AaunssUNIsLAY HUIg
NAVIUTUNTIUAUAMIUATDY N.A.0. ey Aav. Besnssenuderendnning warUfURmudamvuadinaiegegnaes

il o Yul 29 SuneAw 2560 aansnasuMsnumsUABuLamsiensemanninguesnssinIsuazuIMs uaz
wwuynsUTE 19
5’1u’;u‘luﬁ’1ﬁ'zyuaﬂ\1?m%ﬁaz%aﬁ:umﬁ'mﬂm
U (PL) R
ot aadl 1 (PL-W1)
(PL) - (PL-W1) -
% Wy/an % WWa/an
30 5.A. 59 | 29 5.m. 60 30 5.A.59 | 29 5.A. 60
1. wielwned dndn
- welnsney ane 169,866 | 169,866 | 0.028% - 244,155 224,155 | 0.451% -
- USEW FJq‘Wﬂ‘ig 9fin 12,323,402 | 12,323,402 | 2.066% - 1,227,800 1,227,800 | 2.470% -
(@RyAnaTITouLAY 30%)
594 | 12,493,268 (12,493,268 | 2.094% - 1,451,955 1,451,955 | 2.921% -
2. wenilvng ain
- 'Ll’]EJﬂ”ﬁ‘U’]EJ 5’1"’3’1 3,540,000 | 3,540,000 | 0.593% - 295,000 295,000 0.593% -
- U’Wﬁﬁj‘%ﬂﬂiiﬁ & (@'ama) 20,000 20,000 0.003% - 1,666 1,666 0.003% -
374 | 3,560,000 | 3,560,000 | 0.597% - 296,666 296,666 0.597% -
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Swnluddyuansdnsiasderiuaiyves
i (PL) UIun
ey Asafl 1 (PL-W1)
(PL) - (PL-W1) .
% Wa/an % Wa/an
30 5.A. 59 | 29 5.A. 60 30 5.A. 59 | 29 5.A. 60
3. uNgENTE A1
594 | 1,800,000 | 1,800,000 | 0.302% - 80,000 80,000 0.161% -
4. unsuIaNTIL A1
5211 | 1,800,000 | 1,800,000 | 0.302% - 80,000 80,000 | 0.161% -
5. WgNAN NUIAa - - - - - - - -
6. 9.3 lunvzne - - - - - - - -
7. W19AUNT YInugny - - - - - - . -
8. WAy fufily - - - - - - - -
9. wiwaywa aAvangnelnaia - - - - - - - -
10. wedunsNA JUNITITH - - - - - - - -
11. wigafidds Yuuia
33 | 296,000 296,000 | 0.05% - 24,666 24,666 0.050% -
12. weyanwml dsgina - - - - - - - -
13. wievasdng ¥lass
- wEwasans alang 254,661 254,661 | 0.043% - 22,221 22,221 0.045% -
- wganimd 1lass (dansa) | 200,000 | 200,000 | 0.034% - 16,666 16,666 | 0.003% -
39U | 454,661 454,661 | 0.077% - 38,887 38,887 0.048% -
14. uneiindgan Auns
- uaingdgan Auas” - 1,782,000 | 0.299% |+1,782,000 - 148,664 | 0.299% |+148,664
- WEaATR AUAS (@:ﬂm‘@) 1,952,000 | 1,952,000 | 0.327% - 162,833 162,833 0.328% -
374 | 1,952,000 | 3,734,000 | 0.626% |(+1,782,000| 162,833 311,497 0.627% |+148,664
15. wggnsdy audans - - - - - - - -
16. unesiiud Fuds
594 | 20,000 20,000 | 0.003% - 1,666 1,666 0.003% -
17. wgugwa Tuuan - - - - - - - -
18. WAy §Uial - - - - - - - -
19. yeN15EINA YAUYIAUN - - - - - - - -

(1)

a s & o a a a 3 = v LY o v U o (Y
N UNNNYFAT AUAS Sulauanugidma AIAn (Um‘ummwwsejm AUAY) NUANEYIUIU 1,334,000 U LLa%i‘UIa‘uiUﬁ’lﬂﬁUy

WaneAVIETIavdeiu111,331 vy wazsuleuanuigad AR (UNIANTBINNTINGaA Auag) uandydiwiu 448,000 viu

¥
& v

warSulouludAyuansdvsiiasdeiu 37,333 e
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Fausem Usesangsia % FUIURY AnwauzAANTUNYS
U3 Wiedlneuseiudin 91da mvw) | Sudsedudin 10.00 AoV Lag/v3e InTTunIsiuiy
U3En Weslneuseiude 911n (i) SulssiAwasy 8.89 AoV Lag/vIe AnTTunIsIuiy
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YNE : AU

4 31 5.A. 2558 | @ 31 6.A. 2559 | @ 31 5.A. 2560
Moo dnwazANENTUS | yadr | dadou | yedd | dadou | yad1 | dmdou
(%) (%) (%)
Ui Wedlveuseiudin 91dn W) | deviw/dnssunssiuiy 11094 | 094 | 119.99 | 098 | 133.49 | 1.38
Ut Wedlneuseiude ia () | dleviw/dnssumssauiy| 46.46 | 039 | 53.19 | 044 | 5245 | 0.54
ALbeUsEUTgaamth
MY UM
ALK AnwazAUANRUS | a1 315.A.2558 | o 315.A.2559 | ol 315.0.2560
U3 iadlneyseiude 91in @) | dheviu/dnssunisyiuiy 49.95 42.32 45.07
WntlAndeuseiudedne
VM © &MU
CACAR) AnwazAUdNRUS | o 31 5..2558 | @ 315.A.2559 | @ 315.0.2560
U3En WeslneUseiudy 911n () | ddeviu/dinssunssiuiu 4.79 4.32 4.06
AUgUsEAuTNg
e : Suum
31 5.A.2558 31 5.m.2559 31 5.A.2560
518%8 anwazAUTUNUS (12 fiau) (12 fiau) (12 fiau)
€.n.58-5.A.58 | U.A.59-5.A.59 | u.A.60-5.A.60
U Wadlveuseiude 9in G | dheviu/dnssunisyiuiy 94.02 93.18 85.70
dauandnleusziude
e : Suum
31 5..2558 31 5.m.2559 31 5.A.2560
318% anwazAuduRuS (12 fiau) (12 fiaw) (12 \fiaw)
€.A.58-5.A.58 | U.A.59-5.A.59 | u.A.60-5.A.60
U Wedlvguseiude ia (o) | dheviu/dnssunisyiuiy 10.43 9.32 10.17
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2558 2559 2560

11.A.58-5.A.58 31.A.59-5.A.59 11.7.60-5.A.60
AIFUIINA YRy 1AL U 2,894.27 2,868.19 2,661.53
seleandyennistu 108.42 107.85 142.00
selganmsvieduningligaudygianiueu 656.40 1,150.30 1,005.78
mlsanasamuieduning 4.43 1.54 -
s1eldau 41.08 46.55 a7.74
el 3,704.60 4,174.43 3,857.05
AuuuazAnldIed vy 3,118.05 3,745.27 3,406.19
ﬁunumamiﬁu 368.45 320.79 285.08
MEdule 47.11 (111.81) (56.11)
AuvukarAiTe T 3,533.60 3,954.25 3,635.16
finlsgwd 171.00 220.17 221.89
fls Aeviu ans 0.32 0.37 0.37
Funuiu (ju) 596,492,753 596,492,753 596,492,874
dunsndmyuidou 1,487.16 1,534.58 1,913.43
dunswdldwyuion 11,425.03 11.695.11 11,298.01
Aunswd 12,912.19 13,229.69 13,211.44
wilAumuiou 4,108.33 4,520.44 3,871.13
wifaulaivauiion 6,164.31 5,957.04 6,478.21
‘Vl‘ﬁa‘lﬁ’m 10,272.63 10,477.48 10,349.34
duvestievu 2,639.55 2,752.21 2,862.11
yarvumdyd (U1n/9u) 4.96 4.61 4.80
Sulluna (U meioru) 0.17 0.19 -
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2558 2559 2560
31.A.58-5.0.58 31.A.59-5.A.59 31.A.60-5.0.60
Aanuamnsalun1smnls (Profitability Ratio)
sasrilsugy © 23.76% 22.03% 20.18%
Sasmenidesu @ 6.60% 5.83% 6.77%
Sasmenidesny @ 3.74% 3.28% 2.93%
dusnidnsnonide @ 2.86% 2.55% 3.84%
8nslsgus 4.62% 5.27% 5.75%
BRI IMANULNURDE I DBV 7.22% 8.17% 7.90%
2558 2559 2560
4.A.58-5.A.58 41.A.59-5.A.59 4.A.60-5.A.60
Uszansawlunisaiiueu (Efficiency Ratio)
SRTIHANDULVIURDAUNTNE 1.34% 1.68% 1.68%
TN I UVDIFUNTNE 29.05% 31.94% 29.17%
2558 2559 2560
1.m.58-5.A.58 1.m.59-5.A.59 1.A.60-5.A.60
ulau1en19n158U (Financial Ratio)
ShsduniAusiedunestioru () 3.89 3.81 3.62
dnsndmdulifreiug (wi) 1.20 1.22 1.20
gn31n15918R8utluNe (%) 59.30% 51.48% -

1)

wews : " nsel operating lease

@ A5l financial lease
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2558 2559 2560
1.A.58-5.A.58 1.A.59-5.A.59 1.A.60-5.7.60
Joyasiaviu
yamnulnydsieiu (um) 4.96 4.61 4.80
mlsgddeviu (Um) 0.32 0.37 0.37
Ruiunadenu (um) 0.17 0.19
NIINTRTYLAULA
dunindsu 2.53% 2.46% -0.14%
nilaus -2.16% 1.99% -1.22%
5781ANNTVIENTOUINNT -0.86% 12.68% 7.60%
Aldeantun (lasmfunumms) 3.83% 78.90% -35.89%
finlsgwa 21.98% 28.76% 0.78%
2558 2559 2560
1.A.58-5.n.58 1.A.59-5.A.59 1.A.60-5..60
BnT1dUAIAIZRUTEUIBNINITRY
Samduauannsatiszaenidy () 8.79 9.64 12.93
dnsauANuEnIatisesEEnie (W) (Cash Basis) 0.29 0.24 0.33
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14. MSAATIEIETANE5UEYRIENEANNTS (Management Discussion and Analysis: MD&A)
HaNIALUULAZEIUEN1INTRUYDIUTIN AMsRata Srie (uvivw)
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2559 2560

4.A.- 5.A. 59 4.A.- 5.A. 60 % iy (a)

(199 12 i) | (990 12 1fidw)
ANIFUIINA YY1 U 2,868 2,662 (7.18)
sheldandygnnistu 108 142 31.48
sheldannsuedunsndligimudyg sy 1,150 1,006 (12.52)
Alsanmssmiegunsaiuasdunindiieliiiene 2 - (100.00)
seldEu a7 as 2.13
sueld 4,174 3,857 (7.59)

selendnveausenlull 2560 Usznaumie ANNTUAINAYY IR ILEULNY 91U 2,662 AIUUW anasiesay 7
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2559 2560

U.A.- 5.A. 59 4.A.- 5.A. 60 % iy (an)

(370 12 1Hiaw) (370 12 hiaw)
AUNUNIIATIINNT I 2,236 2,125 (5.01)
AunuveEUnSHg g udy e U 1,089 1,012 (7.07)
enuIINMsImihegunsaliasAuningiteliilovs - 5 N/A
AldanelunsuInis 263 251 (4.56)
nilasdoazqny 157 13 (91.72)
AUNUNIINITEY 321 285 (11.21)
Al 4,066 3,691 (9.22)
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P38 AUV

2559
1.A.- 5.A. 59
(990 12 Hauw)

2560
1.A.- 5.A. 60
(990 12 fiaw)

flstugiu 632 537
lsans 220 222
Sasrilstudu 22.03% 20.18%
dnsrilsgud 5.27% 5.75%
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Tassa$raselatut 2559 wWisuieuniul 2558 auan$19 fail
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U8 AUV

9 2558 9 2559 % Liial (am)
A FUAINA YRy AL I U 2,894 2,868 (1)
shelaandyg st 108 108 -
s1elaanmsuedunsnglingmudygienaiduanu 656 1,150 75
Alsanmsdmiegunsaiuazduningiiteliiies 5 2 (60)
s1elddu a1 a6 12
el 3,705 4,174 13
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P38 AUV

9 2558 9 2559 % LAY (an)
AUYLUNRTIINNS I 2,207 2,236 1
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nilasdoazqny 1 157 156
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Financial Highlight

Data From Financial Statements

Rental income from operating lease contracts
Income from finance lease contracts

Total revenues

Total costs and expenses

Net income

Number of shares (million shares)

Total Assets

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Financial Rations

Retum on total income (%)

Retum on Shareholders’ Equity (%)
Debt to Equity (time)

Net profit per share (Baht)

Book value per share (Baht)

Dividend per share (Baht)

(Unit : thousand baht)

Company Company
2015 2016
2,894.27 2,868.19 2,661.53
108.42 107.85 142.00
3,704.60 4,174.43 3,857.05
3,486.49 4,066.06 3,691.27
171.00 220.17 221.89
596.49 596.49 596.49
12,912.19 13,229.69 13,211.44
10,272.63 10,477.48 10,349.34
2,639.55 2,752.21 2,862.11
Company Company
2015 2016
4.62 5.27 5.75
7.22 8.17 7.90
3.89 3.81 3.62
0.32 0.37 0.37
4.96 4.61 4.80
0.17 0.19
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Report of the Board of Directors

In 2017, Thailand’s economy moved in a positive direction, with economic growth of 3.8%, higher than the growth of 3.3% in 2016.
The average inflation rate was 0.6%. The key drivers of Thailand’s economic growth such as export sector began to show signs of
improvement whereby in 2017, the export value stood at 5.5%. Thailand’s economy in 2018 is expected to grow by 3.9%, as a result of
driving forces including public infrastructure investment and continuous expansion of private investment and tourism sector.

With respect to the automotive industry, the sales volume increased whereby the total domestic sales volume in 2017 reached
871,647 units, being an increase of 13.4%. The domestic sales grew for the first time in five years. For 2018, it is expected that there will
be new positive factors to drive the automotive market in Thailand, taking into account the number of new products introduced by many
automakers. An overall sales level of 900,000 units, representing a 3.2% increase against the previous year, is expected.

In the previous year, Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited ran the business with difficulty arising from several factors, especially
price competition. However, the Company has followed the direction to gain maximum benefit from existing assets by granting short term
leases of the assets, contracts of which have expired and which are still in good condition, in order to generate maximum revenue. Besides,
the Company has increased distribution channels to sell the assets, contracts of which have expired, directly to the users. In this regard, the
Company’s gross value of assets amounted to Baht 13,211 million, and the Company’s net profit amounted to Baht 222 million.

Apart from the business operations, in 2017 the Company established the “Anti-Corruption” Guideline and encouraged the employees
to participate in anti-corruption activities in order to create better value and culture. The Company is ready to declare its intention and
commitment to resist any forms of corruption. Moreover, the Company has placed importance on corporate social responsibility, along with
the achievement of sustainable development. In the previous year, in remembrance of His Majesty King Bhumibol Adulyadej and for the
purpose of fulfilling the royal wish of the King in taking care of and maintaining Thailand’s forests, the Company held the activities for the
employees to plant trees and construct dams in the Royally-Initiated Siri Charoenwat Forest Plantation Project, Chon Buri Province.

The business operation of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited during 2017 ran smoothly as a result of the collaboration of all staff
who devoted their efforts at work as well as the strong support of our customers, investors and all business partners. The Board of Directors

of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited would like to take this opportunity to convey our gratitude to all concerned.

4 PO

Mr. Photipong Lamsam Mr.Pipop Kunasol
Chairman President
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1.Policy and Business Overview
1.1 Vision, Objectives, Goals or Strategies in Operating the Company’s Business

Vision
To be a leading and sustainable organization driven by innovations created in response to all dimensions of customers.

Mission

1. To be a leader in leasing business, to provide modern leasing services with a wide range of assets, and to expand our
business into provincial parts stably and sustainably by adhering to moral principles and corporate social responsibility
as well as customer centricity;

2. To ensure customer loyalty with professional services for higher success of our customers in all dimensions;

3. To treat our employees and customers as family members, as well as to provide good returns to our shareholders
simultaneously.

Core Values

I = Innovation : To initiate and create new things in a timely manner

C = Customer Focus : To ensure that the customer is at the center of the business’s operations and will be
satisfied in all dimensions

@) = Openness . To have an open mind, listen and be in harmony

R = Result Oriented : To place importance on results which have been determined and can be examined

E = Excellence : To be determined to do excellent work.

1.2 Significant Changes and Developments

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited has been registered and incorporated as a limited company since 1987 whereby
Kasikorn Bank Public Company Limited, Muang Thai Life Assurance Company Limited, Phatra Insurance Public Company
Limited, Phatra Thanakit Public Company Limited and Sombat Lamsam Company Limited were in the leading roles in
the incorporation whereby the Company’s objective are to operate the business of providing assets for leasing out by
focusing on operating lease and targeting at juristic person customers.

In 1988, the Company commenced the business of granting leases of properties, most of which were vehicles, to juristic
person customers, and also developed the provision of services in order to continuously create added value in the
services provided to the customers such as repair and maintenance services.

In 1996, the Company increased its registered capital to Baht 300,000,000 and became a listed company in the Securities
Exchange of Thailand in order to support the expansion of business and to enhance the competitive potential of
the Company. In 2005, the Company changed the par value of its shares from Baht 10 each to Baht 1 each and also
increased the registered capital from Baht 300,000,000 to Baht 450,000,000, and then required payment for shares. As
a result, the Company’s paid-up capital was Baht 447,369,569, represented by 447,369,569 shares. This increase in the
registered capital was a restructuring of capital and an important part to support future growth of the Company. Also,
in 2005, TRIS Rating increased the Company rating and the issue rating on its unsecured debentures to A- from BBB+.

Besides, in 2005, Forbes, a leading business magazine, selected from 25,864 public listed companies in the Asia-Pacific
Region from 15 countries by selecting 11,845 companies which were medium size companies earning revenue not
exceeding 1,000 million dollars and not less than 5 million dollars, to receive the Asia’s Best Under a Billion Award.
In this regard, Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited was selected as one in 11 companies from Thailand and was
the only one leasing company received this award. This award can prove that the operations and good corporate
governance of the Company were internationally accepted.
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In 2007, the shareholding structure of the Company was changed whereby Kasikorn Bank Public Company Limited
offered its shares for sale to Muang Thai Life Assurance Company Limited, an existing major shareholder of the Company.
This was because of the policy of Kasikorn Bank to reduce the investment in the companies, the operations of which
could not be fully controlled. However, such change in the shareholding structure did not have any negative impact
on the Company’s operations but did have positive impact in building up alliances for business extension in the future.

In 2008, the Company started to provide 2 new products comprising Phatra Aircraft Leasing, which provides leasing for
private aircraft (4-12 seats) such as Business Jet, Turbo Prop and Piston, and Phatra Yacht Leasing, which provides leasing
for Motor Yacht. The 2 products serve the purpose of tourism, business and private vehicle. The Company never stops
improving its services to keep them up to date and to satisfy the customer demand.

In 2009, the Company developed and improved the service provision consecutively in order to satisfy the customer
demand at higher level by expanding the network of more than 800 service centers according to the manufacturer’s
standards to provide services to the customers nationwide. The customers may bring the cars for check-up or for
emergency maintenance with confidence that the spare parts received meet the same standards to those of the
manufacturer in order to make the Company’s customers feel confident that the cars will always receive good
maintenance by just calling 0-2290-7575 or 0-2693-2288. In 2011, the Company was awarded the I1SO 9001:2008 quality
management system, certified by the SGS which was appointed by the United Kingdom Accreditation Service (UKAS).
This success was directly due to the efficient co-operation of related service teams in developing and maintaining the
quality management system, knowing and understanding the customers’ needs in order to achieve the most customers’
benefit and satisfaction which the Company always commits to develop at all times.

In 2015, the company increased registered capital stocks from Baht 447,369,569.- to Baht 646,200,489.- by offering
right to company’s old shareholder according to their share portion (Rights Offering). This increased capital aimed to
support business expansion and increase efficiency of our competition. We provided the first warrants of common stock
purchase for 49,707,319 units to old shareholder who reserved for proportional increased capital common stock and
excess reserves without calculation.

In 2017, the Company diversified its product range by increasing the number of leases of other types of assets in order to
satisfy market demand extensively and lead to the effective development of leasing business and also the adaptation
to dynamic competition in the automotive market. As a result, the Company is still a leader in the business of operating
lease in Thailand. In 2017, the Company’s Call Center and Customer Complaint Management Systems also passed the
audit conducted by SGS and achieved I1SO 9001:2015 accredited by United Kingdom Accreditation Service: UKAS.

The Company has intended to gain maximum benefit from existing assets by granting short term leases (approximately
1-2 years) of the assets, contracts of which have expired and which are still in good condition, in order to generate
maximum revenue. Moreover, the Company has increased distribution channels to sell the assets, contracts of which
have expired, directly to the users by opening a used car center called “Sa-buy Car” on Kanchanaphisek Road, which has
received good feedback because the cars offered for sale are in good condition and well-maintained. Meanwhile, the
Company has established a website named “www.sa-buycar.com” to advertise the used cars offered by the Company.

1.3 Shareholding Structure of the Company’s Group

The Company does not have any subsidiary company or affiliated company.
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2. Nature of Business

Phatra Leasing operates the business of leasing assets to juristic entities under the scheme of “Operating Lease”
with main focus on vehicle leasing which includes executive cars, office cars, sub-leased service and cars for other
commercial purposes. Operating lease also includes such assets as machines, computers and other appliances with the
lease term of more than 3 years.

Phatra Leasing provides services and team of experienced staff ready to give advice and provides vehicle management
plan customize for every types of organizations. We also formulate ongoing business development plants to set up new
standards of leasing business in Thailand.

Income Structure

The company’s revenues are mainly from rental collected under the Operating Lease Agreement of PFL services. Also
included in the income structure is other income from PFL additional service. The company’s clients are varied among

different types of industries, allowing a good diversification of risks.

From 2015-2017, the Company’s income has been classified according to the types of leases as follows:

Jan 15-Dec 15 Jan 16-Dec 16 Jan 17-Dec 17

Million Million Million
% % %
Baht Baht Baht
Rental received from operating lease contracts 2,894.27 | 7813 |2,868.19 | 68.71 | 2,661.53 | 69.00
Income from financial lease contracts 108.42 293 107.85 2.58 142.00 | 3.68

Income from sale of leased assets under operating lease contracts| 656.40 | 17.72 | 1,150.30 | 27.56 | 1,005.78 | 26.08

Other income 45.51 1.22 48.09 1.15 47.74 1.24

Total income 3,704.60 | 100.00 | 4,174.43 | 100.00 | 3,857.05 | 100.00

2.1 Nature of Products and Services
Nature of Products and Our Main Services
1. PHATRA FLEET LEASING

Provide leasing for sedan vehicle, aircrafts, watercraft and commercial vehicles. Together with consultation and sourcing
for service alternatives which mostly fit the leasee’s requirements. No matter one or hundreds of vehicles under Economy
of Scale policy that utilizes the best for the organization. In forms of Operating Lease and Finance Lease.

« PHATRA AUTO LEASING
Provide leasing for excentive sedan vehicle, vehicle used in organization, or even commercial vehicle with
every model and brand to keep the business running smoothly.

« PHATRA AIRCRAFT LEASING
Provide leasing for private aircraft (4-12 seats) as Business Jet, Turbo Prop and Piston under Finance Lease and
Operating Lease. Which serves the purpose of tourism, business and private vehicle.

« PHATRA WATERCRAFT LEASING
Motor Yacht and watercraft for personal amusement of commercial use of several watercraft, tourism business
transportation and others in forms of Finance Lease and Operating Lease.

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited | m



seseesssssssssssn wmp N ature of Business

2. PHATRA COMMERCIAL LEASING

Leasing services for all kinds of assets such as machinery, manufacturing equipment with high investment and necessary
for business in term of finance lease which comforts the investment and be quick in term of approved.

Variety of PFL

The variety of Fleet Management helps to manage all vehicles and is easier than ever with all maintenance and repair. It
allows clients to use vehicle effectively and reduces unnecessary costs.

Vehicle Selection «  With special experts to give advice for suitable vehicle that best fit the purpose of each
organization.
Vehicle Procurement «  Fast vehicle arrangement for every model and color with reasonable leasing costs.

Vehicle Delivery « Delivery to all locations without limitation.

Vehicle Registration «  Full registration service and delivery.

Vehicle Insurance +  With team to look after the car’s insurer and allow your human resources to work worthly.
Maintenance « Maintenance and repair by authorized service center for the best safety.

Vehicle Substitution +  Prompt replacement vehicle service for any incident that prevent you from using main vehicle.
PL Service Center « Service Center that never leave our clients alone with all the problems on the road. Our

a 24-hours service service are open 24 hours a day at 0-2290-7575

Service Centers « Service centers with over 650 service centers nationwide that are ready to provide standard
Nationwide service and authentic parts from authorized manufacturers.

The Benefit of Operating Lease

« Choices of vehicles that cater to all demands, with full service that meets the organization’s needs
 Business cost control through fixed monthly fee collection

» Fixed interest rate that allows for effective expense management

+ Expenditure control for fleet management and for maintenance

»  Worry—free regarding risks and uncertainties from the use and the reselling of purchased vehicles and assets
» The Benefit of lease contract is that your asset will be off balance sheet

« Low initial outlay which significantly benefits cash flow

2.2 Marketing and Competition

Competitive Strategy

The Company has prepared for the competition in all areas; technological investments, forms of services, network
expansion, and training to enhance the employee’s productivity. The focus is on providing the comprehensive services
from the selection of cars to suit the needs of customers to various details such as registration, insurance, and 24-hour
services as well as network of service centers nationwide. This creates the difference obviously and builds the trust and
maximum benefits to customers. Moreover, it can ensure the enhancement of the competitiveness of the Company to
remain at the level of business leader

Industrial Situation and Competition

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited has operated various types of leasing business by principally providing operating
leases for vehicles. The Company has diversified its product range by increasing the number of leases of other types of
assets in order to satisfy market demand extensively and lead to effective development of leasing business at present. The
Company has owned a strong position in the market due to its expansion of customer base together with maintaining of
existing key customers, and also its ability to increase the number of key customers in various industries by placing emphasis
on the customers who are juristic persons. The Company has also placed importance on the provision of a complete range
of services, nationwide service network and services which are available any time. As a result, the Company has been able
to maintain its leading position in the operating leasing business. In addition, as the Company realizes how important it is to
develop competitive advantage in the context of changing situation of the automotive market, the Company has increased
distribution channels to sell the assets after the expiration of contracts so that the assets shall be managed efficiently.
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For the overview of the automotive market in 2017, the total sales volume was approximately 0.87 million units, which
increased from 0.77 million units in 2016 and was higher than expected sales volume of 0.85 million units. Supporting factors
toward the increase in the sales volume were likely to result from the continuous expansion of the private sector’s investment
and consumption because the income base moved in a positive direction.

In 2018, according to the data of the Office of the National Economics and Social Development Board as of 20 November
2017, Thai economy was likely to expand by 3.6 — 4.6%. Supporting factors included the world economic expansion which
leaded to continuous growth of exports, the drive from public investment which was likely to increase, the positive movement
in private investment and also the upward movement in employment rate and wage rate in the economic system, as well
as the measures for helping farmers and low income citizens. These were considered important factors which encouraged
continuous growth of the automotive market in the year 2017. However, as the interest rates in the United States are likely
to rise, and affect the interest rates in Thailand, the said factor might cause some delays in vehicle purchase decisions.

With respect to the market situation for the business of operating lease, now there are many companies engaging in this type
of business but there is a small number of large-sized companies which are market leaders and holding the majority of market
share. Phatra Leasing Plc. is considered the leader in this group. Even though the competition in operating leasing business
remains fierce, the demand of the private sector for vehicle management including repair and maintenance services by outside
experts enables the operating leasing business in Thailand to grow in the medium run to the long run. Due to Phatra Leasing
Plc.’s policy to provide the customers with a complete range of services 24 hours, and its business strategy to continuously
expand the customer base and expand into the markets of new types of assets for lease, as well as its adaptation to dynamic
competition in the automotive market, the Company has been able to maintain its market-leading position in the operating
leasing business in Thailand.

2.3 Provision of Products or Services
Sources of Funds

It is the Company’s policy to seek the future sources of funds by focusing on loneg-term sources in order to be in line with the
nature of leasing business. In the previous years, the Company obtained approval from the shareholders’ meetings to issue
and offer debentures for sale with the objectives to reduce risks which may arise from the interest rates fluctuations in the
market and to correspond with the terms of leases.

Apart from seeking long-term sources of funds by means of issuance of debentures, the Company has also obtained long-term
loans by borrowing from several financial institutions in the country.

Lease (Asset Lease)
Asset Lease Policy

The Company’s policies in leasing out assets are as follows :

1. Lessor: The Company will mainly grant leases to juristic person customers by taking into account their qualifications,
i.e., they should be juristic persons with sound operating results or high possibility projects, good financial records and
payment capability.

2. Leasing Objective: The asset to be leased must be used in the lessee’s business whereby the lessee must notify the
Company of its objective.

3. Leased Asset: The asset to be leased must have the following qualifications:

- being new or used asset whereby the Company will consider its condition, useful life and proper price;
- being generally used and able to be sold in secondhand market;

- not being produced for certain users particularly; and

- ownership of which can be identified.

4. Lease Term: The lease term shall vary between 3 - 5 years, depending on its type and usability.

5. Pre-conditions: Pre-conditions may vary, depending on each company’s risks, which may be any of the following:
- There shall be a guarantor;

- For special asset, cash shall be provided as security; and/or
- There shall be no pre-condition.
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6. Post-conditions: In proposing leasing conditions, it is necessary to take into account several risks of the leased
asset such as popularity among users, type, model, brand, price in secondhand market, technology development,
obsolescence, usability and etc. The Company will consider the asset’s scrap value which should be saleable
without too much risk and use such value in calculating rental rate. In this regard, the post-conditions proposed to
the lessee shall depend on expectation of the degree of risk to be taken by the Company. The post-conditions may
be any of the following:

- Option to Buy: The lessee shall be offered by the Company to sell the asset at the scrap value specified in the
lease contract whereby the lessee may or may not exercise the option to buy the asset.
- No Option: After the expiration of the lease contract, the lessee shall return the leased asset to the Company.

Leasing Risk Management

The Company has selected customers with due care by using sponsoring system in considering approval for scrutinization
as each sponsor will give wider point of view and opinion encouraging more carefulness and also reflecting a small
number of bad debtors of the Company.

In addition, the Company has a strict debt collection system and has provided sufficient allowance for doubtful
accounts, and also placed importance on monitoring and study of fluctuations in global and regional economies,
environment, trends and factors which may direct impact the Company’s business operation. Therefore, the Company
has established a business development department for study to support timely decision-making on the effects which
may occur to the Company.

Supervision, Approval for Leases and Debtor Follow-up Process
The Company’s leasing business procedures are divided into 6 steps as follows:

1. Analysis of Customer’s Credit: The Company will ask for the information on customer demand such as assets in
demand, objectives, lease terms, lease conditions, reasons for choosing leasing as well as past performance, types
of credit lines and financial institutions used by the customers and supporting documents. Based on the aforesaid
information, the marketing officers will consider proposing lease conditions in accordance with the Company’s leasing
policies.

2. Application for Approval: The Company has used the sponsoring system in granting approval for leases. For the
aforesaid system, the sponsors comprise department managers and higher level managers. The Company has prescribed
the criterion for granting approval for leases step by step, taking into account asset value, asset type and lessee’s
qualifications.

According the procedural steps for granting approval for leases, when a customer agrees on the conditions initially
proposed by the Company, the marketing and sales officer will propose a report to a sponsor for verification. After that,
the aforesaid sponsor will submit the verified report to two more sponsors for approval for the lease. In this regard,
the asset value, asset type and procedural steps for granting approval shall be in accordance with leasing conditions
approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.

3. Execution of Contract: The report submitted for approval which has been approved shall be made as a lease
contract and proposed to the lessee for signature.

4. Purchase of Asset: After the lessee signs the lease contract, the Company will purchase the asset having the
qualifications as agreed upon by them by purchasing the asset through the seller sought by the Company itself or
through the seller sought by the lessee.

5. Delivery of Asset: The Company shall deliver the asset to the lessee, effect registration and provide insurance for the
asset, which shall be part of the Company’s services, and then fulfill the pre-conditions, upon which the contract shall
be deemed effective.

m Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited |



esssssssssssssss wmp RiSk Factors

6. Expiration of Lease Contract: Upon expiration of the lease contract, if the lessee has complied with the conditions
specified in the contract throughout the lease term and there is no outstanding debt to be paid to the Company, the
post-conditions shall be proposed to the customer as specified in the contract.

Policies on Supervision and Follow-up of Accounts Receivable
The Company has established policies to strictly supervise accounts receivable. The follow-up steps include:

1. The customer who fails to make payment for one month, shall be followed up by the finance department’s officer
whereby a letter of demand for outstanding debt repayment shall be issued.

2. The customer who fails to make payment for more than two months, shall be followed up by the debt acceleration
department’s officer. After that, the matter shall be forwarded to the legal office for further steps whereby legal steps
and follow-up steps shall be taken simultaneously to seize and get back the asset. In the case that the seized asset is
sold but the proceeds are not sufficient for the actual damage, the Company by the legal office shall file a lawsuit to
claim full damage as specified in the contract.

3. Risk Factors

The Company’s business involves a number of risk factors which may affect the operation of the Company’s business and
may pose a consequential risk to the Company’s unitholders in relation to failure to receive consideration or right which
should be received, details of which are as follows:

Risk with liquidity

It is an accepted fact that the company has pending debts, and these debts all have a finite date that are due. The majority
of the revenue that the company generates for the allocation of these debts are derived from lease service fees and lease
contracts. Risk could occur in situations where the pending debt at a certain time is higher than the revenue generated
by the company. Therefore, the company has given significant importance in the relationship of rent revenues and the
time frame of debts. The company has reverted to managing short term leasing through contracts and bill of exchange. In
matters of long term leasing, the company has reverted to debenture and long term installments with prominent financial
institutions. All these protocols were installed to be aligned with future revenue that is generated from leasing. Furthermore,
the company has established good relationships with prominent financial institutions for short term loans in response to
emergency situations.

Capacity to disburse Risk

Since the rental payment is the main income of the Company, therefore, a capacity to disburse of a lease is a significant
factor. That means if the lease is incapable of disbursement, it can affect the Company’s income and profit. Previously, the
Company has experienced low level of problems with regard to the quality of lessees as the Company has selected customers
with due care. Moreover, the Company has an efficient system to follow up customer’s payment, and also has set sufficient
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Interest rate Risk

The lease payment rate fixed throughout the term of the agreement has contributed to the steady income of the Company.
Part of Company’s loans is subject to the market rate of interest, having therefore a possible direct impact on the cost
and profitability of the Company. In response to these risks of interest rate, the Company has adopted a risk management
scheme of creating a balance between the Duration Gap and the Interest Rate Gap; while the Interest Rate Gap is
maintained in the level that the Company can still achieve constant profitability.
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Marketing and Competition Risks

An increasing number of leasing business operators has entered the market in the past years. These newcomers include
companies which have financial institutions as shareholders and car manufactures that provide automobile service who are
support with substantial amount of foreign capital. This raised the level of competition in the industry substantially which
could lead to less returns for each company. However, the Company has implemented a clear policy of selecting only
premium clients capable of repayment. Such clients are, for example, business in need of maintenance serviced for leased
assets. In addition, the company has adopted state-of-the-art computer technology in its management system with the aim
of providing and monitoring service with enhanced efficiencies.

Salvage Value Management Risks

The Company mainly engages in the business of “leasing” assets in the form of operating leasing to the operators who are
juristic persons. The leasing period is between 3 - 5 years. After the lease contracts end, most of the assets will be sold.
Thus, the price of the sold assets will affect the operational performance of the Company directly. If they are sold at a price
lower than the book value, it will cause the loss from the sale of assets. From the long experience in the management, the
Company can effectively manage the scrap value. However, resulting from the first-car policy, the used car prices dropped
considerably causing the significant impact on the profits gained from the sale of second-hand cars of the Company during
the past years. The Company has solved the problem by trying to increase the proportion of direct sales to users in order to
mitigate such effects.

4. Assets used in business operation

4.1 Investment policy in subsidiary and subsidiary
(Unit : million Baht)

Net Net Net
31 Dec 15 31 Dec 16 31 Dec 17
Receivables under finance lease contracts 1,703.67 1,996.19 2,196.37
Land Property and equipment
Assets held for lease-net 10,163.27% 10,099.80" 9,567.37"
Assets held for future lease 7.07 17.68 16.82
Office condominum 85.98 85.98 85.98
Office equipment 16.83 15.17 12.50
Transportation 17.32 6.94 3.84
Total land property and equipment 10,290.47 10,225.57 9,686.51
Total 11,994.14 12,221.76 11,882.88

Remark : " Asset held for operating lease contracts net after less impairment losses from 0.56 Millionbaht

4.2 Investment policy in subsidiary and subsidiary
-None

5.The legal dispute

-None
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6. Company Summary

6.1 General Information

6.1.1 Company Profile

Listed Company

Shorten name

Warrant trading symbol to purchase the issue
shares of PL

Register Date

Register No.

Capital investment

Capital Ordinary

The Par Value

Business type

Location

Home Page

Telephone

Facsimiles

6.1.2 Company Investment

Investment in subsidiary as of December 31, 2016

6.1.3 Contact Information for Reference

Register

Ee————— ) Company Information

: Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited.
. PL
: PL-W1

: August 15", 1996

: 0107537000211 (268)
: 646,200,489 Baht

. 596,492,874 Baht

: 1 Baht per share

. Phatra Leasing operates the business of Operating Lease. It others

the lease of assets including vehicles, planes, ships, machines,

computers and general appliances.

. 252/6, 29" Floor, Muang Thai Phatra Complex 1, Rachadaphisek

Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok 10320.

: www.phatra-leasing.com
. (66) 2290-7575

(66) 2693-2288

: (66) 2693-2298-99
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- Ordinary share

- Debentures (As of 31 December 2017)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.No.2/2014
(DUE B.E. 2018)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.No.4/2014
(DUE B.E. 2018)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.No.1/2015
(DUE B.E. 2018)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.No.2/2015
(DUE B.E. 2018)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.N0.3/2015
(DUE B.E. 2019)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.No.4/2015
(DUE B.E. 2019)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.No.1/2016
(DUE B.E. 2020)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.N0.2/2016
(DUE B.E. 2021)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.No.2/2016
(DUE B.E. 2023)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.N0.3/2016
(DUE B.E. 2019)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.No.4/2016
(DUE B.E. 2020)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.No.1/2017
(DUE B.E. 2019)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.No.2/2017
(DUE B.E. 2021)

- Debentures of Phatra Leasing Plc.N0.3/2017
(DUE B.E. 2020)
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Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
93 Ratchadaphisek Rd, Khwaeng Din Daeng,

Khet Din Daeng, Bangkok 10400

Tel : (66) 2009-9000

Fax : (66) 2009-9991

SET Contact Center : (66) 2009-9999
Website : http://www.set.or.th/tsd
E-mail : SETContactCenter@set.or.th

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited
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Auditor

Legal Advisor

Financial Consultants
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Mr. Bunyarit Thanormcharoen

CPA (Thailand) Registration No.7900
KPMG Poomchai Audit Co., Ltd.
Empire Tower, 50™-51% Floors, 1 South,
Sathorn Road, Bangkok 10120

Tel : (66) 2677-2000

Fax : (66) 2677-2222

Weerawong, Chinnavat & Partners Ltd.

540 Mercury Tower, 22" Floor, Ploenchit Road
Lumpini, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330

Tel : (66) 2264-8000

Fax : (66) 2657-2222

Noppong & Prasart Law office Ltd.

Suite 301, 3" Floor, Dusit Thani Office

946 Rama IV Road, Silom District, Bangrak Zone,
Bangkok 10500

Tel : (66) 2233-1745-6

Fax : (66) 2238-2848

-None-
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7. Share Capital and Shareholder
7.1 Number of Authorised share Capital and Issued and paid-up share Capital

Authorised share Capital 646,200,489 Baht
(Six hundred forty six million two hundred thousand four hundred and
eighty nine Baht)

Issued and paid-up share Capital 596,492,874 Baht
(Five hundred ninety six million four hundred ninety two thousand eight
hundred and seventy four Baht)

Registered Capital 596,492,874 Common Shares
(Five hundred ninety six million four hundred ninety two thousand eight
hundred and seventy four Shares)

Par Value 1 Baht

7.2 Shareholders

The first 10 major Shareholder of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited on 29 " December 2017

Individual/Juristic Person Number of share held Percentage

1. Muang Thai Life Assurance Company Limited 59,649,200 10.000%
2. Muang Thai Insurance Public Company Limited 53,000,400 8.885%
3. Sombat Lamsam Company Limited 45,600,000 7.645%
4. Muang Thai Holding Company Limited 41,550,800 6.966%
5. Chulindrawongs Company Limited 24,000,000 4.024%
6. Mr. Banyong Lamsam and Mrs.Narudee Weeramaeteekul 15,410,000 2.583%
7. Mrs. Nunta Rungnoppakunsi 13,934,000 2.336%
8. Mr.lthichai Leardthumanon 12,853,800 2.155%
9. Yupong Company Limited 12,323,402 2.066%
10. Mrs. Yupanari Sakpornsap 10,933,333 1.833%

Total 289,254,935 48.493%
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7.3 Other securities issuance

First Common Stock Warrants (PL-W1)

On 15" June 2015, the company has issued the company common stock warrants (PL-W1) to old shareholders for total
unit of 49,707,319. The company were approved by shareholders to allocate capital increase ordinary shares not more
than 49,707,730 units Warrants to purchase the ordinary shares of Phatra Leasing Plc. No. 1 (PL-W1), features, conditions
and contents of which are as follows:

Unit : 49,707,319 units
Value : Baht 0 per unit (zero Baht)
Number of Shares to be : 49,707,730 shares

Reserved for the Exercise
of Right under Warrants

Term of Warrants : 3 years (from the issue date, i.e., 15 June 2015 whereby the maturity date
and the last exercise date is 15 June 2018)

Right under the Warrants : To purchase the ordinary shares of Phatra Leasing Plc.

Exercise Ratio (New) : 1 unit of warrants per 1.010 ordinary share (which can be
adjusted pursuant to the conditions of the rights adjustment)

Exercise Price (New) : Baht 3.962 per share (which can be adjusted pursuant to
the conditions of the rights adjustment)

the conditions of the rights : The right under the warrants shall be exercised on the last business day
adjustment) Exercise Period of every quarter. (The first exercise date shall be 30 June 2017 and the
last exercise date shall be 15 June 2018.)

List of top 10 holders of the warrants to purchase the ordinary shares of Phatra Leasing Plc. No. 1 (PL-W1) as of 29
December 2017:

Name Number of Warrants % Warrants in
1. Muang Thai Life Assurance Company Limited 4,970,766 10.000%
2. Miss Arirat Choklomboon 4,230,000 8.510%
3. Sombat Lamsam Company Limited 3,800,000 7.645%
4. Muang Thai Holding Company Limited 3,462,566 6.966%
5. Miss Pimlaorn Limthammanisorn 2,800,000 5.633%
6. Miss Kason Laknum 2,300,000 4.627%
7. Chulindrawong Company Limited 2,000,000 4.024%
8. Miss Kitanun Rukkasikorn 1,782,500 3.586%
9. Yupong Company Limited 1,227,800 2.470%
10. Mr. Banyong Lamsam and Mrs. Narudee Weeramaeteekul 1,074,700 2.162%

Total 27,648,332 55.622%
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Debenture (as at 31 December 2017)

1. Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.2/2014 DUE B.E. 2018
Total Amount (Baht) 500,000,000
Offering Amount (Units) 500,000
Par Value (Baht per unit) 1,000
Tenor 4 Years Issued on 15 MAY 2014 Mature on 15 MAY 2018
Interest Rate 4.00%per annum Every 15 MAY and 15 NOV of each year
Registrar Bank of Ayudhya PCL

2. Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.4/2014 DUE B.E. 2018
Total Amount (Baht) 300,000,000
Offering Amount (Units) 300,000
Par Value (Baht per unit) 1,000
Tenor 3 Years 4 Months Issued on 1 OCT 2014 Mature on 1 FEB 2018
Interest Rate 3.75%per annum Every 1 FEB and 1 AUG of each year
Registrar Bank of Ayudhya PCL

3. Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.1/2015 DUE B.E. 2018
Total Amount (Baht) 500,000,000
Offering Amount (Units) 500,000
Par Value (Baht per unit) 1,000
Tenor 3 Years Issued on 16 FEB 2015 Mature on 16 FEB 2018
Interest Rate 3.12%per annum Every 16 FEB and 16 AUG of each year
Registrar Bank of Ayudhya PCL

4. Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.2/2015 DUE B.E. 2018
Total Amount (Baht) 450,000,000
Offering Amount (Units) 450,000
Par Value (Baht per unit) 1,000
Tenor 3 Years 5 Months 27 Days Issued on 22 APR 2015 Mature on 19 OCT 2018
Interest Rate 3.00%per annum Every 19 APR and 19 OCT of each year
Registrar Bank of Ayudhya PCL

5. Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.3/2015 DUE B.E. 2019
Total Amount (Baht) 500,000,000
Offering Amount (Units) 500,000
Par Value (Baht per unit) 1,000
Tenor 3 Years 6 Months Issued on 23 JUN 2015 Mature on 23 JAN 2019
Interest Rate 2.62%per annum Every 23 JAN and 23 JUL of each year
Registrar Bank of Ayudhya PCL

6. Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.4/2015 DUE B.E. 2019
Total Amount (Baht) 500,000,000
Offering Amount (Units) 500,000
Par Value (Baht per unit) 1,000
Tenor 4 Years Issued on 24 SEP 2015 Mature on 24 SEP 2019
Interest Rate 2.86%per annum Every 24 MAR and 24 SEP of each year
Registrar Bank of Ayudhya PCL

176 Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited |



meessssss————— ) Shareholder Structure and Dividend Policy

10.

11.

12.

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.1/2016 DUE B.E. 2020

Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)
Tenor 4 Years

Interest Rate 2.49%per annum
Registrar

500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 25 JAN 2016 Mature on 25 JAN 2020
Every 25 JAN and 25 JUL of each year

Bank of Ayudhya PCL

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.2/2016 SERIES 1 DUE B.E. 2021

Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)
Tenor 5 Years

Interest Rate 2.63%per annum
Registrar

500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 24 FEB 2016 Mature on 24 FEB 2021
Every 24 FEB and 24 AUG of each year

Bank of Ayudhya PCL

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.2/2016 SERIES 2 DUE B.E. 2023

Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)
Tenor 7 Years

Interest Rate 3.05%per annum
Registrar

200,000,000

200,000

1,000

Issued on 24 FEB 2016 Mature on 24 FEB 2023
Every 24 FEB and 24 AUG of each year

Bank of Ayudhya PCL

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.3/2016 DUE B.E. 2019

Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)
Tenor 3 Years

Interest Rate 2.24%per annum
Registrar

500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 17 AUG 2016 Mature on 17 AUG 2019
Every 17 FEB and 17 AUG of each year

Bank of Ayudhya PCL

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.4/2016 DUE B.E. 2020

Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)
Tenor 4 Years

Interest Rate 2.60%per annum
Registrar

Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.1/2017
Total Amount (Baht)

Offering Amount (Units)

Par Value (Baht per unit)

Tenor 2 Years 3 Months

Interest Rate 2.56%per annum

Registrar
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500,000,000

500,000

1,000

Issued on 28 SEP 2016 Mature on 28 SEP 2020
Every 28 MAR and 28 SEP of each year

Bank of Ayudhya PCL

700,000,000

700,000

1,000

Issued on 16 FEB 2017 Mature on 16 MAY 2019
Every 16 FEB and 16 AUG of each year

Bank of Ayudhya PCL
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13. Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.2/2017
Total Amount (Baht) 500,000,000
Offering Amount (Units) 500,000
Par Value (Baht per unit) 1,000
Tenor 4 Years Issued on 3 AUG 2017 Mature on 3 AUG 2021
Interest Rate 2.76%per annum Every 3 FEB and 3 AUG of each year
Registrar Bank of Ayudhya PCL

14. Debenture of Phatra Leasing PCL No.3/2017

Total Amount (Baht) 500,000,000
Offering Amount (Units) 500,000
Par Value (Baht per unit) 1,000

Tenor 2 Years 11 Months 18 Days
Interest Rate 2.43%per annum
Registrar

Issued on 18 OCT 2017 Mature on 6 OCT 2020
Every 6 APR and 6 OCT of each year
Bank of Ayudhya PCL

Long-term loans (as at 31 December 2017)

The company has obtained the long-term loans with five financial institutions totaling Baht 2,850 million and
outstanding obligations for long-term loans of Baht 2,076 million.

Bill of exchange and Promissory Notes (as at 31 December 2017)

The company has obtained outstanding obligations for short-term borrowings consist of bill of exchange (the term is
between 1 to 9 months) of Baht 550 million.

Promissory Note (as at 31 Dec 2017)
The Company has outstanding obligations for promissory note of Baht 280 million.

Credit Rating
As at 15 July 2017, Tris Rating affirmed company rating and debenture rating at A-.

7.4 Dividend Policy

A minimum rate of 50 percent of the net profit after tax and statutory reserve and various reserver as determined
by the company

Dividend Payment History

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Dividend Payment Details (1 Jan 13- (1Jan 14- | (1Jan 15- (1 Jan 16- (1 Jan 17-
31 Dec 13) 31 Dec 14) 31 Dec 15) 31 Dec 16) 31 Dec 17)
Net profit 205,086,100 140,123,623 | 170,998,988 220,171,327 221,889,418
Number of shares 447,369,569 447,369,569 | 596,492,753 596,492,753 596,492,874
Earnings per share 0.46 0.31 0.32 0.37 0.37
Dividend per share (Baht:share) 0.28 0.17 0.17 0.19 N/A
Net profit percentage 61.08 54.28 59.30 51.48 N/A
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8. Management Structure

8.1 The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is tasked to set the Company’s visions, policies, and strategies as well as to guide the Company’s

direction. It also has a duty to supervise the Company’s operation department to ensure that it follows the Company’s

policies with efficiency and effectiveness as well as to report its performance to the Board of Directors in order to benefit

the Company and its shareholders.

The Board of Directors of Phatra Leasing Plc. comprises :

Names

Positions

Mr.Photipong Lamsam

Chairman

Mr.Poomchai Lamsam

Vice Chairman / Chairman of the Remuneration and Selection Committee

Mr.Sara Lamsam

Director / Chairman of the Executive Committee / Member of the Remuneration
and Selection Committee / Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam

Director

Mr.Pipop Kunasol

Director and President / Member of the Executive Committee / Member of the Risk
Management Committee / Chairman of the Investment Committee

Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa

Director / Member of the Executive Committee / Member of the Risk Management
Committee / Member of the Investment Committee

Mrs.Chantra Purnariksha

Independent Director

Mr.Vichate Tantiwanich

Independent Director / Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan

Independent Director / Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Suebtrakul Soonthornthum

Independent Director / Chairman of the Audit Committee

Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag

Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee / Member of the
Remuneration and Selection Committee

Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul

Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee

Authorized Signatories

“The authorized directors who can sign to bind the Company are Mr. Photipong Lamsam, Mr. Poomchai Lamsam, Mr. Sara

Lamsam, Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam, Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa, Mr. Pipop Kunasol with the condition requiring 2 directors to jointly
sign together with the Company’s seal affixed.”
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8.2 Executives

The Company has 8 executives as defined by the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission, whose names are

as follows:
Names Positions
1. Mr.Pipop Kunasol President
2. Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn Executive Vice President Head of Price and Cost Management Group
3. Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong Executive Vice President Head of Supporting Group
4. Mr.Soottichai Sombatsir First Senior Vice President Head of Corporate Business Group
5. Mr.Thanan Suebsiri First Senior Vice President Head of Special Asset Business Group
6. Mr.Narupol Watanakun First Senior Vice President Head of Service and Asset Management Group
7. Mr.Danu Sukhavat First Senior Vice President Head of Finance and Control Group
8. Mrs.Karaked Junvanitrattana Vice President Head of Accounting Department
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The Board of the Directors

1. Mr. Photipong Lamsam
Position Chairman

(Authorized Signature)

Age 83 Years
The appointment on 1 June 2008
Education Background Masters of Business Administration (MBA), Temple University,
U.S.A.
Training Record -No-
Shares Percentage As of December 31, 2017
Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2017
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)
- Mr.Photipong Lamsam 169,866 0.028% 224,155 0.451%
- Yupong Company Limited
(Juristic person who hold the shares over 12,323,402 2.066% 1,227,800 2.470%
30%)
Total 12,493,268 | 2.094% 1,451,955 2.921%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period
Position/Company
(Year started - Present)

2017 - Present Honorary Chairman of Sermsuk PLC.
2011 - 2017 Chairman of Sermsuk PLC.
2008 - Present Chairman of Muang Thai Insurance PLC.
1998 — Sep. 2012 Chairman of Muang Thai Insurance Co.,Ltd.
2009 - Present Chairman of Muang Thai Holding Co.,Ltd.
2009 - Present Chairman of Muang Thai Group Holding Co.,Ltd.
2009 - Present Chairman of Sup Muang Thai Co.,Ltd
2008 - Present Chairman of Phatra Leasing PLC.
2008 - Present Chairman of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.

Family relation with other executive
- Father of Mr. Sara Lamsam and Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam

- Brother of Mr. Poomchai Lamsam
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2. Mr. Poomchai Lamsam
Position

Age
The appointment on
Education Background

Training Record

Vice Chairman

Chairman of the Remuneration and Selection Committee
(Authorized Signature)

68 Years

28 September 1987

B.A. Political Science, University of Colorado, U.S.A.

- Director Accreditation Program (DAP)28/2004 from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shares Percentage

As of December 31, 2017

Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2017
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)
- Mr.Poomchai Lamsam 3,540,000 0.593% 295,000 0.593%
- Mrs. Chudtraporn Lamsam  (Spouse) 20,000 0.003% 1,666 0.003%
Total 3,560,000 0.597% 296,666 0.597%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period
(Year started - Present)

Position/Company

2010 - Present

Director and Advisor to the President Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.

2010 - Present

Advisor to the President of Muang Thai Insurance PLC.

1993 — Present

Director of Loxley PLC.

1988 - Present

Vice Chairman / Chairman of the Remuneration and Selection
Committee of Phatra Leasing PLC.

1988 — Present

Director of Muang Thai Group Holding Co.,Ltd.

1998 - Present

Director of Muang Thai Real Estate PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- Brother of Mr. Photipong Lamsam

- Uncle of Mr. Sara Lamsam and Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam
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3. Mr.Sara Lamsam

Position

Age
The appointment on

Education Backeround

Training Record

Director

Chairman of the Executive Committee / Member of the Remuneration and
Selection Committee / Member of the Risk Management Committee
(Authorized Signature)

48 Years

29 January 2004

Master of Science in Administration, Boston University, U.S.A.

- Director Certification Program 4 (DCP 4) Thai Institute of Directors Association

- Executive courses in Applied Psychology Administration (Class 97) Applied Psychology Institute, National Defense

Studies Institute

- Courses for top executives Class 4, Capital Market Academy.

- Thailand Insurance Leadership Program (Class 1) Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)

- The course senior management, developing country (Class 1) Urban Green Development Institute Bangkok

- Chief Justice High (Class 17) Judicial Institute The Judiciary

- Program for Executives, Business Development, Industry and Investment (Class 1) Institute of Business and Industrial

Development

- Harvard Business School Advanced Management Program 186 Boston, U.S.A.

Shares Percentage

As of December 31, 2017

Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2017
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)

- Mr.Sara Lamsam 1,800,000 0.302% 80,000 0.161%

Total 1,800,000 0.302% 80,000 0.161%
Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period
Position/Company

(Year started - Present)

2017 — Present

Advisor, The Thai Chamber of Commerce

2017 — Present

Director of the Fuchsia Venture Capital Co.,Ltd

2016 — Present

Advisor of Association, Capital Market Academy Alumni

2016 — Present

Director and Member of the Risk Management Committee, Kasikornbank PLC.

2015 - Present

Advisor, the Society of Actuaries of Thailand.

2015 - Present

Vice Chairman of the Sovannaphum Life Assurance PCL.

2015 - 2560 Chairman of the Federation of Thai Insurance Organizations
2560 - Present Director, the Federation of Thai Insurance Organizations
2015 - 2016 Director, the Thai Financial Planners Association
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2016 — Present

President , the Thai Financial Planners Association

2015 - 2017

Advisor, Board of Trade of Thailand

2015 - Present

Director, the Social Research Institute Chiang Mai University

2013 - Present

Director, the Group of Finance and Investment, Board of Trade of Thailand

2012 - 2016
2016 — Present

President , the Thai Life Assurance Association (TLAA)
Vice President (Marketing), the Thai Life Assurance Association (TLAA)

2012 - Present

Executive Director, Police General Hospital Foundation under the Royal

Patronage of Her Majesty the Queen

2012 - Present

Advisory Director, The Thai Future Foundation

2011 - Present

Advisor, The Psychological Security Association of Thailand.

2010 - Present

President and CEO, Muang Thai Life Assurance Public Co., Ltd.

2003 — Present

Director, Muang Thai Life Assurance Public Co., Ltd.

2009 - 2016
2016 — Present

Director, Thai Reinsurance PLC

Independent Director, Thai Reinsurance PLC

2009 - Present

Chief Executive Officer and Director, Muang Thai Group Holding Co., Ltd.

2009 - Present

Chief Executive Officer and Director, Muang Thai Holding Co., Ltd.

2009 - Present

Member, Board of Trustees, Bangkok University

2009 - 2016

Director, Treasure Our Elephants Preservation Fund

2009 - Present

Director, Sup Muang Thai Co.,Ltd

2009 - Present

Member of the Risk Management Committee of Phatra Leasing (Public) Co.,
Ltd.

2008 — Present
2009 - Present

Director and Executive Director, Muang Thai Insurance (Public) Co., Ltd.
Advisor to the President, Muang Thai Insurance (Public) Co., Ltd.

2007 - Present

Director, Muang Thai Real Estate Public Co., Ltd.

2008 — Present

Director, Muang Thai Group Service Co., Ltd.

2007 — Present

Chairman of the Executive Committee and Member of the Remuneration and

Selection Committee of Phatra Leasing (Public) Co., Ltd.

2007 - Present

Director, Thailand Insurance Institute. (T1I)

2005 - Present

Pol. Gen. Pow Sarasin Foundation (Former name; Narcotics Control

FoundationX

2005 - Present

Managing Director, the Knowledge Network source association, Applied

Psychology Institute, National Defense Studies Institute

2004 - Present

Director, Phatra Leasing (Public) Co., Ltd.

2004 - Present

Executive Committee, Young President’s Organization (Thailand)

Family relation with other executive

Son of Mr.Photipong Lamsam

Brother of Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam

Grandchild of Mr. Poomchai Lamsam
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4. Mr.Pipop Kunasol
Position Director and President
Member of the Executive Committee / Member of the Risk Management
Committee / Chairman of the Investment Committee

(Authorized Signature)

Age 52 Years
The appointment on 25 January 2007
Education Background Master of Business Administration (MBA) Thammasart University

Training Record

- Audit Committee Program (ACP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

- Director Certification Program (DCP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shares Percentage As of December 31, 2017
-No-

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period .
(Year started - Present) Position/Company
2011 - Present Chairman of the Investment Committee of Phatra Leasing PLC.
2009 - Present President of Phatra Leasing PLC.
2009 - Present Member of the Risk Management Committee of Phatra Leasing PLC.
2007 - Present Member of the Executive Committee of Phatra Leasing PLC.
2007 - Present Director of Phatra Leasing PLC.
1992 - Mar 2014 Chief Financial Officer of Finance and Control Group of Phatra
Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

-  None
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5. Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam
Position Director
(Authorized Signature)

Age 52 Years
The appointment on 25 February 2011 - Present and 23 January 2007 — 11 February 2009
Education Background Master of Education Management of Boston University of USA

Training Record

- Director Certification Program (DCP 57/2003) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0OD)

Shares Percentage As of December 31, 2017
Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2017
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)

- Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam 1,800,000 0.302% 80,000 0.161%

Total 1,800,000 0.302% 80,000 0.161%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period .
Position/Company
(Year started — Present)

26 Feb. 2018 - Present Director of Do Day Dream Public Company Limited

2017 - Present Deputy Secretary General or the Thai Chamber of Commerce and
Board of Trade of Thailand

2017 — Present Member of the Investment Committee of Thai Institute of Director

2016 - Present Member of the Commission Assumption University Council

2016 - 26 Feb. 2018 Independent Director of Do Day Dream Public Company Limited

2015 - Present President of Port F.C. Club

2015 - Present Honorary Consul, The Republic of Lithuania for Thailand

Feb 27, 2014 - Present President and Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director,
Muang Thai Insurance PLC.

2008 - Feb 26, 2014 President of Muang Thai Insurance PLC.

2014 - 2016 Advisor to the President, The National Legislative Assembly

2014 - Present Director of The National Identity, Office of the Permanent Secretary to
the Prime Minister's Office, Government’s House

2014 - Present Expert Director, The Ministry of Social Development and Human
Security

2013 - Present Director of The Thai Chamber of Commerce

2007 - 2009 and Director of Phatra Leasing PLC.

2010 - Present

2009 - Present Advisor to the President of Mung Thai Life Assurance PLC.

2010 - Present Advisor to the President of Muang Thai Real Estate PLC.
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2010 - Present

Advisor to the President of Muang Thai Group Holding Co.,Ltd

2009 - Present

Honorary Chairman, Sung Aunorre (Bangkok) Co.,Ltd

Family relation with other executive

Daughter of Mr.Photipong Lamsam

Sister of Mr. Sara Lamsam

Grandchild of Mr. Poomchai Lamsam
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6. Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa

Position

Age
The appointment on

Education Background

Training Record

Director

Member of the Executive Committee / Member of the Risk Management
Committee / Member of the Investment Committee

(Authorized Signature)

42 Years

29 April 2016

PhD. Applied Mathematical Finance

Imperial College, London

- Director Certification Program (DCP 230/2016) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shares Percentage

As of December 31, 2017
_NO_

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period
(Year started - Present)

Position/Company

2016 - Present

Director of Phatra Leasing PLC.

2015 - Present

Executive Vice President, Muang Thai Insurance PLC.

2009 - Present

Member of the Risk Management Committee / Advisor to the President of

Phatra Leasing PLC.

2006 - Present

Market and Liquidity Risk Consultant of Government Housing Bank

2006 - Present

Advisor to the President of Muang Thai Insurance PLC.

2003 - 2014

Advisor to the President of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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7. Mrs.Chantra Purnariksha

Position Independent Director

Age 71 Years

The appointment on 25 November 2011

Education Background Master of M.A. Diplomacy and Comparative Economics University

of Kentucky, U.S.A
Training Record
- Director Certification Program (DCP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shares Percentage As of December 31, 2017
-No-

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period
Position/Company
(Year started - Present)

2013 - 2016 Director and President Saha Pathana Inter Holding PCL.

2011 - Present Independent Director, Phatra Leasing PLC.

2011 - Present Independent Director/Member of the Audit Committee,
Jasmine International PLC.

2012 - 2013 Independent Director/Member of the Audit Committee,
Kasikorn Bank PLC.

2007 - 2011 Secretary, Office of Insurance Commission

2006 - 2007 Director General of the Department of Insurance,
Department of Insurance

1975 - Present Director of S.P. Enterprise Co.,Ltd

Family relation with other executive

- None
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Mr.Vichate Tantiwanich

Position
Age
The appointment on

Education Background

Training Record

Independent Director

Member of the Risk Management Committee
56 Years

13 February 2012

Master MBA, Finance & Marketing

University of Hartford Connecticut, U.S.A.

- Director Certification Program (DCP2001) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0OD)

- Courses for Top Executive Class1 Capital Market Academy

- Certified Financial Planner : CFP

- Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade (TEPCoT 3)

- Diploma, National Defence College, The Joint State - Prirate sector Course class 26"
- The National Defence College of Thailand (NDC), year 2013-2014

Shares Percentage

As of December 31, 2017
_NO_

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period

(Year started - Present)

Position/Company

22 Feb. 2017 - Present

Chairman / Chairman of the Audit Committee / Member of the Remuneration
and Selection Committee, ASIA Aviation PLC.

2015 Director, Export-Import Bank of Thailand

2015 Advisor, The Ministry of Commerce

2014 - Present Director / Chairman of the Audit Committee, JWD Infologistics PLC.
2012 Senior Vice President, Thai Beverage PLC.

2012 - Present

Independent Director /Member of the Risk Management Committee,
Phatra Leasing PLC.

2008 - Present

Advisor, Thai — Japanese Association

2014 - 2015 Director / Member of the Audit Committee, Dhanarak Asset Development
Co, Ltd
2013 - 2015 Advisor Research and Corporate Governance of Thai Institute of Directors

(10D)

2010 - Present

Vice Chairperson, Capital Market Academy Committee The Stock Exchange of
Thailand : SET

2012 - 2015

Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee of M Pictures

Entertainment PLC.

Family relation with other executive

None
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9. Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan
Position Independent Director

Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

Age 52 Years
The appointment on 27 November 2008
Education Background Master Degree of Executive Program (MBA), Ramkhamhaeng University

Training Record
- Director Certification Program (DCP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shares Percentage As of December 31, 2017
-No-

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period .
(Year started - Present) Position/Company
2017 - Present Executive Director, BKK Commercial VIC Co.,Ltd
2014 - Present President, BKK Autohouse Karnjanapisak Co.,Ltd
2010 - Present Chairman of the Risk Management Committee, Phatra Leasing PLC.
2009 - Present Independent Director, Phatra Leasing PLC.
1988 - Present President, Benz BKK Vipavadee Co.,Ltd.
1988 - Present Vice Chairman of Executive, BKK Grand Estate Co.,Ltd.
1988 - Present Member of Executive Committee, Benz BKK Group Co.,Ltd. And SIAM NISSAN
BKK Co.,Ltd
1988 - Present Executive Director, BKK Chrysler Co.,Ltd.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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10. Mr. Suebtrakul Soonthornthum

Position Independent Director
Chairman of The Audit Committee
Age 75 Years
The appointment on 1 October 2016
Training Record MBIM, Hon.Dlitt : Curtin University — Australia

PMD. : Harvard University - U.S.A

National Defence College of Thailand

Training Record
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shares Percentage As of December 31, 2017
-No-
Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)
Period

Position/Company
(Year started - Present)

2016 - Present Independent Director/Chairman of the Audit Committee, Phatra
Leasing PLC.

2013 - Present Director of Bluescope Buildings (Thailand) Limited.

2004 — Present Director of United Overseas Bank PLC.(UOB)

2008 - 2010 Chairman of the Audit Committee / Member of Audit Committee of
United Overseas Bank PLC. (UOB)

2000 - Present Chairman of Muang Thai Real Estate PLC.

1999 - Present Director of BP-Castrol (Thailand) Limited.

1996 - Present Independent Director of Vanachai Group PLC.

2002 - 2005 Chairman of the Audit Committee / Member of the Audit
Committee, Vanachai Group PLC.

2016 — Present Executive Vice President, Loxley PLC.

1993 - 2016 Senior Executive Vice President, Loxley PLC.

1992 - Present Chairman of Foseco (Thailand) Limited

1987 - Present Director of NS Bluescope (Thailand)
Director of NS Bluescope Lysaght (Thailand) Limited.

1980 - 1986 Director of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.

1987 — Present Independent Director of Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC.

2001 - Present Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee of Muang
Thai Life Assurance PLC.

1977 - Present Director of Loxley Group

Family relation with other executive

- None
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11. Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag
Position Independent Director
Member of the Audit Committee / Member of the Remuneration and

Selection Committee

Age 65 Years

The appointment on 11 March 1994

Education Background Bachelor of Science Advertising Design University of Maryland at College
Park

Training Record
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)

Shares Percentage As of December 31, 2017
Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2017
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)
- Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag 296,000 0.050% 24,666 0.050%
Total 296,000 0.050% 24,666 0.050%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period
Position/Company
(Year started - Present)

1993 - Present Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee /
Member of the Remuneration and Selection Committee,
Phatra Leasing PLC.

2009 - 2011 Vice President Executive Officer, Piyavate hospital

2002 - 2007 Vice President, Piyavate hospital

Family relation with other executive

-  None
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12. Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul

Position Independent Director
Member of the Audit Committee

Age 70 Years

The appointment on 30 July 1999

Education Background Certificate of Higher Education in Accounting, King Mongkut’s University
of Technology

Training Record
- Director Accreditation Program (DAP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shares Percentage As of December 31, 2017
-No-

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period
Position/Company
(Year started - Present)

1999 - Present Independent Director/Member of the Audit Committee Phatra Leasing
PLC.

2000 - 2016 Independent Director/Member of the Audit Committee, Thai British
Security Printing PLC.

2000 - 2010 Director, Muang Thai Insurance PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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The Management

1. Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong
Position Executive Vice President Head of Supporting Group
Company Secretary,
Member of the Executive Committee and Secretary of Remuneration and

Selection Committee

Age 52 Years
The appointment on 30 December 2003
Education Background Master of Economics, University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce

Training Record
- Company Secretary Program (CSP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (I0D)
- Strengthening Anti-Corruption Practice in Your Boardroom from the Thai Institute of Directors
(I0D)

- Corporate Governance for Executives (CGE) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shares Percentage As of December 31, 2017
Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
30 Dec 2016 30 Dec 2016
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)
- Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong 1,782,000 0.299% 148,664 0.299%
- Mr. Apichat Kuenkong
(Spouse) 1,952,000 0.327% 162,833 0.328%
Total 3,734,000 0.626% 311,497 0.627%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)
Period

(Year started - Present)

Position/Company

Dec 2009 - Present Executive Vice President Head of Supporting Group,
Phatra Leasing PLC.

Jan 2007 - Present Company Secretary, Phatra Leasing PLC.

2007 - Present Member and Secretary of the Executive Committee /

Secretary of the Remuneration and Selection Committee,
Phatra Leasing PLC.

Jan 2007 - Dec 2009 First Senior Vice President Head of Supporting Group,
Phatra Leasing PLC.
1988 - 2007 Head of Administration Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

-  None
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2. Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn
Position Executive Vice President Head of Price and Cost Management
Group
Member of the Executive Committee and Member of the Risk

Management Committee

Age 54 Years
The appointment on 30 December 2003
Education Background Master of Business Management Okalahoma City University

Training Record

- Ethical Leadership Program (ELP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shares Percentage As of December 31, 2017
Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2017
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)

- Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn 254,661 0.043% 22,221 0.045%
- Mrs.Sutarut Chalothorn (spouse) 200,000 0.034% 16,666 0.034%

Total 454,661 0.077% 38,887 0.079%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period .
(Year started - Present) Position/Company

Feb 2015 - Present Member of The Risk Management Committee, Phatra Leasing PLC

Apr 2014 - Present Executive Vice President Head of Price & Cost Management Group,
Phatra Leasing PLC.

Sep 2012 - Mar 2014 Executive Vice President of System and Credit Group, Phatra Leasing PLC.

2007-Present Member of Executive, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Jan 2007 - Sep 2012 First Senior Vice President Head of Business Development Group,
Phatra Leasing PLC.

1990 - 2007 Head of Business Development Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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3. Mr.Thanan Suebsiri

Position First Senior Vice President Head of Special Asset Business Group
Age 48 Years
Education Background Master Of Business Administration (MBA) University of North Florida
The appointment on 1 March 2010
Training Record -No-
Shares Percentage As of December 31, 2017
Number of Shares Number of Shares
(PL) (PL-W1)
Name
31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2017
(Shares) (%) (Units) (%)

Mr.Thanan Suebsiri 20,000 0.003% 1,666 0.003%

Total 20,000 0.003% 1,666 0.003%

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period
Position/Company
(Year started - Present)

Apr 2014 - Present First Senior Vice President Head of Special Asset Business Group , Phatra
Leasing PLC.

Oct 2012 - Mar 2014 First Senior Vice President of Marketing & Sales 4 Department, Phatra
Leasing PLC.

2007 - 2012 Head of Marketing and Sale Department , Phatra Leasing PLC.

2003 - 2007 Manager of Business Development Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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4. Mr. Soottichai Sombatsiri

Position
Age
The appointment on

Education Background

Training Record

Shares Percentage

First Senior Vice President Head of Corporate Business Group
45 Years

1 February 2016

Master of Business Administration (M.B.A.), Chulalongkorn
University

-No-

As of December 31, 2017
_NO_

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period

(Year started - Present)

Position/Company

Feb 2016 - Present

First Senior Vice President Head of Corporate Business Group,
Phatra Leasing PLC.

Mar 2014 - Jan 2016

First Senior Vice President of Marketing & Sales Department,
Phatra Leasing PLC.

2007 - 2014 Vice President of Marketing & Sales Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.
2006 Assistance Vice President of Operation Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.
2002 - 2005 Manager of Operation Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

1994 - 2001 Assistance Manager of Finance and Accounting Department,

Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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5. Mr. Naruepol Watanakun
Position
Age
The appointment on
Education Background

Training Record

Shares Percentage

First Senior Vice President Head of Service and Asset Management Group
52 Years

1 February 2016

Master of Business Administration (MBA), Lincoln University, U.S.A

-No-

As of December 31, 2017
_NO_

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period

(Year started - Present)

Position/Company

Feb 2016 - Present

First Senior Vice President Head of Service and Asset Management Group,
Phatra Leasing PLC.

Mar2015 - Jan2016

First Senior Vice President Head of Maintenance and Insurance

Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

2002 - Mar2015

Vice President of Maintenance and Insurance Department,
Phatra Leasing PLC.

2002 - 2009 Vice President of Purchasing Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.
1999 - 2000 Assistance Manager of Marketing Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.
1995 - 1999 Marketing Officer, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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6. Mr.Danu Sukhavat
Position First Senior Vice President Head of Finance and Control Group
Member of the Executive Committee
Member of the Risk Management Committee and member of the
Investment Committee

Secretary of the Audit Committee

Age 44 Years
The appointment on 1 January 2010
Education Background Master Of Business Administration (MBA) Cleveland State University

Training Record
- Financial Statements for Directors (FSD) 26/2014 from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
- How to Develop a Risk Management Plan (HRP) 9/2016 from the Thai Institute of Directors
(I0D)

Shares Percentage As of December 31, 2017
_NO_

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period .

(Year started - Present) Position/Company
Feb 2015 - Present Member of the Executive Committee, Phatra Leasing PLC.
Apr 2014 - Present First Senior Vice President Head of Finance & Control Group, Phatra Leasing PLC.
Oct 2012 - Mar2014 First Senior Vice President of Finance Departmen, Phatra Leasing PLC.
2011 - Present Member and Secretary of the Investment Committee, Phatra Leasing PLC.
2009 - Present Member and Secretary of the Risk Management Committee,

Phatra Leasing PLC.

2009 - Present Secretary of the Audit Committee, Phatra Leasing PLC.
2009 - 2012 Head of Finance Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.
2005 - 2009 Manager of Finance Department, Phatra Leasing PLC.

Family relation with other executive

- None
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7. Mrs.Karaked Junvanitrattana

Position
Age
The appointment on

Education Background

Training Record

Vice President of Accounting Department

49 Years

1 October 2012

Master of Business Administration (MBA) Ramkhamhaeng University

- Ethical Leadership Program (ELP) from the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shares Percentage

As of December 31, 2017
_NO_

Work Experience (Over the past 5 years)

Period

(Year started - Present)

Position/Company

Sep 2012 - Present

Vice President Head of Accounting Department, Phatra Leasing PLC

1991 - Sep 2012

Manager Accounting Department, Phatra Leasing PLC

Family relation with other executive

- None
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Attendance at Each Committee’s Meetings in the Fiscal Year 2017 (January - December 2017)

The Company’s Board of Directors’” meetings shall be held at least once every 3 months whereby the meeting dates shall
be specified in advance each year and notice thereof shall be sent to the directors from the beginning of the year. Special
meetings may be held as may be necessary. In the fiscal year 2017 (January -December 2017), details of the attendance at

each committee’s meetings are as follows:

Number of Meetings

) Remuneration Risk )
Board of Audit . Executive Investment
) . and Selection | Management . .
Directors Committee . . Committee Committee
Names Committee Committee
(Total 12 (Total 4 (Total 16 (Total 5
Meetings) Meetings) (Total 3 (Total 4 Meetings) Meetings)
s s Meetings) Meetings) s :
1.Mr.Photipong Lamsam 8/12
2.Mr.Poomchai Lamsam 9/12 3/3
3.Mr.Sara Lamsam 12/12 3/3 2/4 15/16
4 Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam 9/12
5.Mr.Pipop Kunasol 12/12 a/4 16/16 5/5
6.Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa 11/12 a/4 16/16 5/5
7.Mrs.Chantra Purnariksha 10/12
8.Mr.Vichate Tantiwanich 8/12 3/4
9.Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan 8/12 a/4
10. Mr.Suebtrakul Soonthornthum 10/12 a/4
11.Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag 9/12 3/4 3/3
12.Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul 10/12 4/4
13. Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn 474 16/16
14. Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong 12/12 3/3 16/16
15. Mr.Danu Sukhavat 4/4 474 16/16 5/5
Numbers of Directors in each team as at 31 December, 2017
Board of Directors 12 persons
Audit Committee 3 persons
The Remuneration and Selection Committee 3 persons
The Risk Management Committee 7 persons
The Executive Committee 6 persons
The Investment Committee 3 persons
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8.3 Scope of Secretary

The company appointed Mrs.Thipsuda Keunkong to be secretary of the company Certification from company Secretary
Program (CSP) by the Thai Institute of Director (IOD)with the following scope of works.

1. Support the committee in relevant to rules and regulations.

2. Organize meeting of executive committee and shareholders in accordance with law and company’s regulations.

3. Provide initiate suggestion to the executive committee in relevant to rules, regulations, laws and conducts to
oversee the operations.

4. Be the data center of the organization such as business’ registration, memorandum of association, regulations,
shareholders’ registration and any other permits to operate the businesses

5. Oversee the disclosure of information to ensure that it is correct and timely.

6. Communicate with other shareholders to understand rights and company’s information.

8.4 Compensation of Committee Members and Management

1. Financial Compensation

Compensation of Committee Members Details

The BOD resolved to propose to the shareholders’ meeting to consider and approve the payment of the
remuneration and bonus of the directors regarding to the appropriateness, responsibility, and also company’s
financial statement. Furthermore, Directors who were assigned to respond in more than one committee shall
receive extra remuneration by additional responsible. In this regard, the payment of the remuneration and bonus
of the directors had been considered by the Remuneration and Selection Committee, proposed to the Board of
Directors of the Company, and was finally then proposed to the shareholders’ meeting for consideration.

According to 2017 shareholders” meeting conducted on 28 April 2017, the remuneration was approved and
paid by following details;

1. Remuneration of the directors

1.1 The Board of Directors shall receive monthly remuneration at the rate of Baht 20,000 / person / month
which was the same rate as that of the year 2016. The ratio of the remuneration of each director shall be as follows :

o Chairman 2 times
 Vice Chairman 1.5 times
» Directors 1 time

Whereby they shall not receive meeting allowance.

1.2 The remuneration of the committees: The meeting allowance shall be paid each time according toeach

committee’s meeting. The committees who are entitled to receive remuneration are as follows:

+ Audit Committee

» Remuneration and Selection Committee

* Risk Management Committee

The committees shall receive the meeting allowance at the rate of Baht 20,000 / person / time which was the
same rate as that of the year 2016. The ratio for the meeting allowance shall be in accordance with the ratio for the
remuneration of the Board of Directors. In this regard, members of the committees who are the representatives of
the management and the executive directors shall not receive the meeting allowance.

2. Bonus of the directors
The bonus of the directors shall be paid pursuant to the principle approved for the AGM, which is not more
than 5 percent of the total dividend payout to the shareholders, by authorizing the Chairman of the Board to determine
the criteria and allocate the Bonus.
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The remuneration of Directors for the accounting year of 2017 consisted of monthly remuneration, meeting allowance
paid by the numbers of attended meeting, and committee remuneration following the resolution of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of 2017 in the total amount of 8.65 Millionbaht which can be summarized in the following

details:
. . Remuneration and committee
Names of directors Positions . .
remuneration for the accounting year of 2017
Mr. Photipong Lamsam Chairman Remuneration as the Chairman in the amount of 480,000 baht. Bonus in the
amount of 647,142.86 baht.
Mr. Poomchai Lamsam Vice Chairman / Chairman Remuneration as the Vice Chairman in the amount of 360,000 baht.
of the Remuneration and Chairman of Consideration of the Remuneration and Selection Committee
Selection Committee 120,000 baht. Bonus in the amount of 485,357.14 baht.
Mr. Sara Lamsam Director / Chairman of Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
the Executive Committee Consideration of the Remuneration and Selection Committee 60,000 baht.
/ Member of the Consideration of the Risk Management Committee 40,000 baht. Bonus in
Remuneration and Selection | the amount of 485,357.14 baht.
Committee / Member of the
Risk Management Committee
Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam Director Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Bonus in the amount of 323,571.43 baht.
Mr. Pipop Kunasol Director and President / Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Member of the Executive Bonus in the amount of 323,571.43 baht.
Committee / Member
of the Risk Management
Committee/ Chairman of
the Investment Committee
Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa Director / Member of the Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Executive Committee Consideration of the Risk Management Committee 80,000 baht.
/ Member of the Risk Bonus in the amount of 323,571.43 baht.
Management Committee
/ Member of the Investmet
Committee
Mrs. Chantra Purnariksha Independent Director Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Bonus in the amount of 323,571.43 baht.
Mr. Vichate Tantiwanich Independent Director / Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Member of the Risk Consideration of the Risk Management Committee 60,000 baht. Bonus in
Management Committee the amount of 323,571.43 baht.
Mr. Anupon - Likitpurkpaisan | Independent Director Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
/ Chairman of the Risk Chairman of Consideration of the Risk Management Committee 160,000 baht
Management Committee Bonus in the amount of 323,571.43 baht.
Mr.Suebtrakul Independent Director / Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
Soonthornthum Chairman of the Audit Chairman of Consideration of the Audit Committee 160,000 baht.
Committee Bonus in the amount of Baht 80,892.86 based on the duration of his total
service
Mr. Arpatsorn Bunnag Independent Director Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
/ Member of the Audit Consideration of the Audit Committee 60,000 baht.
Committee / Member of the | Consideration of the Remuneration and Selection Committee 60,000 baht.
Remuneration and Selection | Bonus in the amount of 323,571.43 baht.
Committee
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Mr. Poonpipat Aungurigul | Independent Director Remuneration as the Director in the amount of 240,000 baht.
/ Director of the Audit Consideration of the Audit Committee 80,000 baht.
Committee Bonus in the amount of 323,571.43 baht.
Asso.Prof.Chawalee Independent Director/ Bonus in the amount of 242,678.57 baht based on the duration of her
Pongpatirachna® Chairman of the Audit total service
Committee
Notes : ™ Mr. Suebtrakul Soonthornthum has been appointed as Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee since

1 October 2016, and has been appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee in place of Asso. Prof. Chawalee Pongpatirochna
since 18 October 2016.
Asso. Prof. Chawalee Pongpatirochna resigned on 30 September 2016.

2
Management Remuneration
Management Remuneration is paid in accordance with policy, principle and rate set by the Board of Directors in
relation with the performance of the Company as well as the performance of management and employees individually.
Management includes President and the four First Management under the President by excluding the Accounting Vice

President who is not in the same level as the fourth management.

In the fiscal year of 2017, the Company has paid the remuneration to 7 Management with the total amount of 35.97 MB

which consisted of salaries and bonuses.

2. Other Remuneration

Other remuneration of directors

-None-

Other remuneration of executives

-Provident fund

The Company has established a provident fund by making contributions at the rates of 5%, 8% and 10% of salaries in

accordance with the years of service of each employee as follows:

0-5 years contribution rate of 5%
More than 5 -10 years contribution rate of 8%
More than 10 years contribution rate of 10%

In the fiscal year 2017 (Jan. - Dec. 2017), the Company paid contributions to the provident fund for 7 executives, totaling
Baht 2.79 million baht.
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8.5 Personnel

The Company considers the personnel as valuable resources of the Company and main factor to the success. Throughout
the past three years, the Company has never entered any labour dispute. Also, in 2017, the Company did not have any
statistics on occupational accidents and absence from work or illness due to work.

As of 31 December 2017, the Company has 148 permanent employees divided into the following groups:

Group/Office Number (persons)
Legal Office 10
Internal Audit Office 2
Corporate Strategy Office 3
Risk Management Office 1
Finance and Control Group 23
Corporate Customer Group 31
Special Asset Group 5
Corporate Supporting Group 23
Price and Cost Management Group 22
Service and Asset Management Group 29

As of 31 December 2016, the Company paid the remuneration to employee, totaling Baht 96.52 million bath, which
consisted of salaries and bonuses.

In addition, the Company has ensured that all employees shall be provided with appropriate welfare such as life
insurance and group health insurance, annual check-up and good working environment, and encouraged the employees
to play sports by establishing football club and badminton club for promoting good health. In addition, the Company
has encouraged the employees to save money as additional welfare for the employees and for use after retirement
or resignation whereby the Company has set up a provident fund for the employees and made contributions at the
rates prescribed by the Company’s regulations. The contributions shall be made in accordance with each employee’s
employment period as follows:

0-5 years . contribution at 5%
5-10 years : contribution at 8%
More than 10 years : contribution at 10%

Development of Directors, Executives and Employees in 2017

The Company targets to continuously improve knowledge and capabilities to directors, executives and employees
by providing training and seminar courses in accordance with annual training scheme to develop and increase their
potentiality in higher ability level. To develop knowledge and capability in 2017, the Company sent 142 employees to
attend training courses, divided into 4 in-house training courses including:

1. leasing business course to give the employees knowledge about leasing business and business direction of the
Company;

2. anti-corruption course to provide best practice for all employees and to create norm for operating business with
transparency as well as to ensure that they understand the roles, duties and management in the right direction and in
accordance with moral principles;

3. tax course to ensure that the employees know and understand relevant works;

4. course to enhance positive attitude, build up ethical consciousness, and encourage good relationship and
cooperation among the employees, as well as build up green consciousness; and
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In 2017, the Company also sent the employees to attend 24 public training courses. Based on a survey on training
needs or an evaluation by their superiors, the right employees were chosen to attend the right courses to improve their
knowledge, understanding, attitude, skill or expertise as well as experience in a specific field, and also to modify their
behaviors according to the training courses.

In this regard, for the purpose of increasing potentiality of the Company’s executives in 2017, the Company assigned the
directors and executives to attend training and seminar courses as follows:

Name Training/Seminar Course
Mrs. Thipsuda Kuenkong - Corporate Governance for Executives (CGE)
Executive Vice President by Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0OD)

Head of Supporting Group

Mr. Danu Sukhavat - Cash Flow Management and Financial Statement Preparation, Batch 11
First Senior Vice President by PSR Management Training Co., Ltd.

Head of Finance and - Corporate Tax Planning, Batch 18

Control Group by Management & Psychology Institute (MPI)

- Risk Management and Internal Control Program
by Thai Listed Companies Association

Mr. Naruepol Watanakun - Ethical Leadership Program (ELP 9/2017)
First Senior Vice President by Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0OD)

Head of Service and Asset
Management Group

Mrs.Karaked Junvanitrattana - New Update Tax : Corporate Tax Problems and Newly Issued Laws, XBRL
Vice President of Accounting by RSB Seminar Co., Ltd.
Department - Understanding Draft TRFRS9, TFRIC16 and TFRIC19

by Federation of Accounting Professions
- TFRS 16: Lease Agreements
by NYC Management Co., Ltd.
- Workshop on Preparation of Asset Report and Form for Notification of
Investment Scheme to Purchase New Assets
by Dharmniti Seminar and Training Co., Ltd.

Mr.Ukrit Chotitaksin - Anti-Corruption The Practical Guide (ACPG)

Vice President of Internal by Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0OD)

Audit Office - Fraud Audit by Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand
Mr.Sompol Srikasikul - Digital Social Innovation

Vice President of Customer by Absolute Alliance Co., Ltd.

Relations and Marketing Support | - Ethical Leadership Program (ELP 9/2017)

Department by Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0OD)

- Corporate Tax Planning, Batch18
by Management & Psychology Institute (MPI)
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9. Corporate Governance

In 2017, the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission made amendment to the Corporate Governance Code 2012
of the Securities Exchange of Thailand, by changing 5 sections into 8 principles. Besides, to be in line with the Corporate
Governance Code 2017, the Company’s Board of Directors has studied and considered the appropriateness of the application
of the Corporate Governance Code to the operations of the Company for sustainable development as follows:

1. The Company has established a proper and complete corporate governance policy;
2. The Company is studying to amend certain part of best practices to be in line with the Corporate Governance Code 2017.

However, the Company’s Board of Directors has assigned the management to handle the aforesaid matter and submit a
progress report to the Board of Directors from time to time.

9.1 Corporate Governance Policy

The Board of Directors places much importance on and has continuously adhered to good corporate governance practices
applicable to the directors of listed companies. It is responsible for the formulation of Company’s policies; establishment of
directions; supervise and monitor Management operations to ensure parties as well as the roles, duties responsibilities and
freedom among the board members; information disclosure, transparency, control, risk management and business ethics.
The Board has accordingly divided Company’s corporate governance policy into give main areas as follow:

1. Shareholders’ Rights

Rights and Equality of the shareholders

The Company recognizes the importance of shareholders and has the policy of fair treatment of shareholders according to the
law, such as the right to take part and attend the shareholders’ meeting; to give opinion and recommendations; to participate
in the consideration of various Company activities; to appoint proxies and proxies’ right to vote; to appoint and remove
individual directors; to appoint auditors and fix auditors’ remuneration and to receive information, Company operational
results and management policies.

Shareholders’ Meetings

The Company gives a great deal of importance to shareholders’ meeting. A general meeting of shareholders is held once a
year, the agenda of which is considered and fixed by the Board of Directors including other agenda to provide the opportunity
for every shareholder to have equal rights to ask questions, contribute ideas and provide recommendations to the Meetings
according to the proposed meeting agenda.

It is the policy of the Company that the Meeting precedes with transparency in accordance with applicable laws and the
SET regulations whereby each shareholder has the equitable rights to receive adequate information for decision making to
facilitate them in voting and voting by proxy. Therefore explanations concerning the method of voting and the counting of
votes shall be given prior to each meeting.

2. Equal Treatment to Shareholders

An internal control system has been set by the Board to cover all matters including financial control, operational control
Performance supervision and risk management to ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. The
internal audit is independent with the duty of auditing internal operations of the Company and assessing the adequacy and

suitability of the internal control system and to report its findings direct to the Managing Director and the Audit Committee.

Including setting up a system to prevent the Board of Director and/or the Executives Committee to trade their stock and shares
through insider trading, using any information for their own or others’ benefits (Abusive self-dealing)
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The Board places grate care on related transactions and those with conflicts of interest. Consideration steps have therefore
been fixed carefully, with honesty, reasonably and independently with a proper ethical framework including the fully disclosure
of information to prevent any conflict of interest as a whole.

On matter of monitoring the use of insider’s information, the Company bans all directors and Management from using and/
or disclosing insider’s information for the purpose of buying, selling, transferring, receiving the transfer of securities issued by
the Company before the said information is disclosed to the public. Each and every Board member band Management is fully
aware of the SET regulations re : reporting of the purchase and sale of securities and proper compliance therewith.

3. Rights of Interrest Parties

The Company recognizes the importance of each and every group of interest parties/stakeholders being the shareholders,
customer, trading partners, management, staff social and environment and takes into account their rights in complying with
the laws and in ascertaining that such rights are protected in an equitable manner as well as encouraging cooperation between
the Company and the interest parties in creating stability, workforce and secured business.

The Company encourages the operation of business in accordance with transparency, honesty and high ethical standards
and has fixed the tasks and objectives to be acknowledged and understood by each and every member of the Board, the
Management and staff of the scope of the responsibilities according to the laws and Company regulations. In order to follow
the code of business conduct, the Company has therefore fixed the code of conduct for each director, Management and staff
to adhere and practice along the same lone, as follow:-

1. Shareholders
The Company strived at conducting its business in order to attain the best interest for the Company and the
shareholders as a whole. Its takes into consideration the positive operational results, secured growth and
competitiveness in order to create a long-term value added for the shareholders. It also has the duty to disclosure
information to create transparency and accountability to the shareholders.

2. Board of Directors
The Board of Directors recognizes the rights and equitable and fair looking after of the rights of each and every
group of interest parties.

3. Staff

The Company regards the staff as its most valuable asset and is the major contribution to the company success.
It therefore aims at continuous developing staff acknowledge and expertise to enable them to achieve high-level
ability. It also places much importance on staff well-being and welfare.

4. Customers
The Company strives at creating the highest satisfaction and credibility to customers who will receive the
bestquality products and services with care and responsibility and the maintenance of good customer
relationship.

5. Trading Partners
The Company Places a great deal of importance to its trading partners/associates and treats them in accordance to
trading terms and conditions and contractual obligations, as well as fair and proper competition in a manner which
does not bring disgrace to its reputation or contrary to any law, and taking into due consideration the equality,
mutual interest and fair selection.

6. Creditors
The Company strives at performing its contractual obligations and conditions in respect of repayment,
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7. Responsibility towards society and environment
As a Thai-owned company, the Company recognized that it plays a part in the society with the responsibility
of helping society, promotion public activities and realizing the importance of environment protection to
improve public environment and society.

8 Farticipation in political activities
The Company takes a neutral stance and does not support any particular political party, Every director
Management and staff of all levels may participate in political activities within the provision of the Constitution as long
as such participation does not cause any damage to Company.

9. Discipline and compliance with regulations
The Company endeavors to operate its business in accordance with ethical standards and discipline. Each and
every director, Management and staff perform within the legal framework and applicable rules and regulations in
the with corporate code of conduct and staff practices.

4. Disclosure of information and transparency

It is the Board’s policy to disclose important financial and non-financial information relating to Company business and
operational results accurately, adequately, timely in a transparent manner to enable shareholders and interest parties to
receive information fairly. Investor relations have been established to serve as Company representative in communication
information of interest of interest to shareholders, investors, analyst and related persons to receive important information on
the Company accurately. The Company disseminates such information via the SET channels of cormmunication, newspapers
and Company website.

5. Board of Directors

Composition of the Board

The Board of Directors consisting of qualified and experienced persons from various fields is made up of a minimum
of 5 members and not exceeding 12. The directors appointed one of their members to preside as Chairman. One or
more vice-chairman may be appointed from members. The Company has diversified its powers, roles and duties in
formulating its corporate government policy and day-to-day administration. Therefore, the Chairman of the Board
and the President are not the same person. Moreover, the structure of the Board also includes independent directors
to ensure the balance of power and management re-examination. There is also clear cut separation of powers
and duties in the formulation of the corporate governance policy and day-to-day management to prevent
any one person from having unlimited powers.

The Board of Directors comprises at least 1 independent for every 3 directors, but the number of the independent
directors shall not be less than 3. Their qualifications are determined along the same line as those of the adult
committee members in accordance with the Announcement of the Securities Exchange of Thailand (SET) re :
qualifications of the audit committee members. Each Board member holds a 3 year term.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board of Directors has the powers and duties in conduction business in accordance with applicable laws, Company
objectives and Articles of Association, and shareholders’ resolution on the basis of honesty; in directing and maintaining
maximum benefits to the Company and its shareholders both current and long-term; and in complying with the rules and
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Stock Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange market.

Thus, the Board of Directors established the vision, policies and main strategies, as well as formulates Operational directions

and monitors management efficient and effective compliance with the established policies and operational reports to
Board so as to attain maximum value added to the Company and the shareholders.
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Selection of Directors

Directors are selected from qualifies persons according to background and experience from various fields
of occupation, possessing leadership skills, vision and the following qualification:-
1. The person should be qualifies persons according to the Public Companies Act and the Funds and stock
Exchange Market Act.
2. The person should possess knowledge, skill and experience beneficial to business operation Determination and
ethical business conduct.
3. The person should possess an ability to use discretion in a straight forward manner, independent of
Management and other interest groups.
4. The person should possess an ability devote sufficient time and is responsible for his own conduct. Thus, at
the shareholders’ meetings, the directors are appointed according to following criteria and method
1. Each shareholder has one vote for each share.
2. Each shareholder shall use all of his votes according to (1) to appoint one or several directors. However, he
cannot allot any number of his votes to any such person.
3. Persons having the most votes shall be elected in respective order up to number of directors being elected
at that time. In case of two or more candidates having an equality of votes, exceeding the number of
directors being elected at that time, the Chairman shall have the casting vote.

Leadership skill and vision of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of qualified persons with leadership skill, vision, freedom, in decision-making,
responsible for directing and monitoring business so as to achieve the maximum benefits to the Company and
the shareholders as a whole. It approves Company tasks, targets, business plans and budget as proposed by
Management and examines and oversees that operations are implemented accordingly to render effective
governance policy. Clear-cut division has also been made in respect of the duties and responsibilities
between the Board of Directors, Management and the Board of Directors and shareholders.

Remuneration for the Directors

The directors’ remuneration is fixed in a transparent manner and approved by the shareholders taking
into account the suitability and compliancy with the responsibilities as well Company financial standing.
Directors assigned to sit in other committees will receive additional remuneration in conjunction with
the additional work volume.

Including management and staff remuneration shall be according to the policies, principles and rates fixed by
the Board of Directors which shall correspond to corporate and individual performance.

Board of Directors’ Meeting

The Board meets once every quarter and special meetings can be convened as necessary. The notice
convening the meeting and relevant documents shall be sent to the directors by the secretary 7 days prior to
each meeting to afford the directors sufficient to make the proper review and study. The notice shall clearly
specify the agenda and full and complete documents. Each meeting shall take approximately one hour.
Minutes of the meetings are to kept in writing and certified by directors and can be accessed by directors and
inspected by persons concerned
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At least half of the number of directors shall be present to form a quorum. Decisions are made by the majority
of votes.

Evaluation of Board Operational Results
The Board of Directors realizes and has continuously practiced good corporate governance policy in compliance
with established policies and has used it as a guideline in evaluating its own performance.

Moreover, the Company has encouraged the Board to train and provide knowledge relating to Directors’ duties
and responsibilities of and the nature of Company business operation continuously for the benefit of Directors’
performance.

Relationship of the Board of Directors

The Company is well aware of the relationship among the Board of Directors, top level Management and
staff, has therefore clearly separated their powers, duties, and responsibilities in the formulation of its policies
and day-to-day administration.

This includes the disclosure of important information accurately, fully, timely in a transparent manner in
accordance with the various applicable laws and regulations. The Company disseminates information via the
SET channels if communications, newspaper and Company website.

Audliting and responsibility towards work performance

The company gives a great deal importance to the internal control systems. In the past there has been on case
of internal control deficiency with any significant impact upon the opinion of the financial auditors. The Board
has audited, reviewed and acknowledged the performance of the internal audit office as an independent unit
with the duty of auditing performances to ensure proper and effective compliance with policies, plans,
operational powers, and regulations.

9.2 Sub - Committees

The company’s management structure consists of the Board of Directors and the Sub-Committees appointed by the Board
of Directors. The Board of Directors is tasked to set the Company’s visions, policies, and strategies as well as to guide the
Company’s direction. It also has a duty to supervise the Company’s operation department to ensure that it follows the
Company’s policies with efficiency and effectiveness as well as to report its performance to the Board of Directors in order
to benefit the Company and its shareholders. The Sub-Committees of Directors have a duty to complete tasks assigned by
the Board of Directors. The company have the Board of Directors and the Sub-Committees consisting of:
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Board of Directors The names of the Audit Committee has 3 years tenure, consisting of :

Mr.Photipong Lamsam Chairman
Mr.Poomchai Lamsam Vice Chairman / Chairman of the Remuneration and Selection Committee
Mr.Sara Lamsam Director / Chairman of the Executive Committee /

Member of the Remuneration and Selection Committee /
Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam Director

Mr.Pipop Kunasol Director and President / Member of the Executive Committee /
Member of the Risk Management Committee / Chairman of the Investment Committee

Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa Director / Member of the Executive Committee / Member of the Risk Management
Committee / Member of the Investment Committee

Mrs.Chantra Purnariksha Independent Director

Mr.Vichate Tantiwanich Independent Director / Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan Independent Director / Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Suebtrakul Soonthornthum Independent Director / Chairman of the Audit Committee

Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee / Member of the Remuneration
and Selection Committee

Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee

Authorized Signatories

“The authorized directors who can sign to bind the Company are Mr. Photipong Lamsam, Mr. Poomchai Lamsam,
Mr. Sara Lamsam, Mrs. Nualphan Lamsam, Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa, Mr. Pipop Kunasol with the condition requiring 2 directors
to jointly sign together with the Company’s seal affixed.”

Scope of Authority and duties of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors shall have the authority to oversee and manage the Company in accordance with the law,
objectives and regulations of the Company, including the resolution reached at the shareholders meetings. They must
do so with honesty by putting the benefits of the Company and shareholders ant heart. The Directors must also obey

the rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Audit Committee The names of the Audit Committee has 2 year tenure, consisting of:

Mr.Suebtrakul Soonthornthum Chairman of the Audit Committee
Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag Member of the Audit Committee
Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul Member of the Audit Committee
Mr.Danu Sukhavat Secretary of the Audit Committee

Scope of authority and duties of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has the following duties and responsibilities to report to the Board of Directors:

1. To review the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate;

2. To review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are suitable and
efficient, to determine an internal audit unit’s independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer
and dismissalof the chief of an internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit;

3. To review the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations, and
the laws relating to the Company’s business;

4. To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the Company’s auditor, and to propose such
person’s remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management meeting with an auditor at least once a year;

5. To review the Connected Transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure
that they are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are reasonable and for the highest
benefit of the Company;

6. The Audit Committee shall work with the Internal Audit Office to implement and review the Anti-Corruption Policy.
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7. To prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual report, an audit committee’s report which must be
signed by the audit committee’s chairman and consist of at least the following information:
(@) An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial report,
(b) An opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system,
(c) An opinion on the compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations, or
the laws relating to the Company’s business,
(d) An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,
(e) An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests,
() The number of the audit committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each committee
member,
(g) An opinion or overview comment received by the audit committee from its performance of duties in
accordance with the charter,
(h) Other transactions which, according to the audit committee’s opinion, should be known to the
shareholders and general investors,
8. To perform any other act as assigned by the Company’s board of directors, with the approval of the audit
committee.

Mr. Suebtrakul Soohornthum , Chairman of the Audit Committee has knowledge and experiences to examine
the reliability of the financial statements.

The Remuneration and Selection Committee Consists of 3 directors, at least one of whom must be an independent
director. They serve 3 years in office.

Mr.Poomchai Lamsam Chairman of the Remuneration and Selection Committee
Mr.Sara Lamsam Member of the Remuneration and Selection Committee
Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag Member of the Remuneration and Selection Committee
Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong Secretary of the Remuneration and Selection Committee

Scope of authority and duties of the Remuneration and Selection Committee

1. To consider remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Sub-Committees.

2. To consider remuneration for the President and/or the person holding the highest position of the Company,
including salaries, annual bonuses and other types of payments; and to propose their considerations to the
Board meetings for approval.

3. To review and set remuneration for internal officers as proposed as the Management Department, including
the annual salary increment, the restructure of salaries and the annual bonuses; to propose their considerations
to the Board of Directors; and to advise on their considerations to the Management
Department.

4. To select capable, qualified individuals without any characteristics deemed unfit by the law and other
supervising units to assume the position of President and the highest-ranking executives of the Company
when such positions are available; and to propose their selection to the Board of Directors for approval.

5. To carry other tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors.

The Risk Management Committee The name of The Risk Management Committee has 3 years tenure, consisting of :

Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Sara Lamsam Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Pipop Kunasol Member of the Risk Management Committee

Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Vichate Tantiwanich Member of the Risk Management Committee
Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn Member of the Risk Management Committee

Mr.Danu Sukhavat Member and Secretary of the Risk Management Committee

m Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited |



Eaes—————— ) Corporate Governance Policy
The Risk Management Committee

1. Setting up to meeting cooperates with executive committee to operational plan to assign standard of the
risk management and standard of control the risk management, addition the risk management system to
aim into a conversation for strategies, goal and to direction of management to business plan to present to
Executive committee.

2. To regulated and recommend to the Board of Directors about the policy of risk management, standard of
operations process, strategies and performance to risk condition for confidence that the company has proper
and adequate internal control system.

3. To followed and reviewed the company’s policy and the risk management system are sufficient and to
compliance with the company’s plan.

4. To reported to the Board of Directors has been held through it’s sustain. That mean to development and
adjust to be consistent which company’s policy and standard the risk management.

5. To carry other tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors

The Executive Committee Consisted of representative from the Board of Directors and the Management Department
to investigate the administration and management aspect.

Mr.Sara Lamsam Chairman of the Executive Committee

Mr.Pipop Kunasol Member of the Executive Committee

Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa Member of the Executive Committee
Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn Member of the Executive Committee

Mr.Danu Sukhavat Member of the Executive Committee

Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong Member and Secretary of the Executive Committee

Scope of authority and duties of the Executive Committee

1. Cooperate cooperates with the company’s daily administration department and in processing the business
plan and budget.

2. Review and approve on general agenda and complete assigned task from the Board of Directors and report
to the board.

3. Review other matter which is not a usual agenda and/or not in the business plan and budget that can
affect the company’s financial status, income, or reputation; including reviewing a newly launched activity
or product, and report to the Board of Directors for further consideration.

4. Verify the risk management procedure, including legal procedure, rules and related policies.

The Investment Committee Consisted of representative from the Board of Directors and the Management Department, to
choose even more effective funding resources and financial structure which comprised of:

1. Mr. Pipop Kunasol Chairman of the Investment Committee
2. Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa Member of the Investment Committee
3. Mr. Danu Sukhavat Member and Secretary of the Investment Committee

Scope of authority and duties of the Investment Committee

1. Review company’s capital structure

. Consider company’s balance sheet management such as capital raising, credit lines with financial institutions
(including asset-liability management policy)

. Consider company’s asset management

. Consider liquidity and company’s funding policy to be consistent with company’s medium term business plan

. Plan and develop company’s financial strategy

. Consider topics which will affect company’s credit rating

. Carry other tasks as assigned by the board of director
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9.3 Selection of Directors and Executives
Selection of Directors

The directors has the power to select a qualified person and present it at a meeting of shareholders for voting weather the
person can join the Board of directors, by considering the majority vote from the present shareholders. In any case, other
than a termination period, that a position in the board is available, the Board of recruitment shall be assigned to replace the
available position. However, this has to be consent with a vote no less than votes from the remaining directors. Thus, the
person whom was selected shall remain in the position until the termination period of the prior-director.

Directors are selected from qualities persons according to background and experience from various fields of occupation,
possessing leadership skills, vision and the following qualifications

1. The person should be qualified according to the public Companies Act and the Funds and Stock Exchange
Market Act.

2. The person should posses of knowledge, skill, and experience beneficial to business operation, determination
and ethical business conduct.

3. The person should posses an ability to use discretion in a straight forward manner, independent of Management
and other interest groups.

4. The person should posses ability devotes sufficient time and is responsible for his own conduct.

Independent Committee Recruitment

Searching for an independent committee, the Remuneration and Selection Directors will be responsible in determining
and considering candidates that have the proper qualifications; the names of the candidates will be submitted to
the Management for final consideration. These names will then be taken to discussion with the shareholders. The
shareholders will then select individuals of the list and an independent committee will be formed.

The independent committee will be individuals that can work independently in accordance with the announcements
of the Committee of Market Investments and the Office of Stock Market Supervision. Furthermore, the individuals of
the committee must always put forth the interest of each and every single shareholder of the company and assure
that there will be no conflict of interest and are independent from the Management. These individuals must be able to
attend meetings and will submit their suggestions to the Management openly. The qualifications of the individuals of
the independent committee are as follows:

1. Is a current shareholder, and have shares that can represent all the licensed agents. Shares that are of the
corporation, conglomerates, group companies, majority shareholder, or any group or individuals that may influence
on registered licensed agents will be considered as one voice equivalent to the independent committee.

2. 1s not currently, or never had been a member of the Board of Management, an employee, staff, consultant, or
in any positions that have received financial compensation from the company or in a position to have influence on
the licensed agents. If an individual falls in one of the categories, eligibility for the candidacy will be open once that
individual has relinquish all ties with the member for at least two years as of the date from resignationtill
application. This article does not apply to the independent committee member that was previously a
government official, a consultant of a government agency that is a majority shareholder, or individuals that may
influence on registered licensed agents.

3. Is not a family relative or have any relationship (e.g. any civil documentation explaining family or relationship) with
the company’s Management, majority shareholder, individuals that are recommended as management, individuals
that may influence on licensed agents, or minor companies.

4. Does not have or used to have business relationships with a licensed agent, the corporation, companies that are
minor or part of the group of companies, majority shareholder, or individuals that can influence licensed agents, or
any association that could influence that outcome of the independent decision. Is not or used to be a shareholder
that is associated with individuals that are associated with individuals that influence licensed agents, the
corporation, minor companies, group companies, majority shareholder, individuals that influence licensed agents.
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If an individual falls in one of the categories, eligibility for the candidacy will be open once that individual has
relinquish all ties with the stated conditions for at least two years as of the date from resignation till application.
Business relationships as mentioned in previously also includes documentation of trade transactions that are
part of daily business conduct, renting or leasing real estate, reports on property and services, giving or receiving
any form of financial support in forms of receiving or lending, assuring on behalf, assuring with property in debts,
or any forms of activity that fall in the same category, which may result in the registered licensed agent or
members of any party of a contract bind to a debt. 3% of the property value used by the requested licensed agent
or may worth more than twenty million Baht, or which item is deemed more valuable. The total sum of debts will
be calculated based on the value of terms in accordance with the announcement of Office of Market Investments
Supervision. All terms will be reviewed according to the surmounted sum of debts, calculated according to the debts
that have occurred over the previous year before the current business relationship with the mentioned
individuals.

5. 1s not or used to be an account auditor of a licensed agent, corporation, minor company, group company, majority
shareholder, individual that can influence licensed agents, and a shareholder that may have business interests with
account audit offices; that currently has an existing audit of the licensed agent, corporation, minor company, group
company, majority shareholder, individual that can influence licensed agents, unless that individual has relinquish
all ties with the stated conditions for at least two years as of the date from resignation till application, will they be
eligible for application.

6. Is not or used to be an individual that have given expertise services, which includes consultation on legal or
financial matters, and receive a compensation of the service fees exceed more than two million Bath per annum
from the licensed agent, corporation, minor company, group company, majority shareholder, individual that can
influence licensed agents, and a shareholder that have business interest, individual that can influence or partners
of the individual that is providing the expertise services. Unless that individual has relinquished all ties with the
stated conditions for at least two years as of the date from resignation till application, will they be eligible for
application.

7. In not a committee member that is acting on behalf of the licensed agent, majority shareholder, or a shareholder
that is associated with the majority shareholder.

8. Is not an individual that is currently conducting business that is similar with the company, which may cause
conflicts of interests with the licensed agent or minor companies, or have shares with other conglomerates, or is a
committee member that has managing influence, an employee, a staff, consultant that currently receives monthly
compensation, or hold more than 1% shares in other companies that practice similar business as the company,
which may cause conflicts of interests with the licensed agent or minor companies.

9. Does not have any matters that inhibit his/her ability to express opinions independently about the Management
of he licensed agent.

After appointment as a member of the independent committee that have the complete qualifications stated in
Articles 1 to 9, the independent committee will have a task instructed by the Management to review the current
business practices of the licensed agent, corporation, minor company, group companies that have shares
equivalent to majority shareholder, individual that can influence licensed agents; the decision will be concluded
by a collective decision. According to the decisions stated in Articles 2, 4, 5, and 6, on matters of the applications
of the candidates two years prior the date of application. The conditions of application will officially be in effect
from July 1, 2010 onwards.

In conditions where the individual was nominated by the licensed agent to be appointed as a member
of the independent committee, and that individual is or used to have business relationships or provided
expertise services that exceed the sum stated in Article 4 or 6, the licensed agent will have an extension on
the conditions that state the existing business relationship and expertise services that exceed the stated sum.
This extension will be in effect upon the license agent demonstrates to the Management of the company
that the consideration process is in accordance with Charter 89/7, which states that appointing the concerned
individual does not have any effect on the responsibilities or process of giving independent suggestions.
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The following clause is a transparent explanation found in the documents of the shareholder meeting on the
subject of appointing the independent committee.

a. The characteristics of the business relationship or expertise services provided to the respected
individual does not fall in the category stated.

b. Reasons and pending necessity in appointing the respected individuals as members of the
independent committee.

c. The comments of the Management of the licensed agent concerning the appointment of the respected
individuals as members of the independent committee in the interests as stated in Article 5 and 6
concerning the term “partner”, is defined as individuals that are certified by the Office of Licensed
Auditors or individuals that provide expertise services and ratified on the account audit reports, or the
expertise service reports (depending on the case), on behalf of the company only.

Selection of Executives

Concerning the members of the company’s executive board, the Board of Directors is responsible for the consideration
and selection of candidates that are eligible and qualified for the appointment of the designated positions from
The Head of Group and higher. The names of the candidates will be submitted to the Remuneration and Selection
Committee for consideration and official appointed by the Board of Directors.

Furthermore, concerning the matters of appointing the Director of the Internal investigation Committee, the Board
of Directors is responsible for the consideration and selection of candidates that are eligible and qualified for the
appointment of the designated positions from department directors and higher. Thus, the names of the candidates
will further be submitted to the Committee of Auditors for consideration. Next the names of the candidates will be
forwarded to the Remuneration and Selection Committee for the final approval of appointment. After the members of
the Remuneration and Selection Committee conclude upon their decision, the appointment will be made official to
the Board of Directors.

9.4 Corporate Governance in Company and Subsidiary Company
-None-
9.5 Supervision of Usage of Internal Information

With respect to the supervision of usage of internal information, the Company has established guidelines for practice for
the supervision of usage of internal information and the sale and purchase of the Company’s securities for its directors and
executives as defined by the Notification of the SEC, and also assigned the directors, executives and employees at all levels
to have the duties to keep confidential the following information and documents:

- internal information which has not yet been disclosed to the public;

- information which has been kept for the Company’s use only, not for personal use;

- information which has been kept undisclosed temporarily such as information from financial statements which have
not yet been submitted to the Securities Exchange, the Company’s operating results, capital increase/decrease, joint venture,
dividend payment, merger, acquisition and entering into significant commercial contracts; and

- documents which cannot be disclosed to outsiders as the disclosure thereof may lead to benefit seeking for themselves
or families or associates wrongfully such as information affecting securities price, trade secret and invention formula belonging
to the Company.
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In addition, the Company has established guidelines for the supervision of usage of internal information and for securities
trading as follows:

1.The Company’s directors and executives are prohibited from using and/or disclosing internal information to others before
such information is disclosed to the public;

2.The Company’s directors and executives including insiders who know the Company’s internal information are prohibited
from trading securities during a period of one month before such information is disclosed to the public and a period of 4 days
after the disclosure of such information to the public.

3. The Company’s directors and executives as defined in the Notification of the SEC have the duties to report their trading /
possession of securities of the Company in forms 59-1 (within 30 days) and 59-2 (within 3 days) to the Office of the SEC, and
submit a copy of such report to the Company.

In this regard, the Company has prepared a written code of ethics for employees so that the employees at all levels will be
informed and adhere to this code of ethics as euidelines for practice and basic standard for the employees to conduct
themselves ethically. This code of ethics shows that the Company is determined to comply with the law, rules, regulations
and articles of association of the Company. By this code of ethics, the employees will be made aware of what they should
be careful and will prevent them from doing any acts which constitute a breach of law, rules, regulations and articles of
association and tarnish the reputation of the Company.

9.6 Remuneration of Auditors
Appointment and Consideration of Remuneration of Audiitors

The Audit Committee considered and proposed appointment of certified auditors and their remuneration by proposing
thematter to the Board of Directors of the Company in the appointment of the Company’s auditors each year for approval
by the shareholders’ meetine.

In this regard, in the year 2017, the shareholders’ meeting considered approving appointment of the Company’s auditors and
fixing their remuneration for the fiscal year 2017 as follows:

The auditors from KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd. consisting of
- Miss Pantip Gulantithamrong, Certified Public Accountant No. 4208 and /or
- Mr.Chanchai Sakulkerdsin, Certified Public Accountant No. 6827 and / or
- Mr. Bunyarit Thanormcharoen, Certified Public Accountant No. 7900

The afore mentioned 3 persons had no relationship or conflict of interest with the Company / affiliated companies /
executives / major shareholders or any persons related to such persons. Thus, they were independent in auditing and
commenting on the Company’s financial statements. The audit fee for the fiscal year 2017 with the total amount of 1,450,000
bath.
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All employees have the duty to strictly comply with this Anti-Corruption Policy.

We, Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited, are committed to conducting business honestly, transparently, fairly,
responsibly and cautiously under applicable laws, rules, regulations and relevant standards. We, therefore, deem it
appropriate to establish the “Anti-Corruption Policy” to clarify the actions to be taken to fight corruption. Our objective
is to ensure that all of our directors, executives and employees acknowledge, understand and strictly adhere to the

principles hereunder.

1. Anti-Corruption Policy

“The Company’s directors, executives, and employees shall not accept any form of corruption, whether
directly or indirectly, such as acceptance of items, gifts, receptions, contributions, donations and any other benefits
given to them from any individual/organization who/which are doing business with the Company.” This prohibition
shall also apply to all of our employees, business partners, customers and stakeholders inside and outside the country.

The compliance with the Anti-Corruption Policy shall be regularly reviewed at least once a year.

2. Definition

2.1 “corruption” means any form of action taken in attempt to procure undue advantages for themselves or
others, such as giving/receiving of bribes and incentives, gifts, donations, contributions, participation in political activities
and/or giving/receiving of any other benefits which are not proper for government officials, government agencies,
private enterprises or competent officials, whether directly or indirectly, in order to induce them to do a certain kind of
act or omit to perform their duty, or in order to acquire or maintain any other undue advantages unless permitted by

applicable laws, rules, notifications, regulations, local traditions or trade customs.

2.2 “giving of items or any other benefits” means the giving of special privileges in the form of money, properties,

things or any other benefits as remuneration or reward, or to build good relationships.

2.3 “bribery” means the offering, giving or receiving of items, gifts, rewards or any other benefits for themselves

or from the person who wishes to convince them to do something dishonestly, illegally or unethically.

3. Duties and Responsibilities

3.1 The Company’s Board of Directors has the duties to consider and approve anti-corruption policy as well as

to encourage the implementation of efficient anti-corruption systems.

3.2 The Audit Committee has the duties to supervise and oversee internal control systems including any other

processes relating to anti-corruption activities.

3.3 The Internal Audit Office has the duties to implement the internal audit plan formulated and to report the
results to the Audit Committee.

3.4 The Company’s executives have the duties to communicate and ensure that their subordinates acknowledge,

understand and comply with this Anti-Corruption Policy.

3.5 All directors, executives and employees have the duty to comply with this Anti-Corruption Policy.
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4. Procedural Steps

Explanation Procedural Steps
1.1 The Company’s Board of Directors shall Start
show the commitment to the fight against
corruption by assigning the Chairman of the +
Board of Directors to sign the declaration of The Company’s Board of Directors shall pass a resolution to join the

declaration of intent to fight corruption whereby the Chairman of the

intent to fight corruption. . ) ) i
Board of Directors shall sign the declaration of intent.

1.2 The Company’s Board of Directors shall +
appoint (1) Audit Committee to review 71 + +
clauses of self evaluation form; and (2) Risk Audit Committee Risk Committee
Committee to assess corruption risks. <hall review self evaluation form shall review/

in relation to anti-corruption assess corruption risks.
1.3 The Audit Committee shall review and Measures.
propose 71 clauses of self evaluation form | |
to the Company’s Board of Directors for +
approval and then apply for certification by Audit Committee shall review and propose 71 clauses of self
the Private Sector Collective Action evaluation form to the Board of Directors for approval

and then apply for certification by CAC.

¥

The high level executives shall communicate with all working units

Coalition Against Corruption Council (CAQ).

1.4 The high level executives shall

communicate with all other executives and in the organization and establish best practices to show our
employees in the organization to ensure commitment to the anti-corruption policy.
that they acknowledge the policy, best +

practices and evaluation methods.

Review and evaluation shall be conducted every year.

1.5 The management requires that +
anti-corruption measures be reviewed,

End

monitored and evaluated every year.

5. Anti-Corruption Practices

5.1 AWl directors, executives and employees have the duty to resist any forms of corruption including giving/
receiving of bribes, incentives, gifts, donations, contributions, participation in political activities and/or giving/receiving of
any other benefits which are not proper for government officials, government agencies, private enterprises or competent
officials, whether directly or indirectly, in order to induce them to do a certain kind of act or omit to perform their duty,
or in order to acquire or maintain any other undue advantages unless permitted by applicable laws, rules, notifications,

regulations, local traditions or trade customs.

5.2 All directors, executives and employees shall not use their powers and duties to seek benefits for themselves,
their families, friends, acquaintances and/or any other related persons as well as to do any act which may cause
conflicts of interest. They shall put the common interest above self-interest and perform their duties to protect the

Company’s interests and to prevent conflicts of interest.

5.3 All directors, executives and employees shall strictly adhere to and comply with the Anti-Corruption Policy.
Violation of the Policy shall be deemed severe discipline violation. Punishment shall be imposed according to the

Company’s rules and regulations stipulated and/or to be announced in the future.
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5.4 We have provided channels for giving information or clues from both our employees and outsiders whereby
we shall administer justice and protect the rights of the informers and/or the employees who refuse and/or inform of
corrupt transactions relating to the Company, whether in relation to their work performance, punishment or any other

action which may have a negative impact on such employees.

5.5 The Company’s employees and executives shall not ignore or neglect any actions found or seen by them
which may be considered as corrupt transactions relating to the Company whereby they shall inform their superiors
or the persons in charge and give cooperation in fact finding. If they have any inquiries or questions, they shall, via
channels provided, ask for advice from their superiors or the person assigned to monitor the compliance with the

Company’s code of conduct.

5.6 In order to establish norms for carrying on business, our policy is to refrain from accepting gifts on New Year

celebration and any other occasions given to the Company’s executives and employees.

5.7 We require that the Anti-Corruption Policy be continuously communicated via the Company’s communication
channels such as e-mails, the Company’s website, annual reports and etc. We also provide anti-corruption training

courses for our employees.

5.8 We place importance on dissemination of knowledge and understanding with other persons who shall

perform the duties in connection with the Company and stakeholders of the Company in order to raise consciousness.

For clarification of actions relating to the risk of corruption, the Company’s directors, executives and employees

at all levels shall perform duties by exercising caution in the following matters:
1. A nce of Iltems or An her Benefi

1.1 Acceptance, request for or solicitation of gifts, receptions, services, financial supports or any rewards from
business partners, business alliances, creditors or stakeholders of the Company, which may influence decision making,

are prohibited. If it is necessary to accept gifts, presents and/or receptions, they shall report the matter to their superior.

1.2 A request for cash or in-kind support may be made from one organization to another organization whereby

such request shall be signed by the authorized persons.

1.3 In the case of acceptance of gifts or presents on customary occasions or celebrations which should be given
to maintain good relationships among individuals or organizations, the price or value of such items or benefits shall not
exceed Baht 3,000, and only the person assigned by the Company shall be the Company’s representative to accept

such items or benefits by taking the following steps:

1.3.1 All of the gifts, presents or any other benefits received shall be recorded in the form of “Gift and
Present Acceptance Report” and such report shall be submitted to the department in charge (Activity Support Team)

to keep a record of the Company’s gifts.
1.3.2 The gifts, presents or any other benefits received shall be managed as follows:

- For gifts or presents with logo of business partner, alliance, creditor or stakeholder of the Company such as
notebooks, pens, diaries, calendars, those shall not be delivered to the Activity Support Team but shall be distributed

within relevant departments.

- For easily spoiled items such as food, dessert, fresh food, those shall be delivered to the Activity Support Team

in order to distribute such items to all departments in the Company.

- For unrotten items, those shall be delivered to the Activity Support Team in order to donate such items to

relevant organizations or use in the Company’s activities.
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1.4 To prevent conflicts of interest, we do not allow our employees or persons not appointed by us as our

representatives to accept items or any other benefits.

1.5 In the case that it is unrefusable and necessary to accept such items, they shall accept such items and

report the matter to their superior to properly deal with such items.

1.6 In the case that they are assigned to be the Company’s representatives to participate in certain activities,

they may accept gifts, rewards, lucky draw prizes in accordance with external criterion or standards generally applied.

2. Giving of Items or Any Other Benefits:

2.1 Items may be given on customary occasions or celebrations, on which gifts are generally or traditionally given,
without causing any conflict of interest or being contrary to law whereby approval must be obtained from the superior

before giving such items. The Company shall procure such items at the price or value of not exceeding Baht 3,000.

2.2 To avoid bribery, we require that a survey on and examination of appropriateness be conducted before
conduction of transactions in order to prevent corruption. Besides, the Company’s high level executives shall be the

representatives of the organization in giving gifts or any other benefits.

2.3 An offer of cash or in-kind support may be made from one organization to another organization whereby such

offer shall be signed by the authorized persons, and relevant expenses should be properly budgeted.

3. Charitable Donations or Contributions : Donations or contributions shall be given/received transparently

and lawfully. We shall ensure that the donations or contributions are not used as a subterfuge for bribery.

4. Politics : We shall carry on our business in an apolitical way without taking part in or concentrating on any
political party or politician. We shall not use our budget or resources to directly or indirectly support any political party

or politician.

5. Business Relationship and Procurement: No bribe shall be given or received in doing all types of businesses

with any business partners, contractual parties, government authorities or any agencies dealing with the Company.

All transactions shall be conducted with transparency and in accordance with applicable law.

6. Channels for Giving Information or Clues

rem n holders are welcom X heir opinions and inform of for ill in

order to lead to :

(1) Fact Check;
(2) Management Adjustment/Improvement;

(3) Development/Training.
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The following are channels for receiving information, grievances or clues:

1. Company Secretary

2. Internal Audit Office

3. Audit Committee

E-mail : company_secretary@pl.co.th

Telephone : 02-290-7575 Ext. 101, 205

Facsimile : 02-693-2298

Address : Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited 252/6 29th Floor, Muang Thai Phatra Complex 1,

Rachadaphisek Road, Khwaeng/Khet Huaykwang, Bangkok 10320

In this regard, there shall be the mechanisms for protecting the informers who take care of the Company’s benefits
whereby the employees who say “No” to corrupt practices shall not be demoted, punished or negatively impacted

even though their action may result in a loss of the Company’s business opportunity.
7. Punishment

The policy and best practices hereunder deemed part of the discipline at work for the Company’s directors, executives
and employees. Negligence, omission or willful failure to comply therewith, shall be considered as discipline violation.
Punishment shall be considered and imposed according to the Company’s regulations. [f their action also violates any

law, the Company will consider taking legal action under relevant law.
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Employee Code of Conduct
The Company recognizes the importance of “good corporate governance” as part of the Company’s business strategy
which leads to transparent, equitable and verifiable operations. For the past performance, the Company’s business has

been carried on within the scope of the Code of Conduct.

To ensure that good corporate governance policies shall be concretely implemented, the Code of Conduct is considered
an important and necessary tool. Therefore, the Company has set out written guidelines on how to faithfully, honestly
and equitably perform duties and responsibilities assigned to the Employees at all levels, and how to behave towards
the Company and all groups of stakeholders so that the Employees at all levels shall acknowledge and adhere to the

said guidelines.

This Employee Code of Conduct has been established as a fundamental standard for the Employees to behave
ethically. In addition, it reflects the Company’s commitment to complying with laws, rules, regulations and articles of
association. It also serves to remind the Employees to take caution and prevents them from doing any act in violation

of laws, rules, regulations and articles of association, which may bring the Company into disrepute.

If an Employee breaches the “Employee Code of Conduct”, it shall be deemed a serious disciplinary violation, and the
Employee shall be liable to the punishment as specified in the Company’s articles of association and regulations which

have been stipulated and/or will be announced in the future.
Scope

The “Employee Code of Conduct” applies to the Employees of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited, its subsidiary
companies, associated companies and other enterprises, over which the Company has control, including enterprises in

foreign countries.

The “Employee(s)” means permanent employee(s), contract employee(s), probationary employee(s), temporary
employee(s), special contract employee(s), contractual party/parties and employee(s) of the companies which have

been hired by the Company.
Practices

1. Faithfulness, Honesty and Morality
The Employees must perform duties faithfully and honestly in strict compliance with the laws relating
to business operations, rules, regulations and orders of the Company, and adhere to morality, and must

not seek personal benefits.

2. Responsibility for Assignments
The Employees are considered a valuable resource and an essential factor in the Company’s success
so the Company has taken care of and treated them fairly in relation to advancement opportunity,
remuneration, appointment, transfer as well as potential development. Therefore, the Company believes
that all Employees shall perform their assignments responsibly, give cooperation in preparation of accurate
and up-to-date documents, data and reports, as well as study to gain knowledge and experiences for

improving themselves as qualified persons in order to become more efficient and effective at work.
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3. Confidentiality and Use of Insider Information
Insider information protection is essential for the Company’s success and also for job security of all
Employees. The Company deems that it is the responsibility of all Employees to keep the Company’s
confidential information strictly confidential. The Employees shall not disclose the Company’s information
not yet revealed to the public, except in compliance with applicable laws or with the approval of line
manager or higher level executives. The Code of Conduct in relation to confidentiality and use of insider
information has been laid down as follows:

3.1 The Company’s Employees at all levels have the duty to keep confidential insider information
and documents which cannot be revealed to outsiders, for example, price sensitive
information, trade secret, formula or invention d eemed to belong to the Company, whereby
the leakage thereof will lead to wrongful benefit-seeking for themselves or their families or
associates.

3.2 The Company’s Employees at all levels shall not use confidential information for their own
benefit or another’s benefit.

3.3 The Company’s Employees at all levels who receive personal information shall keep or use
such information with due care.

3.4 The Company requires the information relating to contractual parties and the agreements
made with the contractual parties to be treated as confidential information which cannot be
revealed to third party, except in compliance with applicable laws or with the approval of
line manager or higher level executives.

3.5 Each division should provide measures and systems to strictly control the Company’s
information which shall be applied within such division or department in order to prevent the
Company’s insider information from being disclosed before official release. These measures
and systems shall be deemed part of risk control measures of the Company.

3.6 The Company assigns the superiors at all levels to have the duty and responsibility to ensure
that the important data and information of the Company will not be leaked to the public by
their inferiors before official release by the Company.

3.7 Insider information internally shared by the Employees shall be used within the scope of
duties and responsibilities as assigned to the Employees.

3.8 The Company deems it important to keep confidential the aforesaid information including
the information of its customers, products, services, work plans, strategies, work procedures
and work systems. The Employees shall not use the information received or prepared due
to their assignments in the Company in the manner which may bring personal benefits.

3.9 The Company’s Employees at all levels have the obligation to protect confidential information
of the Company’s customers and business partners as well as the Company’s information at
all times even though the Employees resign or are no longer the Company’s Employees.
The Company considers thatany information or documents including programs and work systems
developed and invented during their employment with the Company shall be the property of
and be copyrishted by the Company. The Employees shall not disclose any information or
document including programs and work systems developed and invented during their

employment with the Company even though they are no longer the Company’s Employees.
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4.

Insider Trading

The Company prohibits the purchase or sale of securities of the Company or any of its subsidiary
companies by using insider information which is substantial and has a significant effect on the price of
the securities whereby such information has not yet been disclosed in the securities exchange and to
the public.In this regard, the top four executives ranked next to the managing director as defined
by the Securities Exchange shall have the duty to disclose the securities holding in accordance with Form

59-2 to the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Conflict of Interest

Any Employee shall not seek personal benefits which are contrary to the interest of the Company,
or do any acts which may cause conflicts of interest with the Company, and/or carry on any business
in connection with the Company’s business or in the same type of the Company’s business in order to
seek personal benefits and cause damage to the Company, whether directly or indirectly. The business

carried by the Employee shall not have any impact on his/her duty performance for the Company.

In this regard, any Employee shall not demand or receive any property and/or benefit in bad faith
from the customers, business partners, creditors or debtors, or use his/her power to seek personal
benefits. The Employee shall avoid receiving any gifts or presents from business partners which may

lead to a conspiracy or make other persons understand that there is a conspiracy.

Responsibilities towards the Company’s Property and Reputation

AWl Employees have the duty to take care of the Company’s property to prevent damage, loss,
misuse, theft and destruction. The following shall be the responsibilities of the Employees: to comply
with maintenance instructions and security procedures, to be ready and stay alert for any situation
and incident which may arise, as well as to protect and prevent the Company’s properties from

damage, theft or misuse.

In addition, they shall jointly promote and maintain the Company’s reputation by carefully performing
duties without giving opinion towards third party in the matter which may have negative impact on
the Company’s reputation and operation in order to prevent damage which may arise to the

stakeholders and the Company’s reputation.

Colleagues

All Employees must respect personal rights of other Employees whereby no information or stories
of other Employees, whether they are private matters or not, shall not be disclosed or criticized in the
manner that may damage the Employees or the Company’s image, must not condemn him/her or do any act
which may lead to disunity or cause internal damage to the Company or related persons of the Company,
must treat other colleagues politely and generously with good human relationship, and must help

bring about and maintain team unity.
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10. Corporate Social Responsibilities : CSR

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited recognizes the importance of the good corporate governance of the Company
along with the business operation under the corporate social and environmental responsibility. The awareness of social
responsibility is raised in the employees in order to raise the awareness on this issue even more.

The Company has set up the policy of social responsibility and proposed the approval of a policy of social responsibility
to the Board of Directors to be used as the framework for the operation and planning for social and environmental
responsibility as follows:

1. Operate the business with fairness, honesty, law-abiding to related regulations coupled with social and environmental
involvement including the stakeholders of the Company following the Company’s corporate governance policy.

2. Respect for human rights and treatment of people in the organization fairly. The Company treats all employees
as valuable resources and they are important factors in enabling the Company to the achievement. The Company,
therefore, takes care and gives the fair practices in terms of the opportunity, returns, nomination, as well as the
potential development and the improvement of working environment for employees to have a better quality of life.

3. The anti-corruption is to encourage employees not to perform the exploitation or any act which causes the
conflicts of interest to the Company and / or operate the business related to the Company’s business or in the same
type of Company’s business. The employees must not cause damage to the Company whether directly or indirectly
including not calling for the property and / or any other benefits dishonestly with the customers, partners, creditors,
debtors or use the authority for exploitation. The employees must avoid accepting any gift or souvenir from those
who do business with the company. This may lead to the interests or make other persons understand that the
interests are dishonestly.

Guidelines for the practice under the policy of social responsibility of the Company in 2017

1. Operate the business with fairness, honesty, law-abiding to related regulations coupled with social and
environmental involvement including the stakeholders of the Company following the Company’s corporate
governance policy

The Company has the operations with virtue, honesty, and law-abiding to related rules and regulations consistently and
constantly by taking into account of the rights of all stakeholders. The Company recognizes that the sustainable growth of
the Company will not occur without the participation of these persons. The group of stakeholders consisted of:

Shareholders The Company operates business with transparency and accountability with the good operational performance
and steady growth based on the principles of good corporate governance to create value for the shareholders in the long
term. There is also the disclosure of data and information accurately and completely via the channels and media of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and the company’s website (www.pl.co.th) so that the shareholders can access and receive
the information equally. Also in the 2017 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company provides opportunities for
shareholders to exercise the right to propose the agenda in the General Meeting of Shareholders and propose the names of
persons to be elected as directors. The criteria are revealed in the Company’s website (www.pl.co.th).

Customers From the experience in operating the leasing business for more than 30 years, the Company has an effective
management system by focusing on the customers to receive the satisfaction of a full service of the company. By providing
quality services and meet the needs of the customers as possible including the provision of accurate information to complete
the conditions of service, the Company pays attention to the counseling and plans for the use of appropriate vehicles to the
customers. This also includes the listening to the complaints of customers to develop and enhance the appropriate services
to meet their highest satisfaction.

The Company also has the system to monitor the channels for complaints or feedback from customers via the Call
Center and Customer Complaint Management from SGS following the quality standard ISO 9001 : 2015 certified by
the Institute of the United Kingdom, UKAS. The customers contact through Call Center will receive the preliminary
service from the employees immediately with the coordination to solve the problems and report the progress to the
customers. Moreover, the Company also conducted a survey on the customer’s satisfaction on the services in various
fields; the Service of Call Center, Roadside assistance, service in accidents, maintenance, calling for car maintenance
service, service of car replacement, and other services to be used as the information to improve and correct the
shortcomings in the operation of the Company. The Company will know the needs of the customers even more which
will be useful for developing the Company’s services to respond the demands of customers which are various at
present.
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Partners With the business operation that relies on various transactions with suppliers, the Company focuses on the
right treatment to the partners as appropriate from the process of asset purchasing that will be leased to customers and
the distribution of assets at the end of the lease contracts. To ensure the integrity, transparency and accountability, the
Company has fostered good relations between the partners by visiting to discuss and exchange the ideas in business
together occasionally. With the cooperation of the company and its partners, all parties can be managed effectively
with mutual respect on the basis of the anti-fraud which the Company adheres to and always conforms to.

Competitors As the company has continually grown in leasing business for a long time, it is partly from the Company’s
operation within the framework of fair competition with professional integrity without seeking for the trade secrets of
competitors or committing any unlawful act. We believe that with good ethics in business operations, the Company’s
business will be enabled to grow sustainably in the future.

Creditors As the Company has the investment mainly by borrowing, the Company must have good financial management
and strictly conform to the terms of the loan agreement with the financial institutes. The Company will not spend the
loan in the activities contrary to the purpose of the loan of the creditor as well as controlling the management system
of loan repayment and interest to be fully and on time both for short-term and long-term loan. In addition, when
the information of the Company has changed significantly affecting the terms of the loan, the accurate and complete
information must be notified to all creditors.

2. Respect for human rights and treatment of people in the organization fairly. The Company treats all
employees as valuable resources and they are important factors in enabling the Company to the achievement.
The Company, therefore, takes care and gives the fair practices in terms of the opportunity, returns, nomination,
as well as the potential development and the improvement of working environment for employees to have a
better quality of life

The Company believes that the employees play the significant role in driving business to advance the goals of success
and sustainable growth. The Company gives priority to treat all employees equally and fairly, according to human rights
coupled with raising the great awareness to the executives and all levels of employees to recognize the importance
of engagement in practices that benefit the society.

The Company also encourages the employees to develop and increase their potentiality by sending them to attend training
courses, based on their positions and duties. In 2017, the Company sent the employees to attend training courses, divided
into 24 public courses and 4 in-house courses, totaling 28 courses. The number of employees who attended the training
courses was 260 persons. Besides, the Company is committed to ensuring the employees’ welfare, annual check-up and good
working environment as well as encouraging them to participate in sport by setting up football club, badminton club, bicycle
club and running club to boost their health and wellness. Friendship football tournaments have been held for the employees
consecutively every year. On 16 December 2017, the 13th tournament was held at Happy Football Stadium. There were 4
teams including Phatra Leasing Plc., Phatra Securities Plc., Kiatnakin Bank Plc., Muang Thai Life Assurance Plc. and Muang Thai
Insurance Plc.  All matches were exciting even though the final outcome was not favourable for us. However, there were
still friendships among our employees and with the employees of the other companies. The friendship football tournament
put a smile on everyone’s face.
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Forestry Conservation Camp Following the King’s Initiative

The name of Siri Charoenwat Forest came from “Siri (the initial name of Her Majesty Queen Sirikit) and Charoenwat
(which means prosperous year)”. This forest plantation project was initiated 27 years ago on the treeless hill of Khao Chi On,
Chon Buri Province, which used to be dry and barren. Water shortages began to affect nearby communities. With his great
vision, His Majesty King Bhumibol Adulyadej (Rama IX) gave importance on the conservation of forests, natural resources,
wild animals and plants in natural sources. The King then ordered the restoration of the forest of Khao Chi On, Chon Buri
Province to preserve and maintain the natural balance. Meanwhile, he named the Project Siri Charoenwat Forest as a
gift to Her Majesty Queen Sirikit on her 60th birthday celebration in 1992. Therefore, Siri Charoenwat Forest, Chon Buri
Province is considered a natural monument originating from the love of King Rama IX and the Queen. This is why it is called
“The Forest of Love.”

In Remembrance of His Majesty King Bhumibol Adulyadej, Phatra Leasing Plc. has followed the royal guidelines of the
King in taking care of Siri Charoenwat Forest to ensure that the forest is kept healthy and administered as soil and
water conservation area including wildlife sanctuary in a sustainable way.

Therefore, the training activity, namely, “Forestry Conservation Camp Following the King’s Initiative” was held on
25-26 November 2017 for 2 days and 1 night at Siri Charoenwat Forest, Chon Buri Province. Apart from the conservation
of forest, soil and water, this camp also encouraged good relationship and cooperation among the employees.

3. The anti-corruption is to encourage employees not to perform the exploitation or any act which causes the
conflicts of interest to the Company and / or operate the business related to the Company’s business or in the
same type of Company’s business. The employees must not cause damage to the Company whether directly
or indirectly including not calling for the property and / or any other benefits dishonestly with the customers,
partners, creditors, debtors or use the authority for exploitation. The employees must avoid accepting any gift or
souvenir from those who do business with the company. This may lead to the interests or make other persons
understand that the interests are dishonestly.

The Company is determined to carry on business operation with honesty, transparency, fairess, responsibility and care
under relevant laws, rules, regulations and standards. Therefore, the Company has established the “Anti-Corruption
Policy” to clarify anti-corruption activities so that all of the directors, executives and employees shall acknowledge,
understand and strictly adhere to these working principles. Besides, as the Company does not encourage the employees
to seek personal benefits, the “Employee Code of Conduct” has been established as a fundamental standard for the
Employees to behave. Every employee shall sign to acknowledge and adhere to the Anti-Corruption Policy and the
Employee Code of Conduct once they start to work with the Company.
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Seminar on Knowledge and Understanding on Anti-Corruption

The Company has the policies to conduct business honestly, transparently, fairly, responsibly and cautiously under
applicable laws, rules, regulations and relevant standards, as well as to ensure that all of our employees acknowledge,
understand and strictly adhere to the Anti-Corruption Policy. Thus, the Seminar on Knowledge and Understanding on
Anti-Corruption was held on Saturday 24th June 2017 at 08.30-17.00 hrs.

4. Promote the projects or social activities and support

The environmental conservation

The Company always operates the business with morality and ethics as the Company believes that society is
fundamentally important. To take into account the social responsibility is one of the Company’s missions, which is
particularly important. In 2017, the Company has arranged social and environmental activities through the following
projects:

The Royally-Initiated Siri Charoenwat Forest Plantation Project, Chon Buri Province

In Remembrance of His Majesty King Bhumibol Adulyadej, and for the purpose of fulfilling the royal wish of the King in
taking care of Siri Charoenwat Forest to keep the forest healthy and maintain the forest as soil and water conservation
area including wildlife sanctuary in a sustainable way, the employees of Phatra Leasing jointly planted trees and
constructed dams in the Royally-Initiated Siri Charoenwat Forest Plantation Project, Chon Buri Province on Saturday
26th August 2017.

The Company hopes that this activity will help improve the quality of life of the employees and importantly help create
their consciousness in fulfilling the royal wish of the King.
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Computer Donation to Ban Phai Mu Khwid School, Ang Thong Province

Phatra Leasing Plc. made a trip to. Ban Phai Mu Khwid School, Ang Thong Province to deliver 6 computers to the
students. The school represented by school headmaster, Pipat Khwanmongkhol, accepted the computers for use, study
and search of information on the internet.

As Ban Phai Mu Khwid School, Ang Thong Province which had approximately 95 students from 1% grade to 6" grade was
unable to obtain the budget for purchase of teaching aids while the students had to study and search information on
the internet apart from in textbooks, but lacked sufficient technology for use, Phatra Leasing Plc. had concerns about
this issue and intended to provide support for this matter continuously for the purpose of creating equal opportunities
for upcountry students to access sources of knowledge.

Project of music therapy for philanthropy

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited contributed money to support the costs of music therapy program for
philanthropy by arranging the concert at the Medical Center Clinic. The Company has provided the ongoing support
from 2013 till present.

For the Medical Center Clinic, it is the project to treat patients in lower rates than private hospitals. The project has been
operated by Ban Buengvejjakit Co. Ltd which is the personal company of His Majesty the King. This activity helped
relaxing the patients, doctors, nurses and staffs of the hospital. This is also the transfer of Thai music which is valuable
both composers and literary arts no to be lost from the society.
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11. Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee give great importance to the internal control systems. After consideration,
the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee are of the view that the Company’s internal control systems are
sufficient and appropriate without deficiency which may have significant impact on the opinion of the auditors in
financial statements. The internal control systems of the Company can be summarized as follows:

Internal Control

The Board of Directors has provided the internal control systems which cover all aspects including financial control,
operational control, operation supervision and risk management to ensure compliance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations whereby the Internal Audit Office is an independent unit which performs the duties to examine internal
operations of the Company, to assess the sufficiency and appropriateness of the internal control systems, and to report
the examination results directly to the President and the Audit Committee, as well as to impose measures to prevent
the directors and executives from selling and purchasing securities by using inside information (insider trading) and from
seeking benefits for themselves or others wrongfully (abusive self-dealing).

Prevention of Conflict of Interest

The Board of Directors is careful with connected transactions and the conflict of interest whereby the Company had
specified the consideration steps carefully, honestly, reasonably and independently within ethical frame, and disclosed
information fully in order to prevent the Company from conflict of interest. The Audit Committee had considered
connected transactions which may lead to conflict of interest. The Audit Committee then was of the view that the
related party transactions in the past year were the transactions in the same manner to the transactions made with
other business in general. The Company disclosed such transactions in the notes to financial statements and there was
no conflict of interest.

In this regard, in relation to the supervision of internal information usage, the Company prohibited the Board of Directors
and the executives of the Company from usage and/or disclosure of internal information for the purposes of purchasing,
selling, transferring and accepting transfer of securities issued by the Company before such information would be
disclosed to the public. In this regard, the Board of Directors and all executives acknowledged the regulations of the
SEC and the SET re report on sale and purchase of securities and properly complied with the said provisions thereof.

AS of December 29" 2017, the Company ensures the appropriate disclosure of report on changes to the portfolio of
its directors, executives and company Secretary as follows :

Number of Warrants to Purchase the
Number of Shares (PL)
Company’s Ordinary shares
Shareholder
(PL) Increase/ (PL-W1) Increase/
% %
30 Dec 16 | 29 Dec 17 decrease | 30 Dec 16 | 29 Dec 17 decrease
1. Mr.Photipong Lamsam
- Mr.Photipong Lamsam 169,866 169,866 | 0.028% - 244,155 224,155 | 0.451% -
- Yupong Co., Ltd. (a juristic 12,323,402 | 12,323,402 | 2.066% - 1,227,800 | 1,227,800 | 2.470% -
person holding more than
30% of shares)
Total | 12,493,268 | 12,493,268 | 2.094% - 1,451,955 | 1,451,955 | 2.921% -
2. Mr.Poomchai Lamsam
- Mr.Poomchai Lamsam 3,540,000 | 3,540,000 | 0.593% - 295,000 295,000 | 0.593% -
- Mrs.Jutaporn Lamsam 20,000 20,000 0.003% - 1,666 1,666 0.003% -
(Spouse)
Total | 3,560,000 | 3,560,000 | 0.597% - 296,666 296,666 |0.597% -
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Number of Warrants to Purchase the
Number of Shares (PL)
Company’s Ordinary shares
Shareholder
(PL) Increase/ (PL-W1) Increase/
% %
30 Dec 16 |29 Dec 17 decrease | 30 Dec 16 |29 Dec 17 decrease
3. Mr.Sara Lamsam
Total | 1,800,000 | 1,800,000 0.302% - 80,000 80,000 | 0.161% -
4. Mrs.Nualphan Lamsam
Total | 1,800,000 | 1,800,000 | 0.302% - 80,000 80,000 | 0.161% -
5. Mr.Pipop Kunasol - - - - - - - -
6. Dr.Sutee Mokkhavesa - - - - - - - -
7. Mrs.Chantra Purnariksha - - - - - - - -
8. Mr.Vichate Tantiwanich - - - - - - - -
9. Mr.Anupon Likitpurkpaisan - - - - - - - -
10. Mr.Suebtrakul - - - - - - - -
Soonthornthum
11. Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag
Total | 296,000 | 296,000 | 0.05% - 24,666 24,666 | 0.050% -
12. Mr.Poonpipat Aungurigul - - - - - - - -
13. Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn
- Mr.Kachornjak Chalothorn 254,661 254,661 | 0.043% - 22,221 22,221 0.045% B
- Mrs.Sutarut Chalothorn 200,000 200,000 | 0.034% - 16,666 16,666 0.003% -
(Spouse)
Total | 454,661 454,661 | 0.077% - 38,887 38,887 | 0.048% -
14. Mrs.Thipsuda Kuenkong
-Mr.Apichat Kuenkong - 1,782,000 | 0.299% |+1,782,000 - 148,664 | 0.299% | +148,664
(Spouse) 1,952,000 | 1,952,000 0.327% - 162,833 | 162,833 | 0.328% -
Total | 1,952,000 |3,734,000| 0.626% |+1,782,000( 162,833 | 311,497 | 0.627% | +148,664
15. Mr.Soottichai Sombatsiri - - - - - - - -
16. Mr.Thanan Suebsiri
Total | 20,000 20,000 | 0.003% - 1,666 1,666 0.003% -
17. Mr.Naruepol Watanakun - - - - - - - -
18. Mr.Danu Sukhavat - - - - - - - -
19. Mrs.Karaked Junvanitrattana - - - - - - - -

Notes : @

Notes: (1) Mrs. Thipsuda Kuenkong accepted the transfer of 1,334,000 ordinary shares and the transfer of warrants to
purchase 111,331 shares from Mr. Wisan Kongka (father), and accepted the transfer of 448,000 ordinary shares and the

transfer of warrants to purchase 37,333 shares from Mrs. Phuchavee Kongka (mother of Mrs. Thipsuda Kuenkong).
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Risk Management

For the risk management of liquidity, the Company has found the sources of loans, both short and long terms,
to give the time to repay the amount of debts corresponding to the value of the rental income to be received
in each period in order to prevent cash flow problems insufficient for the cash flow in each period.

For the management of credit risk or the risk of rental payment ability, the Company is careful in selecting the customers
by using Sponsoring for approving as each sponsor will have the view and the broader idea to be more discreet. This
will reflect the quantity of the debtors who have problem with the Company in the low level. Moreover, the Company
also has the system to track customer payment carefully including the provision for doubtful accounts adequately.
Besides, the Company pays attention to the study of the fluctuations in the entire economy of the world and regional
environmental trends as well as factors that may directly affect the Company’s business.

Furthermore, for the management of interest rate risk arising from the changes in the interest rates on loans in each
period, this is caused by the rental which is the main income of the Company is set to be fixed and cannot be changed
during the lease term even though the loan interest rate has changed. The majority of the Company’s debts are
long-term debts with the fixed interest rate throughout the term of the loan for reducing the risk of the above interest
rate.

The Company has the risk management in the marketing and competition by selecting the base of juristic person customers

with good credit quality. There is also the attempt to distribute the customers in each group of industry. Moreover, the
Company also focuses on the risk management of scrap value for maximum effectiveness.
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12. Related Parties Transaction

Account details and operations of the company that are associated with other companies, which are average activities
of the company. The report is based on the average market price, or according to the prior agreement in which the
market price wasn’t stated. The company specified the standard value, process of authorization, and the individuals
that are authorized the transaction of the stated price. The company always considers the matters of appropriateness
and fairness in forecasting price. According to the reports submitted by the account auditors, there was a disclosure
of information that was associated with one another. The reports are in the report’s footnotes of the budget report
and part of the business conduct of the company. The company will give a detailed explanation of the information as
follows:

Cross over entries with vested interest

Companies Name Type of Business Perscr;irtige Relationship
Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC. Life-Insurance 10.00 Shareholders and some common directors
Muang Thai Insurance PLC. Non-Life Insurance 8.89 Shareholders and some common directors
Muang Thai Real Estate PLC. Property 0.00 Party with same directors

Net in value of asset held for lease
Unit : Million Baht

As at 31 Dec 2015 As at 31 Dec 2016 As at 31 Dec 2017

Name Relationship Value [Proportion| Value | Proportion | Value |Proportion
(%) (%) (%)
Muang Thai Life Assurance PLC. Shareholders 110.94 0.94 119.99 0.98 133.49 1.38
and some
common
directors
Muang Thai Insurance PLC. Shareholders 46.46 0.39 53.19 0.44 52.45 0.54
and some
common
directors
Prepaid Insurance Premium
Unit : Million Baht
Name Relationship As at 31 Dec 2015 | Asat 31 Dec 2016 | Asat 31 Dec 2017
Muang Thai Insurance PLC. Shareholders and 49.95 42.32 45.07
some common
directors
Accrued Insurance Premium
Unit : Million Baht
Name Relationship As at 31 Dec 2015 | Asat 31 Dec 2016 | As at 31 Dec 2017
Muang Thai Insurance PLC. Shareholders and 4.79 4.32 4.06
some common
directors
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Insurance Premium

Unit : Million Baht

Name

Relationship

31 Dec 2015
(12 Months)
Jan 15-Dec 15

31 Dec 2016
(12 Months)
Jan 16-Dec 16

31 Dec 2017
(12 Months)
Jan 17-Dec 17

Muang Thai Insurance PLC. Shareholders and 94.02 93.18 85.70
some common
directors
Rebate Insurance
Unit : Million Baht
31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2017

Name

Relationship

(12 Months)
Jan 15-Dec 15

(12 Months)
Jan 16-Dec 16

(12 Months)
Jan 17-Dec 17

Muang Thai Insurance PLC.

Shareholders and
some common
directors

10.43

9.32

10.17
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port

Independent auditor’s report for financial statements for the year ended between 2015 and 2017 is to express an

opinion on these financial statement present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the company and
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Year

Auditor

Audit Company

Type of Report

(Jan 17 - Dec 17)

2017 Mr. Bunyarit Thanormcharoen

KPMG Poomchai Audit Co., Ltd.

Unqualified opinion

2016
(Jan 16 - Dec 16)

Mr. Viroj Jindamaneepitak

KPMG Poomchai Audit Co., Ltd.

Unqualified opinion

2015
(Jan 15 - Dec 15)

Mr. Viroj Jindamaneepitak

KPMG Poomchai Audit Co., Ltd.

Unqualified opinion*

Notes: *According to Thai Accounting Standard 19 (revised 2014) regarding employee benefits, actuarial gains and losses
shall be recognized immediately in other comprehensive income items. The methods used by the Company shall be

cancelled. The Company has changed its accounting policy for this matter by making retrospective adjustments to
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2014 which have been shown for comparison purposes, and has

adjusted the particulars as explained in Note 3 for the year ending 31 December 2015.

Financial Overview (Separate financial statement)

Unit : Million Baht

2015 2016 2017
Jan 15-Dec 15 Jan 16-Dec 16 Jan 17-Dec 17
Rental income from operating lease contracts 2.894.27 2.868.19 2,661.53
Income from finance lease contracts 108.42 107.85 142.00
Revenue from sale of assets under operating lease contracts 656.40 1,150.30 1,005.78
Gain on disposal of equipment 4.43 1.54 -
Other income 41.08 46.55 47.74
Total income 3,704.60 4,174.43 3,857.05
Costs and operating expenses 3118.05 3,745.27 3,406.19
Financial costs 368.45 320.79 285.08
Income tax expense 47.11 (111.81) (56.11)
Total costs and expenses 353360 3,954.25 3,635.16
Net Profit (loss) 171.00 220.17 221.89
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Earnings (loss) per share net 0.32 0.37 0.37
N f sh h
umber of shares (shares) 596,492,753 596,492,753 596,492,874
Current assets 1,487.16 1,534.58 1,913.43
N -
on-current assets 11,425.03 11.695.11 11,298.01
Total assets 12,912.19 13,229.69 13,211.44
bl
Current liabilities 4,108.33 4,520.44 3.871.13
Non-current liabilities 6,164.31 5957.04 6,478.21
Total liabilities 10,272.63 10,477.48 10,349.34
Equity
2,639.55 2,752.21 2,862.11
Book value per share (Baht / share) 4.96 461 4.80
Dividends (Baht per share) 0.17 0.19 i
Financial Highlight
2015 2016 2017
Jan 15- Dec 15 Jan 16- Dec 16 | Jan 17- Dec 17

Profitability Ratio

Gross profit margin 23.76% 22.03% 20.18%
Interest Income @ 6.60% 5.83% 6.77%
Interest expenses 3.74% 3.28% 2.93%
Net Interest Income @ 2.86% 2.55% 3.84%
Net profit margin 4.62% 5.27% 5.75%
Return on equity 7.22% 8.17% 7.90%

2015 2016 2017

Jan 15- Dec 15

Jan 16- Dec 16

Jan 17- Dec 17

Efficiency Ratio

Return on asset

1.34%

1.68%

1.68%

Asset turnover

29.05%

31.94%

29.17%
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2015
Jan 15-Dec 15

2016
Jan 16-Dec 16

2017
Jan 17-Dec 17

Financial Ratio

Debt to equity (times) 3.89 3381 3.62
Total receivable to loan (times) 1.20 1.22 1.20
Dividend payout (%) 59.30% 51.48% -
Note : " operating lease
@ financial lease
Share Information and Growth Ratio
2015 2016 2017

Jan 15-Dec 15

Jan 16-Dec 16

Jan 17-Dec 17

Share Information

Jan 15-Dec 15

Jan 16-Dec 16

Book value per share (baht) 4.96 4.61 4.80

Earnings per share (baht) 0.32 0.37 0.37

Dividend per share (baht) 0.17 0.19

Growth Ratio

Total assets 2.53% 2.46% -0.14%

Total liabilities -2.16% 1.99% -1.22%

Total revenue -0.86% 12.68% -7.60%

Administrative expenses 3.83% 78.90% -35.89%

Net profit 21.98% 28.76% 0.78%
2015 2016 2017

Jan 17-Dec 17

Financial Policy Analysis

Interest coverage (times)

8.79

9.64

12.93

Leverage (times)

0.29

0.24

0.33
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14. Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
Operating Results and Financial Status of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

Business Operation Overview for 2016

In 2016, as Thai economy decelerated and overall credit quality was likely to deteriorate, Phatra Leasing Plc. had policy
to operate cautiously, thereby resulting in slight expansion of leased assets. However, the Company’s annual profit
increased compared with the previous year even though large amount allowance for doubtful accounts was set up.
The annual profit increased because the Company earned higher profit from the sale of leased assets under expired
operating lease contracts and also had been granted tax privileges, i.e., exemption from income tax for the proceeds
paid for investment.

Business Operation Overview for 2017

For 2017, Phatra Leasing Plc. still has policy to operate cautiously to prevent bad debts resulting from the inability to
pay rental. Even though the total income from rental from both types of lease contracts and income from the sale
of assets under operating lease contracts was lower than that in 2016 because of the reduction in sales volume, the
Company was still able to maintain the net profit near to the previous year because the new allowance for doubtful
accounts reduced significantly in accordance with the capability to manage the quality of accounts receivable.

Business Operation Overview for 2018

In 2018, Phatra Leasing Plc. still has policy to places emphasis on using the leased assets to obtain the maximum
benefit by granting long term leases and short term leases after expiration of lease contracts as well as selling leased
assets which are still in good condition to the users directly to get the highest possible price. Quite fierce competition
in this industry is still a factor that causes greater difficulty in running the Company’s business compared to the past.
However, the Company is confident that with it capabilities, the Company’s business will continue to grow and thrive
in the future.

Operating Results for the Year 2017 Compared to Year 2016 (for 12-month periods, ending as of 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016)
Revenue structure in the year 2017 compared to the year 2016 (for 12-month periods, ending as of 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2016) has been shown in the following table:

Unit: Million Baht

2016 2017
Jan-Dec 2016 | Jan-Dec 2017| % increase
(12-month (12-month | (decrease)
period) period)
Rental received from operating lease contracts 2,868 2,662 (7.18)
Income from finance lease contracts 108 142 31.48
Income from sale of leased assets under operating lease contracts 1,150 1,006 (12.52)
Profit from sale of equipment and properties held for sale 2 - (100.00)
Other income ar a8 2.13
Total income 4,174 3,857 (7.59)

The Company’s main income in 2017 comprised rental from operating lease contracts in the amount of Baht 2,662
million, which decreased by 7% compared to the same period in 2016, and income from financial lease contracts in
the amount of Baht 142 Million, which increased by 31% compared to the same period in 2016. The main reason was
because one of major lessees of the Company had applied for change of lease contract type from operating lease
contract to financial lease contract. Besides, the Company had policy to operate cautiously as aforesaid. As a result,
the leased assets under operating lease contracts decreased while the accounts receivable under financial lease
contracts increased.
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The Company earned income from the sale of leased assets under operating lease contracts in the amount of Baht
1,006 million, which decreased by Baht 144 million or 13% from the same period in the previous year. This was because
of a decrease in the volume of leased assets under expired contracts, and the Company’s policy to generate income
from the leased assets under expired contracts by granting short term leases. As a result, the volume of leased assets
sold in 2017 was lower than that in 2016.

Based on the aforementioned reasons, the Company’s total income in 2017 amounted to Baht 3,857 million, decreasing
by 8% compared to the same period in 2016.

Cost structure in the year 2017 compared to the year 2016 (for 12-month periods, ending as of 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016) has been shown in the following table:
Unit: Million Baht

2016 2017
Jan-Dec 2016 | Jan-Dec 2017 | % increase
(12-month (12-month (decrease)
period) period)
Direct cost from leasing out 2,236 2,125 (5.01)
Cost for sale of leased assets under operating lease contracts 1,089 1,012 (7.07)
Loss from sale of equipment and assets held for sale - 5 N/A
Management expenses 263 251 (4.56)
Doubtful accounts 157 13 (91.72)
Financial expenses 321 285 (11.21)
Total expenses 4,066 3,691 (9.22)

Direct cost from leasing out assets which were primarily subject to depreciation in 2017, amounted to Baht 2,124 million,
which decreased by Baht 112 million or 5% in line with the reductions in the amount of rental income and the volume
of leased assets under operating lease contracts. However, the cost for sale of leased assets under operating lease
contracts decreased by Baht 76 million or 7% because the volume of leased assets under expired contracts which had
been sold in 2017 was lower than that in 2016.

In 2017, as the Company operated cautiously, it was able to manage the quality of accounts receivable more efficiently
compared to the previous year. Therefore, the doubtful account expenses in 2017 only amounted to Baht 13 million
(mostly from the allowance for expenses in following up existing debtors), which decreased from Baht 157 million in
2016

Besides, the Company’s financial expenses decreased by Baht 36 million or 11% because of the reduction in interest
burden together with decreasing rate of accrued interest payable of the Company in this year.
Unit: Million Baht

2016 2017
Jan-Dec 2016 Jan-Dec 2017
(12-month period) | (12-month period)

Gross profit 632 537
Net profit 220 222
Gross profit margin 22.03% 20.18%
Net profit margin 5.27% 5.75%
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In 2017, the Company’s net profit amounted to Baht 222 million, comparable to the year 2016.

Financial Status of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited as of 31 December 2017 Compared to 31 December 2016

Assets

As of 31 December 2017, the Company’s total assets amounted to Baht 13,221 million, near to the previous year. The
leased assets under operating lease contracts decreased by Baht 532 million while the value of accounts receivable
under financial lease contracts increased by Baht 200 million. The value of inventory as of 31 December 2017 was Baht
92 million, which slightly increased from Baht 86 million at the end of the previous year because there were many of

leased assets, contracts of which had expired at the end of the year.

As of 31 December 2017, the Company had rental receivables under operating lease which had been overdue for more
than 3 months in the amount of Baht 7 million, and the defaulted debts amounted to Baht 74 million. After deduction
of security deposit, the Company had set additional allowance for doubtful debts for this year at Baht 1 million. Thus,
the total allowance for doubtful debts for this type of lease was Baht 77 million. With respect to financial lease, the
Company had accounts receivable under this type of lease which had been overdue for than 3 months in the amount
of Baht 28 million, and the defaulted debts amounted to Baht 108 million. After deduction of security deposit and
estimation of recoverable amount of leased assets, the Company had set additional allowance for doubtful debts at

Baht 2 million. The total allowance for doubtful debts for this type of lease was Baht 55 million.

Liabilities

As of 31 December 2017, the Company’s total liabilities amounted to Baht 10,349 million, which decreased by Baht 128
million compared with the total liabilities of Baht 10,477 million at the end of 2016, or decreased by 1%. The main
cause was the reduction in the liabilities with interest burden in the amount of Baht 344 million. However, the accounts
payable in the ordinary course of business increased by Baht 115 million. Most of such liabilities were in the forms
of debentures and long-term loans from financial institutions with fixed interest rates in order to avoid fluctuations in

interest rates which might occur in the future.

As of 31 December 2017, the ratio of liabilities to shareholders’ equity was 3.62 times but taking into account only
the liabilities with interest burden, the ratio of liabilities to shareholders’ equity was 3.34 times. In this connection,
according to the loan covenants provided by the Company, the ratio of liabilities (calculated only the liabilities with
interest burden) to shareholders’ equity for the Company’s debentures should not exceed 7 times. It can be seen that
the said ratio is still much lower than the figures specified by the loan covenant. Therefore, the Company will be able

to continue to comply with the said loan covenant and is capable of expanding the leased assets in the future.

Shareholders’ Equity

As of 31 December 2017, the shareholders’ equity was equal to Baht 2,862 million, which increased from that at the end
of the year 2016 by Baht 110 million or 4% due to an increase in retained profit while the returns on the shareholders’

equity in 2017 and 2016 were similar, i.e., approximately 8% per annum.

Liquidity

With respect to the liquidity for the year ending 31 December 2017, the Company obtained cash flow from the operating
activities in the amount of Baht 3,686 million. The Company made payment for purchase of assets held for lease under
operating lease contracts in the amount of Baht 2,627 million plus income tax in the amount of Baht 174 million. As a
result, the Company had net cash from operating activities in the amount of Baht 886 million. Meanwhile, the Company
obtained net cash flow used in investment activities in the amount of Baht 0.6 million, derived from the purchase and
sale of equipment and assets other than the assets held for lease under operating lease contracts. Also, the Company
obtained net cash flow used in fund raising activities in the amount of Baht 748 million, resulting from the total amount
of financial expenses and dividends paid as well as short-term and long-term loans repaid which was higher than the

amount of short-term and long-term loans newly applied for to purchase additional assets for lease.
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Apart from the rental received by the Company in each month, the Company still had short-term loans which could
be drawn from financial institutions in large amounts and also had been approved long-term loans from several
financial institutions, and moreover, the Company was able to issue debentures and bills of exchange to raise funds
consecutively. Therefore, it could be deemed that the Company’s liquidity was sufficient for the operation of business

whether in short term or long term.

Operating Results for the Year 2016 Compared to Year 2015

Revenue structure in the year 2016 compared to the year 2015 has been shown in the following table:

Unit: Million Baht

2015 2016 % increase (decrease)
Rental received from operating lease contracts 2,894 2,868 (1)
Income from financial lease contracts 108 108 -
Income from sale of leased assets under operating lease contracts 656 1,150 75
Profit from sale of equipment and assets held for sale 5 2 (60)
Other income 41 46 12
Total income 3,705 4,174 13

The proportion of the Company’s income comprised rental from operating lease contracts in the amount of Baht 2,868
million, which slightly decreased from the previous year, and income from financial lease contracts in the amount of
Baht 108 Million, near to the previous year. The changes in income from the two types of lease contracts resulted from
changes in the value of leased assets under operating lease contracts and accounts receivable under financial lease
contracts.

In 2016, the Company earned income from the sale of leased assets under operating lease in the amount of Baht 1,150
million, which increased by Baht 494 million from the year 2015, in line with an increase in the sales volume of leased
assets under expired contracts.

Cost structure in the year 2016 compared to the year 2015 has been shown in the following table:
Unit: Million Baht

2015 2016 % increase (decrease)
Direct cost from leasing out 2,207 2,236 1
Cost for sale of leased assets under operating lease contracts 676 1,089 61
Management expenses 234 263 12
Doubtful accounts 1 157 156
Financial expenses 368 321 (13)
Total expenses 3,486 4,066 17

In 2016, direct cost from leasing out assets, which were primarily subject to an increase in depreciation, amounted to
Baht 2,236 million, being an increase of Baht 29 million. Meanwhile, the cost for sale of leased assets under operating
lease contracts also increased in line with an increase in the volume of leased assets which had been sold.

In 2016, the management expenses amounted to Baht 263 million, which increased by Baht 29 million compared to
the previous year. The said expenses increased because of higher volume of the Company’s transactions in this year
such as used car sale transactions, thereby resulting in higher management expenses in relation to such transactions.
However, the higher volume of transactions leaded to an increase in the Company’s total income. Therefore, when
comparing the proportions of management expenses to total income of 2015 and 2016, the proportions were similar,
i.e., approximately 6%.

m Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited |



eee————— > \anagement Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

The Company’s doubtful debts in 2016 amounted to Baht 157 million, which increased by Baht 156 million from 2015.
The main cause was the default of a key customer of the Company. Now, the Company is demanding the return of the
leased assets and the repayment of outstanding debts. In this regard, the Company has considered setting sufficient

allowance for doubtful debts for the said customer.

The Company’s financial expenses in 2016 amounted to Baht 321million, which decreased by Baht 48 million because
long-term loans with high borrowing costs were due for repayment and new borrowing costs were lower. Moreover, in
the middle of 2015, the Company increased registered capital, thereby resulting in a reduction in certain part of financial.

In 2016, although the Company had set up the allowance for doubtful debts as aforementioned, the Company still
earned profit for the year in the amount of Baht 220 million, which increased from 2015 by Baht 49 million or 29% as
a result of the ability to make profits from the sale of leased assets under operating lease contracts and tax privileges,

i.e., exemption from income tax for the proceeds paid for investment.

Financial Status of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited as of 31 December 2016 Compared to 31 December 2015

Assets

As of 31 December 2016, the Company’s total assets amounted to Baht 13,230 million, which increased by Baht 318
million or 2% from the previous year. The main cause was an increase in the value of accounts receivable under
financial lease contracts in the amount of Baht 293 million while the leased assets under operating lease contracts
decreased by Baht 53 million. The two types of leased assets which generated income for the Company amounted to
Baht 12,113 million or equivalent to 92% of the total assets of the Company. The value of inventory as of the end of
2016 was Baht 86 million, which considerately decreased from Baht 184 million in the previous year because in 2016,
large amounts of the inventory were sold. Besides, the Company thought of how to utilize part of the leased assets

under expired contracts to increase the revenue such as short-term lease out.

As of 31 December 2016, the Company had rental receivables under operating lease which had been overdue for
more than 3 months in the amount of Baht 12 million, and the defaulted debts amounted to Baht 74 million. After
deduction of security deposit, the Company had set the allowance for doubtful debts for this type of lease at Baht 76
million. With respect to financial lease, the Company had accounts receivable under this type of lease which had been
overdue for than 3 months in the amount of Baht 20 million, and the defaulted debts amounted to Baht 108 million.
After deduction of security deposit and estimation of recoverable amount of leased assets, the Company had set the

allowance for doubtful debts as of the end of 2016 in the amount of Baht 53 million.

Liabilities

As of 31 December 2016, the Company’s total liabilities amounted to Baht 10,477 million, which increased by Baht 204
million compared with the total liabilities of Baht 10,273 million at the end of 2015, or increased by 2%. The main
cause was an increase in the liabilities with interest burden in the amount of Baht 256 million. This type of liabilities will
increase in line with the increase in the value of assets and accounts receivable under the two types of leases. Most of
such liabilities were in the forms of debentures and long-term loans from financial institutions with fixed interest rates

in order to avoid fluctuations in interest rates which might occur in the future.

At the end of the year 2016, the ratio of liabilities to shareholders’ equity was 3.81 times but taking into account only
the liabilities with interest burden, the ratio of liabilities to shareholders’ equity was 3.60 times. In this connection,
according to the loan covenants provided by the Company, the ratio of liabilities (calculated only the liabilities with
interest burden) to shareholders’ equity for the Company’s debentures should not exceed 5.25 times, 6 times and 7
times (depending on the conditions of each set of debentures). It can be seen that the said ratio at the end of 2016 is
still much lower than the figures specified by the loan covenant. Therefore, the Company will be able to continue to

comply with the said loan covenant and is capable of expanding the leased assets in the future.
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Shareholders’ Equity

As of 31 December 2016, the shareholders’ equity was equal to Baht 2,752 million, which increased from the end of the
year 2015 by Baht 113 million or 4% due to an increase in retained profit while the returns on the shareholders’ equity
in 2016 and 2015 were 8.17% and 7.22%, respectively.

Liquidity

With respect to the liquidity for the year ending 31 December 2016, the Company obtained cash flow from the operating
activities in the amount of Baht 3,092 million. The Company made payment for purchase of assets held for lease under
operating lease contracts in the amount of Baht 2,799 million plus income tax in the amount of Baht 117 million. As a
result, the Company had net cash from operating activities in the amount of Baht 176 million. Meanwhile, the Company
obtained net cash flow from investment activities in the amount of Baht 1 million, derived from the purchase and sale
of equipment and assets other than the assets held for lease under operating lease contracts. Also, the Company
obtained net cash flow used in fund raising activities in the amount of Baht 179 million, resulting from the total amount
of financial expenses and dividends paid as well as short-term and long-term loans repaid which was higher than the
amount of short-term and long-term loans newly applied for to purchase additional assets for lease.

Apart from the rental received by the Company in each month, the Company still had short-term loans which could
be drawn from financial institutions in large amounts and also had been approved long-term loans from several
financial institutions, and moreover, the Company was able to issue debentures and bills of exchange to raise funds
consecutively. Therefore, it could be deemed that the Company’s liquidity was sufficient for the operation of business
whether in short term or long term.

Factors which may have impacts on financial status and operating results

The Company still places emphasis on business opportunity seeking from operating leases and other relevant services.
Not only vehicle leasing which is the Company’s core business, there are possibilities for leasing out other types of
assets which may meet the demand from existing customers who have good payment history and new customers who
have achieved sound operating results.

In 2018, the quality and rental payment capability of lessees will still be the factors, on which the Company places
importance although in 2017, the Company was able to manage the quality of accounts receivable more efficiently
compared to the previous year, taking into account the solutions to outstanding debt problems and the selection of
new lessees. The used car market situation and used car prices which are quite steady, will be another factor, on which
the Company places importance because there are many of assets to be sold each year. Moreover, the other factor,
on which the Company places importance and follows up closely, is the increasing popularity of electric vehicles as it
might have an impact on the used car prices in the future.
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The Board of Directors of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited had resolved to establish an audit committee
which consisted of Mr.Suebtrakul Soonthornthum as chairman, Mr. Poonpipat Aungurigul and Mr.Arpatsorn Bunnag
as members and Mr. Danu Sukhavat as secretary.

During the past 12-month period ended as at 31 December 2017 (January 2017 — December 2017), the Audit
Committee held 4 meetings, at which all three members were present whereby they made consideration and
comments on several matters as follows:

1. Review of the Company’s quarterly financial statements and financial statement for the year 2017 endedas
at 31 December 2017 : The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the said financial statements were prepared
correctly, appropriately, sufficiently and were reliable in accordance with the certified accounting standards.

2. The Audit Committee held 4 meetings with the officers of the Internal Audit Office, at which the Audit
Committee acknowledged the results of the audit and review of the internal audit system for the year 2017 ended as
at 31 December 2017 operated by the Internal Audit Office. The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the Company
had sufficient and appropriate internal audit system.

3. Acknowledgement of the report on the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange,
the Stock Exchange’s regulations or the laws relating to the Company’s business: The Audit Committee was of the
opinion that the Company had fully complied with the law on securities and exchange, the Stock Exchange’s regulations
and the laws relating to the Company’s business.

4. The Audit Committee held 4 meetings with the Company’s certified auditor. The Audit Committee was of
the opinion that KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limited (KPMG), the auditor of the Company for the accounting period of the
year 2017 ended as at 31 December 2017 had properly performed the duties in accordance with auditing standards.

5. The Audit Committee considered connected transactions which might give rise to conflict of interest,
and was of the opinion that the connected transactions occurred were entered into in the same manner as transactions
made in the ordinary course of business whereby the Company already disclosed the said transactions in the notes to
financial statement, and there was no conflict of interest.

6. The Audit Committee considered the update of overdue receivables.

Furthermore, the Audit Committee provided comments and notes in general on the performance of duties according to
mandates and/or scope of operation as follows: The Company adhered to the good governance policy which resulted
in good internal audit system. The financial statements were correctly and accurately prepared. There was sufficient
disclosure of information which was reliable in accordance with the certified accounting standards. According to the
financial report for the year 2017 ended as at 31 December 2017, there was no information or circumstance which
would materially affect the Company’s financial status.

The Audit Committee nominated certified auditors and proposed remuneration of auditors to the Company’s
Board of Directors to the effect that Miss Aorapin Sinthawornkul, Mr.Chanchai Sakulkoedsin and /or Miss Pantip
Gulantithamrong certified auditors of KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limited shall be appointed asthe Company’s auditor (s)

for the accounting period of the year 2018.
e
ADN
(‘*’T

(Mr. Suebtrakul Soonthornthum)
chairman of The Audit Committee
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To the Shareholders of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited (the “Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2017, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions that is relevant to my audit
of the financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Adequacy of allowance for doubtful accounts

Refer to Notes 3, 6 and 7

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in my audit

The Company has receivables under operating
lease contracts, receivables under finance lease
contracts and assets held for lease under operating
lease contracts which, together, comprise
approximately 90.6% of total assets. Due to the
management judgment involved in the estimation
and the risk that default on payment of receivables
may have a material impact on the financial
statements, | have determined this to be a Key
Audit Matter. The estimation of allowance for
doubtful accounts involves an assessment of the
debtors’ ability to pay and the realisable value from
the sale/lease of any returned assets.

My audit procedures consisted of:

- understanding the assessment of the Company’s
assumption and the appropriateness of the
Company’s accounting policy for allowance for
doubtful accounts;

- considering the ability of repayments from
receivables under operating lease contracts and
receivables under finance lease contracts by
assessing the ability of previous repayment and
the current status of existing receivables;

- considering the possibility of repossession and
assessing the estimated recovery amount of
leased assets by using the external prices
derived from market and/or the valuation report
from independent valuers which are adjusted by
the Company’s plan to manage the assets which
are returned from the default contracts for
receivables under finance lease contracts; and

- considering the adequacy of the Company’s
disclosures in relation to receivables under
operating lease contracts and receivables under
finance lease contracts in accordance with Thai
Financial Reporting Standards.

Valuation of inventory

Refer to Notes 3 and 9

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in my audit

The Company has a risk of valuation of inventory
due to a fluctuation in the used car market, thereby
having a direct impact on the net realisable value of
inventory. I have determined this to be important
due to the fact that inventory provisions are
dependent on estimated future selling prices.

My audit procedures consisted of:

- assessing the net realisable value of inventory
by evaluating the appropriateness of the
Company’s plan to arrange and the estimation
of selling price of the car sales for which
contract are expired and comparing to selling
price subsequent to year-end for sold cars and
external prices derived from market for unsold
cars to test whether selling price exceeded the
book value of inventory at year end; and

- considering the adequacy of the Company’s
disclosures in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards.
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Recognition of deferred tax assets

Refer to Note 3 and 14

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in my audit

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets
for deductible temporary differences and unused
tax losses that it believes are recoverable.

The recoverability of recognised deferred tax assets
is in part dependent on the Company’s ability to
generate future taxable profits sufficient to utilise
deductible temporary differences and tax losses
(before the latter expire).

I have determined this to be a key audit matter, due
to the inherent uncertainty in forecasting the
amount and timing of future taxable profits and the
reversal of temporary differences.

My audit procedures consisted of:

- inquiring the management who is responsible
for preparing the Company’s forecast future
taxable profits;

- assessing and challenging the management’s
judgements, assumptions used in the projection
of future taxable profits by evaluating the
reasonableness of historical forecasting and
comparing with the actual operating results and
the operation’s plan. This included using my
understanding of the Company, the Company’s
industry and the sensitivity of the changes in
the forecast of the Company’s future taxable
profits to evaluate the reasonability of the

management’s process for forecasting the
future taxable profits;

- performing the recalculation of the forecast;
and

- considering the adequacy of the Company’s
disclosures in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.
The annual report is expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor's report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with TFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with TSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be
communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

@ﬁ,«

(Bunyarit Thanormcharoen)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 7900

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
Bangkok
21 February 2018
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

Statement of financial position

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables under operating lease contracts

Current portion of receivables under finance lease contracts
Other receivables

Inventory

Assets held for sale

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Receivables under finance lease contracts
Other long-term investments

Property and equipment

Property foreclosed

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Note

4,8

10

4,11
12
13
14

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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31 December

2017 2016
(in Baht)

214,791,962 77,622,641
201,541,906 205,722,102
915,014,953 800,400,037
466,624,013 310,763,705
92,160,766 86,199,315
742,043 24,892,664
22,555,460 28,983,084
1,913,431,103 1,534,583,548

1,281,358,007

1,195,790,678

9,686,506,048 10,225,574,524
23,992,453 23,992,453
2,743,574 3,290,715
293,576,618 238,065,316
9,836,759 8,392,180
11,298,013,459 11,695,105,866
13,211,444,562 13,229,689,414
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

Statement of financial position

Liabilities and equity

Current liabilities

Short-term loans from financial institutions

Trade accounts payable

Other payables

Current portion of debentures

Current portion of long-term loans from financial institutions

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Debentures

Long-term loans from financial institutions

Advances received from lessees for exercising
purchase option and guarantee deposits

Rental income received in advance

Non-current provisions for employee benefits

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity
Share capital
Authorised share capital
Issued and paid-up share capital

Premium on ordinary shares
Retained earnings

Appropriated
Legal reserve
Unappropriated
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Note

15.1
4,16
17
15.2
15.3

15.2
15.3

18

19

19

21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

31 December

2017 2016
(in Baht)

827,785,635 1,752,743,043
223,123,310 107,766,163
192,918,916 182,553,750
1,749,780,935 1,899,672,945
877,522,000 577,700,000
3,871,130,796 4,520,435,901
4,896,791,340 4,946,319,517
1,198,262,000 717,910,000
178,278,661 141,307,852
151,509,267 101,779,079
53,364,526 49,723,467
6,478,205,794 5,957,039,915
10,349,336,590 10,477,475,816
646,200,489 646,200,489
596,492,874 596,492,753
645,118,416 645,118,058
64,620,049 64,558,515
1,555,876,633 1,446,044,272
2,862,107,972 2,752,213,598
13,211,444,562 13,229,689,414
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

Statement of comprehensive income

Revenue
Rental income from operating lease contracts

Income from finance lease contracts

Revenue from sale of assets under operating lease contracts

Gain on disposal of equipment, assets held for sale
and property foreclosed
Other income

Total revenue

Expenses

Direct rental costs

Cost of sale of assets under operating lease contracts
Loss on disposal of equipment and assets held for sale
Administrative expenses

Doubtful accounts expense

Finance costs

Total expenses

Profit before income tax
Tax income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

meessssssmm——w) [inancial Statement

Note

4,23

4,26
26

4,24, 26
6,78 26

27

18

28

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December

2017

(in Baht)

2,661,526,372
142,001,910
1,005,780,254

2016

2,868,188,092
107,846,903
1,150,297,793

- 1,545,603
47,742,336 46,547,667
3,857,050,872 4,174,426,058

2,124,465,633
1,012,250,578

2,236,390,154
1,088,555,894

4,680,902 -
251,375,020 263,002,809
13,420,600 157,320,087
285,078,797 320,791,868
3,691,271,530 4,066,060,812
165,779,342 108,365,246
(56,110,076) (111,806,081)
221,889,418 220,171,327
1,672,625 (7,633,602)
(334,525) 1,526,721
1,338,100 (6,106,881)
223,227,518 214,064,446
0.37 0.37
0.37 0.37
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

Statement of cash flows

Year ended 31 December

Note 2017 2016
(in Baht)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 221,889,418 220,171,327
Adjustments to reconcile profit to

cash receipts (payments)
Depreciation and amortisation 1,715,791,744 1,823,153,280
Financial costs 285,078,797 320,791,868
Doubtful accounts expense 13,420,600 157,320,087
Losses on (reversal of) inventories devaluation 174,437 (486,660)
Gain on disposal of equipment, assets held for sale

and property foreclosed (36,696) (912,803)
Provisions for employee benefits 5,313,683 4,168,812
Tax income (56,110,076) (111,806,081)

2,185,521,907

Change in operating assets and liabilities

2,412,399,830

Receivables under operating lease contracts 2,973,734 (18,426,785)
Receivables under finance lease contracts 230,923,446 (288,399,989)
Other receivables 7,689,170 (22,084,568)
Inventory 1,012,250,578 1,088,555,894
Assets held for sale 24,150,621 (10,182,033)
Other current assets 6,427,625 (20,386,000)
Other non-current assets (5,449,829) (1,845,877)
Trade accounts payable 120,207,709 (152,094,241)
Other payables 15,087,227 45,570,648
Advances received from lessees for exercising

purchase option and guarantee deposits 36,970,809 19,850,920
Rental income received in advance 49,730,187 38,874,178
Net cash generated from operating 3,686,483,184 3,091,831,977
Cash paid for purchase operating lease assets (2,626,991,942) (2,799,060,337)
Taxes paid (173,761,561) (116,949,455)
Net cash from operating activities 885,729,681 175,822,185

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of equipment, asset held for sale
and property foreclosed

Net cash from (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Financial costs paid

Dividends paid to owners of the Company

Proceeds from short-term loans from financial institutions
Repayment of short-term loans from financial institutions
Proceeds from issuance of debentures

Repayment of debentures

Proceeds from long-term loans

Repayment of long-term loans

Proceeds from exercise of share options

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note

Year ended 31 December

2017 2016
(in Baht)

(2,607,714) (3,899,276)
(170,900) (164,000)

2,135,664 4,894,392

(642,950) 831,116
(284,758,266) (339,581,055)
(113,333,623) (101,403,768)

4,920,000,000 7,805,000,000

(5,850,000,000)
1,700,000,000
(1,900,000,000)
1,500,000,000

(719,826,000)

(6,545,000,000)
2,200,000,000
(2,200,000,000)

(998,180,000)

479 -
(747,917,410) (179,164,823)
137,169,321 (2,511,522)
77,622,641 80,134,163
214,791,962 77,622,641
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

(a)

(b)

(©

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements issued for Thai statutory and regulatory reporting purposes are prepared in the
Thai language. These English language financial statements have been prepared from the Thai
language statutory financial statements, and were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21 February 2018.

General information

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited “the Company” is incorporated in Thailand and has its
registered office at 252/6, 29" Floor, Muang Thai Phatra Complex, Rachadaphisek Road, Huaykwang,
Bangkok 10320.

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 15 August 1996.

The Company’s major shareholder during the financial year was Muang Thai Life Assurance Plc.
(10.00% shareholding) which was incorporated in Thailand.

The principal activities of the Company are to provide leasing services to principally the corporate
enterprises.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS);
guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions (“FAP”); and applicable rules and
regulations of the Thai Securities and Exchange Commission.

The FAP has issued new and revised TFRS effective for annual accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017. The initial application of these new and revised TFRS has resulted in changes in
certain of the Company’s accounting policies. These changes have no material effect on the financial
statements.

In addition to the above new and revised TFRS, the FAP has issued a number of other new and revised

TFRS which are effective for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and have
not been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items.

Items Measurement bases
Defined benefit liability Present value of the defined benefit obligation
as explained in Note 3 (n)

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht, which is the Company’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in Thai Baht has been rounded in the notes to the financial statements
to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

(d)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial
statements is included in the following notes:

Note 14 and 27 Deferred tax assets and income tax expense
Note 18 Measurement of defined benefit obligations
Note 30 Valuation of financial instruments

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorised in different

levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the

same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire

measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

Note 30 Valuation of financial instruments
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currency at exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to
the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising

on translation are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at cost in foreign currencies and translated to the
functional currency using the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.

Hedging

Hedge of future foreign currency transactions

Gains and losses from forward exchange contracts used to hedge anticipated future currency
transactions are deferred until the forecasted transaction occurs. Where the hedged item is a

recognised asset or liability, it is translated at the contracted forward rates.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities hedged by forward exchange contracts are translated to Thai
Baht at the contracted forward exchange rates.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows comprise cash balances and call deposits.

Receivable under operating lease contracts, receivable under finance lease contracts, and other
receivables

Receivable under operating lease contracts and other receivables are stated at their invoice value less
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Receivable under finance lease contracts are carried at outstanding amount, net of unearned interest
income less allowance for doubtful accounts.

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated losses that may be
incurred in the collection of all receivables. The estimated losses are based on the receivables
classification and a review of the current status of existing receivables.
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Receivables under operating lease contracts

The basis of allowance for doubtful accounts of receivables under operating lease contracts computed
as a percentage of outstanding receivable are as follows:

Receivables outstanding over 0 month to 1 month 1%
Receivables outstanding over 1 month to 3 months 2%
Receivables outstanding over 3 months 100%

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the above percentages to the
outstanding balances net of received deposit for each receivable and considers the ability to repayment
of each receivable which overdue over 3 months.

In addition, the Company provides an additional allowance for doubtful accounts as a general reserve
at 5% of outstanding leasing receivables under operating lease contracts net of received deposit. If the
allowance has been considered fully provided, the Company will not set up an additional allowance for
doubtful accounts as a general reserve.

Receivables under finance lease contracts

The basis of allowance for doubtful accounts of receivables under finance lease contracts computed as
a percentage of outstanding receivable are as follows:

Receivables outstanding over 0 month to 1 month 1%
Receivables outstanding over 1 month to 3 months 2%
Receivables outstanding over 3 months 100%

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the above percentages to the
outstanding balances net of received deposit and the estimated recovery amount of leased asset for each
receivable.

In addition, the Company provides an additional allowance for doubtful accounts as a general reserve
at 5% of outstanding leasing receivables under finance lease contracts net of received deposit and the
estimated recoverable amount of leased asset. If the allowance has been considered fully provided, the
Company will not set up an additional allowance for doubtful accounts as a general reserve.

(e) Inventory

Operating lease assets are transferred to inventory on the date that they cease to be rented and are held
for sale. These are measured at the lower of the book value at that date and net realisable value.

Cost of inventory is calculated using the specific method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs to sell.

(f) Assets held for sale

Assets held for sale consisted of movable assets held for sale under the finance lease contracts which
the Company plans to sell within one year, and are measured at the lower of carrying value and fair
value less cost to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification and subsequent gains and losses on
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss. Gains are not recognised in excess of any cumulative

impairment loss.
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

(2

(h)

Investments

Investment in other equity securities

Investment in equity securities which are not marketable are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
Disposal of investments

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

If the Company disposes of part of its holding of a particular investment, the deemed cost of the part
sold is determined using the weighted average method applied to the carrying value of the total holding
of the investment.

Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Owned assets

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs.
Cost also may include transfers from other comprehensive income of any gain or loss on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property and equipment. Purchased software that is
integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

Any gains and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment, and are recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the
Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated based on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of property and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Office condominium and utilities system 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5,7and 10 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Assets held for operating lease Over the lease period

Assets held for future lease are depreciated upon commencement of the lease.
No depreciation is provided on assets under construction.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

(i)  Property foreclosed

Property foreclosed consisted of immovable property foreclosed which the Company plans to sell in
more than one year were measured at the lower of carrying value and appraisal value for sale less cost
to sell and was classified to non-current assets. Impairment losses on initial classification and
subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss. Gains are not
recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.

(G) Intangible assets
Software licenses

Software licenses that are acquired by the Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation

Amortisation is based on the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual
value.

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives from
the date that they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful lives for the
current and comparative periods are as follows:

Software licenses 3-10 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

(k) Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are
estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the greater of the assets’ value in use and fair value
less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods in respect of other non-financial assets are assessed at
each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction charges.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing liabilities are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Trade accounts payable and other payables

Trade accounts payable and other payables are stated at cost.
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any application minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, actuarial gain or loss are recognised immediately
in OCIL. The Company determines the interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined
benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The
Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement
occurs.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

(o) Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

(r) Revenue

Revenues excludes value added taxes and other sales taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade
discounts.

Rental income from operating lease contracts

Rental income from operating lease contracts is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

Income from finance lease contracts
The Company has recognised the income by using the effective interest rate method.

The Company has ceased to recognise rental income from operating lease contracts and income from
finance lease contracts in profit or loss when lessees have not paid rentals for more than three months.

Revenue from sale of assets under operating lease contracts

Revenue from sale of assets under operating lease contracts (inventory) is recognised in profit or loss
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is
recognised if there is continuing management involvement with the assets or there are significant
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the probable return of
assets.

Revenue from sale of equipment and assets held for sale

Revenue from sales of equipment and assets held for sale are recognised in profit or loss when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyers.

Other income

Other operating income and interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues.
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Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Finance costs
Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings that are recognised in profit or loss.
Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the
remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.

Income tax

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity or
in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which
the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Company takes into account the impact of
uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Company believes that
its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors,
including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about future events. New information may become
available that causes the Company to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax
liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised.
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(t)  Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares, which comprise convertible notes.

(w) Segment reporting

Segment results that are reported to Board of Directors (the Chief Operating Decision Maker) include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Unallocated items comprise mainly revenue from sale of assets under operating lease contracts, cost of
sale of assets under operating lease contracts, administrative expenses, finance costs and deferred tax
assets.

4  Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Company if
the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or joint control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where
the Company and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals or other entities.

Relationships with key management and related parties were as follows:

Country of
Incorporation/
Name of entities/Person Nationality Nature of relationships

Key management personnel Thailand Persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,
including any director, a managing director,
the first 4 executive levels in the
organisation chart and all the forth executive
including other equivalent positions of the
forth executive downward from the
managing director (whether executive or
otherwise) of the Company.

Muang Thai Life Assurance Plc. Thailand 10.00% shareholding and some common directors

Muang Thai Insurance Plec. Thailand 8.89% shareholding and some common directors

Muang Thai Real Estate Plc. Thailand Holding share 0.39% and some common directors

The pricing policies for transaction with related parties are explained further below:

Transactions Pricing policies
Rental income from operating lease contracts At contractually agreed rate
Discount on insurance premium At contractually agreed rate
Insurance premium expenses At contractually agreed rate
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Significant transactions with key management and related parties for the years ended 31 December
were as follows:

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Other related parties
Rental income from operating lease contracts 43,721 40,941
Discount on insurance premium 10,167 9,321
Insurance premium expenses 85,701 93,177

Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation represents benefits provided to directors and executives of
the Company. They comprise management compensation such as salaries, related benefit, included
post-employment benefits and directors’ remuneration.

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Short-term management benefits 46,347 43,126
Post-employment benefits 2,791 2,612
Total 49,138 45,738
Significant balances as at 31 December with related parties were as follows:
2017 2016

(in thousand Baht)
Other receivables - prepaid insurance expenses
Muang Thai Insurance Plc. 45,067 42,317

Other long-term investment
Muang Thai Real Estate Plc.
(Net of allowance for impairment amounted Baht 4.1 million) - -

Property and equipment - assets held for lease under

operating lease contracts
Muang Thai Life Assurance Plc. 133,487 119,999
Muang Thai Insurance Plc. 52,454 53,185

Trade accounts payable - accrued insurance premium
Muang Thai Insurance Plc. 4,064 4,324

S  Cash and cash equivalents

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Cash on hand 133 134
Cash at banks - current accounts 80,353 14,855
Cash at banks - savings accounts 134,306 62,634
Total 214,792 77,623

Cash and cash equivalents of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were denominated
entirely in Thai Baht.
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6

Receivables under operating lease contracts

Receivables under operating lease contracts

Defaulted receivables
Less allowance for doubtful accounts
Net

Doubtful accounts expense for the year

Aging analyses for receivables under operating lease contracts were as follows:

Normal receivables
Within credit terms
Overdue:
Less than 3 months
3 - 6 months
6 - 12 months
More than 12 months
Total normal receivables
Defaulted receivables

Total receivables under operating lease contracts

Less allowance for doubtful accounts
Net

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
205,222 208,196
73,732 73,732
(77,412) (76,206)
201,542 205,722
1,206 69,053
2017 2016

(in thousand Baht)

134,282 148,225
63,965 48,026
793 1,268

255 4,757
5,927 5,920
205,222 208,196
73,732 73,732
278,954 281,928
(77,412) (76,206)
201,542 205,722

The normal credit term granted by the Company is 30 days.

Receivables under operating lease contracts of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were

denominated entirely in Thai Baht.

Receivables under finance lease contracts

Portion due after one year

Portion due within one year but within five year Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Normal receivables
Receivables under finance
lease contracts 945,927 843,906 1,410,974 1,297,881 2,356,901 2,141,787
Less unearned interest
income (89,544) (102,987) (124,680) (98,043) (214,224) (201,030)
Total normal receivables 856,383 740,919 1,286,294 1,199,838 2,142,677 1,940,757
Defaulted receivables 108,476 108,476 - - 108,476 108,476
Total receivables under
finance lease contracts 964,859 849,395 1,286,294 1,199,838 2,251,153 2,049,233
Less allowance for doubtful
accounts (49,844) (48,995) (4,936) (4,047) (54,780) (53,042)
Net receivables under
finance lease contracts 915,015 800,400 1,281,358 1,195,791 2,196,373 1,996,191
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Doubtful accounts expense for the year

Aging analyses for receivables under finance lease contracts were as follows:

Normal receivables
Not yet due
Overdue:
Less than 3 months
3 - 6 months
6 - 12 months
More than 12 months
Total normal receivable
Defaulted receivables
Total receivables under finance lease contracts
Less unearned interest income
Less allowance for doubtful accounts
Net

The normal credit term granted by the Company is 30 days.

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
1,738 51,016
2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
2,304,237 2,103,067
24,381 18,817
2,269 4,352
3,919 4,856
22,095 10,695
2,356,901 2,141,787
108,476 108,476
2,465,377 2,250,263
(214,224) (201,030)
(54,780) (53,042)
2,196,373 1,996,191

Receivables under finance lease contracts of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were

denominated entirely in Thai Baht.

As at 31 December, the gross investment under the finance lease contracts and present value of
minimum lease payments receivable were as follows:

2017
Present value Present value
of minimum of minimum
Gross investment lease Gross investment lease
under payments under payments
finance lease under finance finance lease under finance
Contracts lease contracts contracts lease contracts
(in thousand Baht)
Portion due within one year 1,054,403 964,859 952,382 849,395
Portion due after one year
but within five years 1,410,974 1,286,294 1,297,881 1,199,838
Total 2,465,377 2,251,153 2,250,263 2,049,233
Less unearned interest (214,224) (201,030)
Net investment under
finance lease contracts 2,251,153 2,049,233
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8 Other receivables

Note 2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)

Prepaid insurance expenses

- related party 4 45,067 42,317

- other parties 55,236 54,348
Withholding tax deduct at source 173,761 116,949
Prepaid expenses 41,009 41,275
Refundable Value Added Tax - 11,466
Receivable from Revenue Department 117,214 10,505
Other receivables 133,975 123,065
Total 566,262 399,925
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (99,638) (89,161)
Net 466,624 310,764
Doubtful accounts expense for the year 10,477 37,251

9 Inventory

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)

Transportation equipment 98,357 92,221
Less allowance for decline in value of inventory

adjusted to net realisable value (6,169) (6,022)
Net 92,161 86,199

10 Assets held for sale

For the year ended 31 December 2017

At
beginning Transfer Transfer At end
of year in Depreciation Disposals out of year
(in thousand Baht)
Transportation
equipment 24,893 22,542 - (29,822) (16,871) 742
For the year ended 31 December 2016
At
beginning Transfer Transfer At end
of year in Depreciation Disposals out of year
(in thousand Baht)
Transportation
equipment 14,711 22,762 - (4,990) (7,590) 24,893
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12 Property foreclosed
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

At
beginning Transfer Transfer At end
of year in Depreciation  Disposals out of year
(in thousand Baht)
Land and office
condominium 39,487 - - - - 39,487
Less allowance for
impairment  (15,495) - - - - (15,495)
Net 23,992 - - - - 23,992
For the year ended 31 December 2016
At
beginning  Transfer Transfer Atend
of year in Depreciation  Disposals out of year
(in thousand Baht)
Land and office
condominium 39,487 - - - - 39,487
Less allowance for
impairment  (15,495) - - - - (15,495)
Net 23,992 - - - - 23,992
13 Intangible assets
Software
Software licenses
licenses in progress Total
(in thousand Baht)
Cost
At 1 January 2016 35,356 - 35,356
Additions 164 - 164
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 35,520 - 35,520
Additions 171 - 171
At 31 December 2017 35,691 - 35,691
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2016 30,297 - 30,297
Amortisation charge for the year 1,932 - 1,932
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 32,229 - 32,229
Amortisation charge for the year 718 - 718
At 31 December 2017 32,947 - 32,947
Net book value
At 1 January 2016 5,059 - 5,059
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 3,291 - 3,291
At 31 December 2017 2,744 - 2,744
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14 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 December were as follows:

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Deferred tax assets 305,562 248,554
Deferred tax liabilities (11,985) (10,488)
Net deferred tax assets 293,577 238,066

Movements in total deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year were as follows:

(Charged) / Credit to
At Other At
1 January Profitor  comprehensive 31December
2017 loss income 2017
(note 27)

(in thousand Baht)
Deferred tax assets

Depreciation of asset held for lease 103,380 9,019 - 112,399
Loss carry forward 52,759 37,031 - 89,790
Allowance for doubtful accounts 43,682 2,684 - 46,366
Allowance for decline in value of inventory 1,205 34 - 1,239
Accrued income on leases in arrears more

than three months 18,997 6,466 - 25,463
Advance received from lessee for

exercising purchase option 14,558 1,046 - 15,604

Allowance for loss on impairment of
investment and immovable

property foreclosed 4,028 - - 4,028
Non-current provisions for employee

benefits 9,945 1,063 (335) 10,673
Total 248,554 57,343 (335) 305,562

Deferred tax liabilities
Differences in income recognition of

operating and finance lease contracts (8,335) (959) - (9,294)
Depreciation of office condominium (2,153) (538) - (2,691)
Total (10,488) (1,497) - (11,985)
Net 238,066 55,846 (335) 293,577
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(Charged) / Credit to
At Other At
1January Profitor comprehensive 31 December
2016 loss income 2016
(note 27)
(in thousand Baht)

Deferred tax assets
Depreciation of asset held for lease 97,591 5,789 - 103,380
Loss carry forward - 52,759 - 52,759
Allowance for doubtful accounts 12,218 31,464 - 43,682
Allowance for decline in value of inventory 1,302 97) - 1,205
Accrued income on leases in arrears more

than three months 10,502 8,495 - 18,997
Advance received from lessee for

exercising purchase option 14,604 (46) - 14,558
Allowance for loss on impairment of

investment and immovable

property foreclosed 4,028 - - 4,028
Non-current provisions for employee

benefits 7,585 833 1,527 9,945
Total 147,830 99,197 1,527 248,554
Deferred tax liabilities
Differences in income recognition of

operating and finance lease contracts (8,837) 502 - (8,335)
Depreciation of office condominium (1,613) (540) - (2,153)
Total (10,450) (38) - (10,488)
Net 137,380 99,159 1,527 238,066

In 2016 and 2017, the Company has been granted privileges to be exempt from payment of income tax
for capital expenditures to use for an additional deductible expense. As a result, the Company has tax
losses of Bah 213.0 million (2016 : Baht 72.6 million). Management estimated of the future taxable
profits and recognised the deferred tax assets of Baht 89.8 million (2016 : Baht 52.8 million) on the loss
carry forward because management considered it is probable that the main portion of the future taxable
profits would be available against which such loss can be utilised. However, the Company has
unrecognised deferred tax asset of Baht 123.2 million for loss carry forward in the financial statement as
at 31 December 2017 (2016 : Baht 19.8 million).

15 Interest-bearing liabilities

15.1 Short-term loans from financial institutions
2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Current - unsecured

Promissory notes 280,000 360,000
Bills of exchange 550,000 1,400,000
Less unamortised discount on bills of exchange (2,214) (7,257)
Short-term loans from financial institutions 827,786 1,752,743

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had overdraft lines and other credit facilities, excluding bills of
exchange, with various local banks totaling Baht 2,300 million (2016: Baht 2,300 million) which bear
interest at the Money Market Rate (MMR) at the transaction date. As at 31 December 2017, the
Company had unutilised credit facilities totaling Baht 1,871 million (2016: Baht 1,806 million).
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15.2 Debentures

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Unsecured debentures - at face value 6,650,000 6,850,000
Less unamortised deferred charges on debenture issuance (3,428) (4,008)
6,646,572 6,845,992
Less current portion due within one year
(net of unamortised deferred
charges on debenture issuance) (1,749,781) (1,899,673)
Debentures, non-current portion 4,896,791 4,946,319

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has outstanding balances of issued unsecured, name registered,
unsubordinated and no-trustee debentures which were offered to the institutional investors specified in
the Notification of Securities and Exchange Commission. The details of issuance of debentures were as

below:

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

15 May 2014

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

4 years, will mature on 15 May 2018

Fixed rate of 4.00% per annum

Every 15 May and 15 November of each year

1 October 2014

300,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 300 million

3 years 4 months, will mature on 1 February 2018
Fixed rate of 3.75% per annum

Every 1 February and 1 August of each year

16 February 2015

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

3 years will mature on 16 February 2018
Fixed interest rate of 3.12% per annum

Every 16 February and 16 August of each year

22 April 2015

450,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each

Baht 450 million

3 years 5 months 27 days, will mature on 19 October 2018
Fixed interest rate of 3.00% per annum

Every 19 April and 19 October of each year

23 July 2015

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

3 years 6 months, will mature on 23 January 2019
Fixed interest rate of 2.62% per annum

Every 23 January and 23 July of each year
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Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

Debenture issued on
Unit and value

Total debenture value
Period and maturity date
Interest rate

Interest payment due

24 September 2015

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

4 years, will mature on 24 September 2019
Fixed interest rate of 2.86% per annum
Every 24 March and 24 September of each year

25 January 2016

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

4 years will mature on 25 January 2020
Fixed interest rate of 2.49% per annum
Every 25 January and 25 July of each year

24 February 2016

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

5 years will mature on 24 February 2021
Fixed interest rate of 2.63% per annum

Every 24 February and 24 August of each year

24 February 2016

200,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 200 million

7 years will mature on 24 February 2023
Fixed interest rate of 3.05% per annum

Every 24 February and 24 August of each year

17 August 2016

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

3 years will mature on 17 August 2019

Fixed interest rate of 2.24% per annum

Every 17 February and 17 August of each year

28 September 2016

500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Baht 500 million

4 years will mature on 28 September 2020
Fixed interest rate of 2.60% per annum

Every 28 March and 28 September of each year

16 February 2017

700,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each

Baht 700 million

2 years 3 months will mature on 16 May 2019

Fixed interest rate of 2.56% per annum

Every 16 February and 16 August of each year
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Debenture issued on 3 August 2017

Unit and value 500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Total debenture value Baht 500 million

Period and maturity date 4 years will mature on 3 August 2021

Interest rate Fixed interest rate of 2.76% per annum
Interest payment due Every 3 February and 3 August of each year
Debenture issued on 18 October 2017

Unit and value 500,000 units of par value of Baht 1,000 each
Total debenture value Baht 500 million

Period and maturity date 2 years 11 months 18 days will mature on 6 October 2020
Interest rate Fixed interest rate of 2.43% per annum
Interest payment due Every 6 April and 6 October of each year

In connection with the terms of the rights and responsibilities of the debentures issuer, the Company, as
the issuer, has to comply with certain restrictions and conditions as stipulated therein, such as
maintaining certain financial ratios etc.

15.3 Long-term loans from financial institutions

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Long-term loans from financial institutions - unsecured 2,075,784 1,295,610
Less current portion due within one year (877,522) (577,700)
Long-term loans from financial institutions,
non-current portion 1,198,262 717,910

In August 2014, the Company entered into long-term loan agreements with a bank for a credit line of
Baht 500 million. As at 30 September 2014, the Company has drawn down the loan in full. The loan
has a fixed interest rate. The Company will repay principal installments on a quarterly basis and the
maturity date of the final installment will be in August 2018.

In October 2015, the Company entered into long-term loan agreements with a bank for a credit line of
Baht 350 million. As at 15 October 2015, the Company has drawn down the loan in full. The loan has a
fixed interest rate. The Company will repay principal installments on a quarterly basis and the maturity
date of the final installment will be in October 2018.

In December 2015, the Company entered into long-term loan agreements with a bank for a credit line
of Baht 500 million. As at 16 December 2015, the Company has drawn down the loan in full. The loan
has a fixed interest rate. The Company will repay principal installments on a quarterly basis and the
maturity date of the final installment will be in December 2019.

In January 2017, the Company entered into long-term loan agreements with a bank for credit line of
Baht 500 million. As at 27 January 2017, the Company has drawn down the loan in full. The loan has a
fixed interest rate. The Company will repay principal installments on a quarterly basis and the maturity
date of the final instalment will be in January 2020.

In March 2017, the Company entered into long-term loan agreements with a bank for credit lines of
Baht 150 million, respectively. As at 30 March 2017, the Company has drawn down the loan in full.
The loan has a fixed interest rate. The Company will repay principal installments on a quarterly basis
and the maturity date of the final instalment will be in March 2020.
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In April 2017, the Company entered into long-term loan agreements with a bank for credit lines of Baht
in full. The loan has a fixed
interest rate. The Company will repay principal installments on a quarterly basis and the maturity date

350 million. On 27 April 2017, the Company has drawn down the loan

of the final instalment will be in April 2020.

In May 2017, the Company entered into long-term loan agreements with a bank for credit lines of Baht
in full. The loan has a fixed
interest rate. The Company will repay principal installments on a quarterly basis and the maturity date

500 million. On 31 May 2017, the Company has drawn down the loan

of the final instalment will be in May 2021.

The periods to maturity of interest-bearing liabilities as at 31 December were as follows:

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Within one year 3,455,089 4,230,116
After one year but within five years 5,895,230 5,664,229
After five years 199,823 -
Total 9,550,142 9,894,345

Interest-bearing liabilities of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were denominated

entirely in Thai Baht.

16 Trade accounts payable

Note 2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)

Related parties 4 4,064 4,324
Other parties 219,059 103,442
Total 223,123 107,766
Trade accounts payable of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were denominated in Thai
Baht.

17  Other payables

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Accrued finance costs 64,579 69,301
Rental income received in advance 84,727 63,881
Accrued expenses 33,417 40,808
Withholding tax payables 9,167 7,193
Others 1,029 1,371
Total 192,919 182,554
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18 Non-current provisions for employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

The Company operates a number of post-employment benefit plans including defined benefit plans. All
defined benefit plans are unfunded.

Post-employment benefit obligations presented in statement of financial position are as follows:

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Present value of unfunded obligations 53,365 49,724
Post-employment benefit obligations presented
in statement of financial position 53,365 49,724
Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations:
2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
At 1 January 49,724 37,921
Include in profit or loss:
Current service cost and interest cost 5,314 4,169
Included in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain) loss (1,673) 7,634
Other
Benefits paid - -
At 31 December 53,365 49,724

Actuarial gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income arising from:

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Demographic assumptions (1,423) 153
Financial assumptions 2,702 (7,176)
Experience adjustment (2,952) (611)
Total (1,673) (7,634)

Principal actuarial assumptions as at 31 December 2017 based on a discount rate 3.00% (2016. 3.51%);
the future salary increased rate 5.5% - 7.5% (2016: 5.5% - 7.5%); the withdrawal rate 4.3% - 19.4%
(2016: 2.2% - 16.9%); the retirement ages were 55 - 60 years (2016. 55 - 60 years), and the assumption
regarding future mortality rate are based on statistics of an insurance company.

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding
other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown
below.

Increase Decrease
(in thousand Baht)
At 31 December 2017
Discount rate (1% movement) (5,120) 5,900
Future salary growth (1% movement) 5,078 (4,541
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Increase Decrease
(in thousand Baht)
At 31 December 2016
Discount rate (1% movement) (5,187) 6,018
Future salary growth (1% movement) 5,231 (4,649)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the
plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

19 Share capital

Par value 2017 2016
per share  Number Amount Number Amount
(in Baht) (thousand shares / thousand Baht)
Authorised
At 1 January
- ordinary shares 1 646,200 646,200 646,200 646,200
At 31 December
- ordinary shares 1 646,200 646,200 646,200 646,200
Issued and paid-up
At 1 January
- ordinary shares 1 596,493 596,493 596,493 596,493
Shares options exercised 1 - - - -
At 31 December
- ordinary shares 1 596,493 596,493 596,493 596,493

*During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company issued 121 outstanding shares amounting to Baht 121
Jfor shares option exercised (2016 : nil).

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

Share premium
Section 51 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 requires companies to set aside share subscription

monies received in excess of the par value of the shares issued to a reserve account (“share premium”).
Share premium is not available for dividend distribution.
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20 Warrants

The Company had warrants to purchase new ordinary shares of the Company. The details of warrants
are as follows;

Name of warrants : Warrants to purchase the new ordinary shares of Phatra Leasing
Public Company Limited No.1 (PL-W1)

Allocated to :  Existing common shareholders at an offering ratio of 3 new
ordinary shares per 1 unit of warrant

Number of warrants issued . Not exceeding 49,707,730 units

Offering price : Baht 0.00 per unit

Number of listed warrants : 49,707,319 units

Date granted : 15 June 2015

Last exercise date : 15 June 2018

Maturity : 3 years

Exercise price . Baht 3.962 per share

Exercise right per unit : Warrant 1 unit to 1.01 ordinary share

Exercise period . The holders of warrants are able to exercise the warrants on the

last business day of March, June, September and December each
year throughout the term of the warrants. The first exercise date
shall be after the second anniversary of the warrants.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, PL-W1 was exercised in amount of 120 units and registered as
paid-up share capital in the amount of Baht 121, resulting in an increase of the Company’s paid-up share
capital to Baht 121.

As at 31 December 2017, the remaining warrants (PL-W1) have not been exercised are 49,707,198 units.

21 Legal reserves

Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 section 116 requires that a public company shall
allocate not less than 5% of its annual net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a
reserve account (“legal reserve”), until this account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the
registered authorised capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s legal reserve amounted to Baht 65 million (2016: Baht 65
million).

22 Segment information

The Company has two reportable segments, as described below, which are the Company’s strategic
divisions. The strategic divisions offer different services, and are managed separately because they
require different marketing strategies. For each of the strategic divisions, the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM) reviews internal management reports on at least a quarterly basis. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Company’s reportable segments.

e Segment 1 Land vehicles
e Segment 2 Others

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is
measured based on segment gross profit, as included in the internal management reports that are
reviewed by the Company’s CODM. Segment gross profit is used to measure performance as
management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain
segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries.
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Information about reportable segments:

Land vehicles Others Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)

External revenue 2,452,832 2,666,054 350,696 309,981 2,803,528 2,976,035
Total segment revenue 2,452,832 2,666,054 350,696 309,981 2,803,528 2,976,035
Direct rental costs 1,877,216 2,019,133 247,250 217,257 2,124,466 2,236,390
Segment gross profit 575,616 646,921 103,446 92,724 679,062 739,645
Segment assets 9,996,419 10,543,068 2,078,583 1,887,424 12,075,002 12,430,492
Capital expenditure 2,461,042 2,443,295 165,950 355,765 2,626,992 2,799,060
Segment liabilities 227,943 224,053 186,572 82,914 414,515 306,967

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)

Revenues

Total revenue from reportable segments 2,803,528 2,976,035

Other revenue 1,053,523 1,198,391

Total revenues 3,857,051 4,174,426

Profit or loss

Total gross profit for reportable segments 679,062 739,645

Unallocated amounts (513,283) (631,280)

Profit before income tax 165,779 108,365

Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 12,075,002 12,430,492

Unallocated amounts 1,136,443 799,198

Total assets 13,211,445 13,229,690

Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments 414,515 306,967

Unallocated amounts 9,934,822 10,170,509

Total liabilities 10,349,337 10,477,476

Geographical segments

The Company operates only in Thailand. There are no revenues derived from, or assets located in,

foreign countries.

Major customer

The Company does not have any major customer which is significant to financial statement because the
Company does not have any external revenue from one customer more than 10% of total revenues.

288

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited |



eessssssssssssss wmp N\ oOtes to the financial statements

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

23  Other income

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Discount on insurance premium 19,186 18,569
Penalty income 12,359 12,651
Interest income 398 515
Others 15,799 14,813
Total 47,742 46,548
24 Administrative expenses
Note 2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Employee benefit expenses 25 163,996 173,059
Rental and utilities service charges 16,775 17,985
Depreciation 6,274 7,619
Others 64,330 64,340
Total 251,375 263,003
25 Employee benefit expenses
Note 2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Management
Salaries and bonuses 37,217 39,151
Director’s remuneration 9,130 8,320
Post-employment benefits 2,791 2,612
4 49,138 50,083
Other employees
Salaries and bonuses 96,517 106,006
Post-employment benefits and others 18,341 16,970
114,858 122,976
Total 163,996 173,059

Provident fund was established by the Company for its employees. Membership to the fund is on a
voluntary basis. Contributions are made monthly by the employees at rates ranging from 5% to 10% of
their basic salaries and by the Company at rates ranging from 5% to 10% of the employees’ basic
salaries. The provident fund is registered with the Ministry of Finance as a juristic entity and is
managed by a licensed Fund Manager.
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26 Expenses by nature

The statements of comprehensive income include an analysis of expenses by function. The significant
expenses by nature disclosed in accordance with the requirements of various TFRS were as follows:

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Change in inventories 5,961 97,845
Assets held for lease under operating lease contracts 1,019,546 990,711
Employee benefit expenses 163,996 173,059
Depreciation 1,710,489 1,818,024
Others 506,201 665,630
Total 3,406,193 3,745,269
27 Income tax expense
Income tax recognised in profit or loss
Note 2017 2016

(in thousand Baht)
Current year tax expense
Current year - -
Adjustment for prior years (264) (12,647)

(264) (12,647)
Deferred tax expense
Movements in temporary differences 14 (55,846) (99,159)
Total income tax expense (56,110) (111,806)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2017 2016
Tax rate (in thousand  Tax rate (in thousand
(%) Baht) (%) Baht)

Profit before income tax expense 165,779 108,365
Income tax using the Thai

corporation tax rate 20.0 33,156 20.0 21,673
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 949 5,059
Income not subject to tax (163) (291)
Adjustment for prior years (264) (12,647)
Addition deductible expense for tax purpose (193,235) (145,353)
Unrecognised loss carry forward to

deferred tax asset 103,477 19,753
Total (33.9) (56,110) (103.2) (111,806)

Income tax reduction

Revenue Code Amendment Act No. 42 B.E. 2559 dated 3 March 2016 grants a reduction of the
corporate income tax rate to 20% of net taxable profit for accounting periods which begin on or after

1 January 2016.
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28 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
The calculations of basic earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 were

based on the profit for the years attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the years as follows:

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht / thousand
shares)
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (basic) 221,889 220,171
Number of ordinary share outstanding at 1 January 596,493 596,493
Effect of shares issued during the year ¥ -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(basic) 596,493 596,493
Basic earnings per share (in Baht) 0.37 0.37

*Effect of shares issued during the year was 60 shares.
Diluted earnings per share

The calculations of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 were
based on the profit for the years attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the years after adjusting for the effects of all
diluted potential ordinary shares as follows:

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht / thousand
shares)
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
(basic) 221,889 220,171
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
(diluted) 221,889 220,171
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (basic) 596,493 596,493
Effect of exercise of share options 5,342 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(diluted) 601,835 596,493
Diluted earnings per share (in Baht) 0.37 0.37

29 Dividends

At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 28 April 2017, the
shareholders approved the appropriation of the profit from the results of operations for the year ended
31 December 2016 to be dividends of Baht 0.19 per share, amounting to Baht 113.3 million. The
dividend was paid to shareholders on 25 May 2017.

At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 29 April 2016, the
shareholders approved the appropriation of the profit from the results of operations for the year ended
31 December 2015 to be dividends of Baht 0.17 per share, amounting to Baht 101.4 million. The
dividend was paid to shareholders on 27 May 2016.
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30

Financial instruments
Financial risk management policies

The Company is exposed to normal business risks from changes in market interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates and from non-performance of contractual obligations by counterparties. The
Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. The Company has a system of
controls in place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of
managing the risks. The management continually monitors the Company’s risk management process to
ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.

Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to sustain future development of the business in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to increase
investors and stakeholders’ confidence.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders depending on the Company’s operating performance.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the
Company’s operations and its cash flows because loan interest rates are mainly fixed, as disclosed in
note 15. The management believes that the Company has no need to use derivative instruments to

manage such risk.

Financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 December with details of the Company’s interest rate
risk based on the period to earlier of the contractual repricing date or maturity date were as follows:

31 December 2017

After 1 year Non-
Interest Within but within After interest
Note rate 1 years 5 years 5 years bearing Total
(% per annum) (in thousand Baht)

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 0.125-0.750 134,306 - - 80,486 214,792
Receivables under operating

lease contracts* 6 - - - - 278,954 278,954
Receivables under finance Rate drived

lease contracts* 7 from contracts 964,859 1,286,294 - - 2,251,153
Total financial assets 1,099,165 1,286,294 - 359,440 2,744,899
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31 December 2017

After 1 year Non-
Interest Within but within After interest
Note rate 1 years 5 years 5 years bearing Total
(% per annum) (in thousand Baht)

Financial liabilities
Short-term loans from

financial institutions 15.1 MMR 827,786 - - - 827,786
Trade account payables 16 - - - - 223,123 223,123
Debentures 15.2 2.24 -3.05 1,749,781 4,696,968 199,823 - 6,646,572
Long-term loans from

financial institutions 15.3 3.00 -4.30 877,522 1,198,262 - - 2,075,784
Total financial liabilities 3,455,089 5,895,230 199,823 223,123 9,773,265
Difference of on-financial

reporting items (2,355,924)  (4,608,936)  (199,823) 136,317 (7,028,366)

* Gross amount before net off allowance for doubtful accounts

31 December 2016

After 1 year Non-
Interest Within but within interest
Note rate 1 years 5 years bearing Total
(% per annum) (in thousand Baht)

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 0.125-0.750 62,634 - 14,989 77,623
Receivables under operating

lease contracts* 6 - - - 281,928 281,928
Receivables under finance Rate drived

lease contracts* 7 from contracts 849,395 1,199,838 - 2,049,233
Total financial assets 912,029 1,199,838 296,917 2,408,784
Financial liabilities
Short-term loans from

financial institutions 15.1 MMR 1,752,743 - - 1,752,743
Trade account payables 16 - - - 107,766 107,766
Debentures 15.2 2.24 -3.05 1,899,673 4,946,319 - 6,845,992
Long-term loans from

financial institutions 15.3 3.00 -4.30 577,700 717,910 - 1,295,610
Total financial liabilities 4,230,116 5,664,229 107,766 10,002,111
Difference of on-financial

reporting items (3,318,087) (4,464,391) 189,151 (7,593,327)

* @Gross amount before net off allowance for doubtful accounts

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited | m



meesssssssssmn ) N otes to the financial statements

Phatra Leasing Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk relating to purchasing of assets for lease which are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Company primarily utilises forward exchange contracts with
maturities of less than one year to hedge such financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company does not have a foreign currency account payable
which has foreign currency risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to
settle its financial and contractual obligations to the Company as and when they fall due. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of
financial position.

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Company’s operations and to mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

Determination of fair values

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, receivables under operating lease contracts, current portion
of receivables under finance lease contracts, trade account payables, and short-term loans from
financial institutions is taken to approximate the carrying value due to the relatively short-term

maturity of these instruments.

The fair value of receivables under finance lease contracts, portion due after one year is taken to
approximate the carrying value.

The fair value of floating interest rate long-term loan is taken to approximate the carrying value due to
the floating interest rate of the long-term loan varies according to the market interest rate.

Other financial liabilities not stated above had the fair and carrying value as follows:

Carrying
amount Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in million Baht)

31 December 2017
Debentures 6,650 - 6,698 - 6,698
Long-term loans 2,076 - 1,974 - 1,974
31 December 2016
Debentures 6,850 - 6,890 - 6,890
Long-term loans 1,296 - 1,236 - 1,236
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Commitments and contingent liabilities

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Within one year 8,532 12,342
After one year but within five years 5,893 11,215
Total 14,425 23,557

Assets held for lease commitments

As at 31 December, the minimum future annual rental income to be received for assets held for
operating leases were as follows:

2017 2016
(in thousand Baht)
Within one year 2,230,448 2,486,349
After one year but within five years 3,439,152 3,638,980
After five years 19 -
Total 5,669,619 6,125,329

Under the provisions of certain lease agreements, the lessees have an option to purchase the leased
assets upon the expiration of the lease terms. If this option is included in the lease agreement, the
lessees are required to pay a sum in advance as a guarantee for exercising the purchase option.

Letters of guarantee

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has letters of guarantee issued by some local banks mainly relating
to guarantees for rental agreements with government agencies and state enterprises of approximately Baht
149 million (2016: Baht 129 million).

Events after the reporting period

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on 21 February 2018, the Board approved to propose for
consideration and approval at the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders on 27 April 2018 for the
dividend payment from the net profit and the operating results of the year 2017 to shareholders at the
rate of Baht 0.19 per share for the total number of 596,492,874 shares, totaling Baht 113.3 million and
the issuance of 600,000 ordinary shares which the Company will determine the issue price at a later
stage.
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